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Information Relating o Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1K may contafn {and verbal statements made by Labeland Industries, Ine. may condaind

“forvward-looking statentents ” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These stafements

relare to futire events or futere fingncial performance and invelve varfous assumptions, Known and unknown risks,

wnicertainties and other factors that wmay cause onr acluel resalts, levels of activity, performance or achicvements fo be

materially different from any futire results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these

Sforward-locking statements. These risks amd other factors inclede, but are not fimited to, these listed in this report under

“Risk Factors, " “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resules of Operations, ™ and elsewhere

in this repori. In some cases, you can identifv forward-looking statements by words such as “may.” “will, " “should,”

“expects,” Vintemds, " “plans,” “objectives, " “anticipates,” “helieves,” Testimates,” “predicts.” “potential” or ather

comparable words, Actual results, performance or outcomes may differ materially from those expressed or implied by these

forward-looking statements and may mof align with kistorical performance and events due to a number of factors, including
thase discussed in the sections of this report described above. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
Jorwarid-looking statements are reasonable, we canmol guarantee futiere results, levels of activity, performance oF
achievements, and caution should be exercised against plocing undie refionce upon such statements, which ore based only
on infermarion curvently availeble fo us and speak only ax of the dare hereof. We are under no duty to update pubficly anmy of
the forward-looking statements afier the date of this report, whether av @ result of new information, futire events or
afherwise, excepl as reguired by faw,



PART1

Laketand Industries, Inc. (the “Company” or “Lakeland,” “we,” “our,” or “us") was incorporated in the State of Delaware in
1986, Our executive office is located at 1525 Perimeter Parkway, Suite 3235, Huntsville, AL 35806, and our telephone
number is (256) 350-3873. Our website is located at www lakeland. com. Information contmned on our website is not part of

this report.
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview — Lakeland Indusines i2 a global provider of quality safety products that protect the world's workers, first
responders, and communitics during the most eritical situations. The Company’s products, which are governed by rigorous
safety standards and regulations, are used to cither protect the wearer from their environment or protect a product or process
from the wearer in a broad range of markets around the world, mcluding chemical, clean room, energy. fire service,
manufacturing. and wility applications. Lakeland’s product portfolio includes firefighter protective apparel and accessories,
high-cnd chemical protective suits, limited use/disposable protective clothing, durable woven garments, high visibility
clothing, gloves, and protective sleeves,

The Company’s strong market position across its focus product categories and markets is supported by continued and
increasing investment in its global footprint, pamticularly owning and operating its own manufdcturing facilities acquinng
complementary companics or products that expand and enhance product offerings and/or geographic customer termitories, and
imvesting in sales and marketing resources in countrics around the world, We believe that ewnership of manufacturing is the
kevstone to building a resshienmt supply chain and providing high-quality preducts o our customers. Having seven
manufacturing locations in seven counfries on five continents, coupled with sourcing core raw matenals from muluple
suppliers in various countries, affords Lakeland with superior manufacturing capabilitics and supply chain resilience when
compared to our competitors who use contractors, Additionally, our focus on providing customers with best-in-class service
includes the strategic location of our sales team members, Lakeland has 95 sales emplovees located in 24 countries selling
into more than 50 countries globally,

Lakeland is committed to protecting the world's workers, first responders, and communities while creating sharcholder value,
Koy elements of our corporate strategy include:

Creating a high-performance culture driven by our corporate values,

Investing resources in high-growth geographies and product categories,

Building a premier global firefighter safety brand through product and marketing enhancements,

Dnving profitable growth in high-end chemical and limited-use/disposable protective clothing through
product development, strategic pricing initiatives, channel diversification, and operations optimization, and

. Acquinng companies that improve Lakeland's competitive advantage in focus markets,

On November 30, 2023 the Company acquired New Zealand-based Pacific Helmets NZ Limited (“Pacific”) in an all-cash
transaction valued at approximately NZS14.000,000 (58,6 million) including assumption of debt, subject 1o post-closing
adjustments and customary holdback provisions. The acquisition enhances Lakeland's product portfolio, particularly within
fire service protective helmets, Headguartered in Whanganui, New Zealand, Pacific is a leading designer and provider of
structural firefighting, wildland firefighting, and technical rescue helmets.

For purpozes of this Formn 10-K, {a) FY refers to a fiscal vear ended January 31; for example, FY 24 refers to the fiscal vear
ended January 31, 2024 and (b) ) refers to a quaner, for example Q4 FY 24 refers to the fourth quarter of the fiscal vear
ended January 31, 2024,

Segmients — The Company has seven revenue-generating reportable geographic segments under ASC Topic 280 “Segment
Reporting™: USA Operations, Other Foreign, Europe (UK ), Mexico, Asia, Canada, and Latin America. Segment information
is presented in Mote 13 — Segment Information of the consolidated financial statements in Part [T Item & of this Form 10-K.
Because our consolidated financial statements are stated in ULS. dollars and much of our business is conducted outside the
U.5.. cirrency fluctuations may affect our resulls of operations and financial position and may aflect the comparability of aur
results between financial periods.

Products — We design, manufacture, and scll a multifaceted line of safety proeducts to protect the world's workers, first
responders, and communities during the most critical situations. The following is a briel description of each of our product
categorics,



Firefighter Protective Apparel and Accessories

We offer a complete line of NFPA and CE compliant structural firefighter (turnout gear) and wildland firefighter protective
appare] for domestic and foreign fire departments. Our turmout gear i available both in standard stock patterns and customer
configurations. Through our scquisition of Pacific Helmets we design and manufacture structural firefighting helmets,
wildland firefighting helmets, and safety helmets for rescue, paramedic, and other applications. Additionally, we offer
firefighter accessories including particulate-blocking hoods and fire gloves. Effective February 3, 2024, through our
acguisition of Jolly Scarpe 5.p.A. and Jolly Scarpe Romania 5.R.L. (collectively. “Jolly™), we now manufacture and sell a
comprehensive range of hrefighting and safety boot modelz. See Note 15, “Subsequent Events,” to the consolidated financial
statements in ltem ¥ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.

High-End Chemical Protective Suits

We manufacture and sell heavv-duty chemical protective suits and protective apparel from our proprietary CRFR,
ChemMax® 3, 4, Interceptor and other fabrics. These suits are worn by individuals on hazardous matenial teams and within
general industry to provide protection from powerful, highly concentrated, toxic andfor potentially lethal chemicals and
biclogical toxins. These suits are protective against toxic wastes at Superfund sites, toxic chemical spills or biological
discharges, chemical or biological warfare weapons (such as sarn, anthrax or nein and mustard gas) and chemicals and
petro-chemicals present during the ¢leaning of refineries and nuclear facilities, and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) in
industrial applications, and protection from infectious discases such as Avian Flu and Fbola. We believe that we ofTer the
most complete and cosi-effective line of chemical protective garments available on the market today, Garments are certified
to both NFPA, CE, 180, and other international standards allowing us to offer products composed of these fabrics worldwide,

Limited Use/Dizspasable Protective Clathing

We manufacture a complete line of limited wse/disposable protective garments, including coveralls, laboratory coats, shirts,
pants, hoods, aprons, slecves, arm guards, caps and smocks. Typical users of these garments include integrated
oilpetrochemical refinerics, chemical planis, automotive manufacturers, pharmaceutical companies, construction companics,
coal, gas and oil power generation utilitics and telephone utility companics. laboratorics, mortuarics and governmental
entities. Numerous smaller industriez use these garmenis for specific safety applications umique o their businesses.
Additional applications include protection from viruses and bacteria, such as Ebola, AIDS, streptococcus, SARS, hepatitis,
and COVID-19 at medical facilities, laboratories, and emergency rescue sites, Clean manufactured and sterilized versions of
our MicroMAX NS product, rademarked CleanMax, are used in aseptic laboratories to protect both the wearer and the
product from cross confamination.

Lhirable Woven Garments

We manufacture and market a line of durable, launderable woven garments that complement our firefighting and heat
protective offerings and provide alicrmafives to our limited use/disposable protective clothing lines. These products provide
us access to the much larger woven industrial and health care-related markets. Woven garments are favored by customers for
certain applications because of familiarity with and acceptance of these fabrics. These products allow us (o supply and satisfy
a broader range of our end users” safety needs.

High Visihility Clothing

Lakeland's High-Visibality Divigsion manufactures and marketz a comprehensive lme of reflective apparel that meets the
American National Standards Institute (ANSID) requirements and multiple national standards around the world. The line
includes vests, T-shirts, sweatshirts, jackets, coats, raingear, jumpsuits, hats and gloves.

Crfoves and Seeves

We manufacture and sell specially designed glove and sleeve products made from Kevlar®, a cut and heat-resistant fiber
produced by DuPont, Spectra®, a cut-resistant fiber made by Honeywell, and our own patented engincered vams. These
gloves offer a better overall level of protection and lower worker injury rate and are more cost-¢ffective than traditional
leather, canvas or coated work gloves, These gloves allow workers to handle sharp or jagged unfinished sheet metal zafely,
and arg used primarily in the awtomotive, glass and metal fabrication indusinies,

Custamers — The majority of our sales are made through distnbution. For the yvear ended January 31, 2024, no individual
custemer represented maore than 1096 of our sales,

Safes and Marketing - Domestically, we employ a field sales force, organized in four vertical sales groups (industrial, fire
service, onitical environment, and utilities), to better support customers and enhance marketing, We further leverage our in-
house sales team with independent sales representatives to a global network of over 2,000 safety and industrial supply
distributors who buy our products for resale and tvpically maintain inventory at the local level in order to assure quick
response times and the ability to serve their customers properly.



Intermationally, Lakeland has sales representatives in 23 couniries outside the US. and sells producis in more than 50
countrics, Our sustainable market advantages continue to be our knowledge of global standards, the quality of our product
offering and the fact that we manufacture our own products. We aim to provide our customers with the highest quality
products and excellent customer service,

Campetition - The global safety products market i3 broad with many verticals based upon product type and end-use. We
compete in a subset of the larger safety market primanly focusing on firefighter apparel, chemical suits, and limited-
usc/disposable protective clothing. Over the long term, we belicve global demand for safety products will continue to grow as
the procurement of PPE is non-discretionary and often mandated by industry standards and government regulations which are
increasing in global adoption.

The safety products market is highly competitive and fragmented, with participants ranging in size from small companics
focusing on a single type of PPE 10 several large multinational corporations that supply many types of safety products, Our
main competitors vary by region and product. We compete on the basis of our product quality, product availability, cost of
ownership, brand recognition, and customer service, We believe Lakeland is favorably positioned in its focus markets az a
result of our high-quality offerings, global footprint, and brand recognition.

Patents and Trademarks — We own 14 patems with the U5, Patent and Trademark Office. We own 76 wrademarks, Our
active LLS. patents expire between 2024 and 2037, Intellectual property nghts that apply to our various products mclude
patents, trade secrets, trademarks and, to a lesser extent. copyrights. We maintain an active program to protect our
technology, filing for patent and trademark protection in multiple countries where our product may be “knocked off™ or
where significant sales of our products exist. Information regarding risks associated with our proprietary technology and our
intellectual property nghts may be found in Item | A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors.”

Raw Materials and Suppliers - Our policy is to qualify multiple vendors for our fabrics and bindings whenever possible, We
frequently distnbute our purchases among the top two or three suppliers, based on pricing and delivery schedules, in order to
keep multiple suppliers qualificd and proficient in the manufacture of the raw materials that we require. Materials, such as
polypropylene, polvethylene. polyvinyl chloride, spunlaced polyester. melt blown polvpropylene and their derivatives and
faminates, are available from 30 or more major mills, FR fabrics are also available from a number of both domestic and
international mills, The accessonies used in the production of our disposable garments, such as thread, boxes, snaps and
clastics, are obtauined from unaffiliated suppliers. We currently use more than 25 suppliers located in the U5, and
internationally to supply our key fabrics. We have not experienced difficulty in obtaining our requirements for these
commadity component items. Due to the high cost of freight for our nonwoven fabrics, we also seck to find multiple sources
that are local to our manufactunng to emergency demand and shift manufacturing between our locations with greater case.

Human Capital - As of Jawary 31, 2024, the Company emploved approximately 1,750 people worldwide, of which
approximately 1,700 were full-time and approximately 50 were part-time. Approximately 90 were emploved in the United
States and 1,660 were employed outside of the United States. Approximately 1,200 employecs, or T0% of our global
workforee, are covered by collective bargaining agreements or works councils. Owverall, we consider our employee relations
to be good, Our culre is important 1o our success,

Health and Safety. The health and safety of our employvees is of vtmost importance to us. We conduct regular self-
assesaments and audits 1o ensure compliance with our health and safery guidelines and regulatory requirements, Our ultimate
goal is to achieve a level of work-related injuries as close to zero as possible through continuous vestment in our safiety
programs. We provide protective gear {c.g. cye protection, masks and gloves) as required by applicable standards and as
appropriate given employee job duties. Additionally, during the COVID-19 pandemic, we invested heavily 1o help ensure the
health of our employvees, Through the use of education and awareness, provision of necessary PPE, and changes to our
manufacturing sites and screening, we strive to make our workplaces a safe place for employees during the workday.

Hiring Practices. We recruit the best people for the job without regard to gender, ethnicity or other protected traits, and it is
our policy to comply fully with all domestic, foreign and local laws relating to discrimination in the workplace.

Dhiversity and fncfusion. Recognizing and respecting our global presence, we strive to maintain a diverse and inclusive
workforce everywhere we operate. Almost 500% of our emplovees worldwide are female and, in the U.S., non-Caucasian
emplovees account for more than 50% of the employee base. Our diversity and inclusion principles are also reflected in our
employee training. particularly our policies against harassment and bullying and the elimination of bias in the workplace,



In addition, to support mental healih and emotional well-being, all associates and their dependenis worldwide have access to
an Emplovee Assistance Program ("EAP”), at no cost 1o them. This includes access o visits with mental health carc
providers through the EAP.

Compensation. Lakeland’s compensation philosophy strives to provide total compensation for all employvees at the market
imedian, utilizing base salary, cash mcentives and, in somé cases, equity grants to achieve this goal. We further strive to
provide above-market compensation opportunities for associates who exceed goals and expectations, This approach to
compensation is designed to help Lakeland attract, retain and motivate high-performing individuals who foster an innovative
culture and drive business results,

Additional information about how we value our associates” well-being, including our Global Human Rights Policy and our
Global Workplace Health and Safety Policy, can be found in the Corporate Govemance section of our corporate wehsite,
MNothing on our website, including our policies, or sections thereof, shall be deemed incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference into any of our other filings with the Secuntics and Exchange
Commission.

GFovernmen! Regulation — We are governed by rezulations that affeet the manufacture, distribution. marketing and sale of
our products, including regulations relating to various environmental, health and safery maners, These regulations differ
among and within every country in which we operate. We are nol invelved in any pending or, 10 our knowledge, threatened
governmental proceedings. which would require curtailment of our operations because of such laws and regulations. Changes
in regulations, guidelines, procedural precedents and enforcement take place frequently and can impact the size, growth
potential and profitability of products sold in each market, See “-Environmental Matters™ below for addional discussion of
environmental regulations,

Imernational and Domestic Stapdards, Globally, standards development continues to challenge Industrial protective clothing
manufacturers, The pace of change and adoption of new standards continues to increase as standards for more hazards are
added and deficiencics in existing standards are corrected. Complex and changing international standards play to Lakeland's
stremgths when compared to most multinationals or smaller manufacturers. Lakeland currently sits on commitiees andfor
works closely with groups involved in writing many intemational standards such as the American Society for Testing and
Materials Intemnational (“ASTM™), the National Fire Protecction Association (“NFPA™), Intemational Safety Equipment
Association (“ISEA™), the European Committee for Standardization (“CEN"), 150, the China National Standards Board
{*GB7) in China, and the Standards Australia and Standards New Zealand (“ASNZ™).

Globally, not only are the standards continuing to change, but the focus of standards activity is shifting. In response to the
increasing use of certification processes as a technical barrier to trade. standards writing bodics in the U.S. and Europe have
concluded efforts to update and define conformity assessment (ANSITSEA 125 and the PPE Regulation respectively) within
their own spheres of influence. Unfortunately, these are not “infernational standards™ and can be casily ignored by other
countries that wish to impose their own conformity assessment systems on importers. The result is an inereasingly dynamic
standards environment where not only are the standards changing, but the minimum requircments for conformity with the
certification process itsell are changing,

A number of developing nations are now becoming active in development of their own standards based on existing
intermational standards. This presents a new challenge in that not only are wie faced with multiple test methods and standards,
but we have the potential for multiple certification processes, While this adds to product development and sales expenses, the
additional cost is only incremental. The real challenge 15 in navigating the certification process itself. This is a significant
impediment to entry for companics seeking to expand sales distribution globally,

In many cases products prefemred in one market are not acceptable in another and multiple conformity asscssments are
required for the same standard certification. This is both technically challenging and costly. By virtue of its imternational
manufucturing and sales operations, Lakeland is uniguely positioned to capitalize on this complex dynamic.

Environmental Matters. We are subject o vanous foreign, federal, state and local environmental protection, chemical
control, and health and safety lows and regulations, and we incur costs to comply with those laws. We own and lease real
property, and cerain environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of businesses and real property
responsible for comamination on or originating from property, even if they did not know of, or were not responsible for the
contamination, The presence of hazardous substances on any of our propertics or the failure to meel environmental regulatory
requirements could affect our ability to use or sell the property or to use the property as collateral for borrowing and could
resull in substantial remediation or compliance costs,



Per- and polyiluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are man-made chemicals that have been used in industry and consumer products
worldwide since the 19405, PFAS have been widely used to make products more resistant to heat, oils, grease, chemicals, and
water. Therefore, PFAS may be found in everyday consumer goods such as food packaging, nonstick cookware, stain-
resistant fabrics and carpets, some cosmetics, water-repellent clothing, and zome fircfighting foams. PFAS are now the
subject of increasing regulatory attention. Both the EPA and the European Union have proposed drafl regulations regarding
PFAS, which include restrictions, data gathering and‘or phase-out requirements. In the United States, a number of states have
also developed regulatory standards, product reporting, andfor phase-out requircments.

Certam fabric components of firefighter tumout gear manufactured by our suppliers comam PFAS 1o aclieve waler, oil, or
chemical resistance. Although we understand some suppliers have investigated PFAS-free alternatives that may become
available in the future, no manufacturer of fircfighter turnout gear is currently able to mect the current NFPA safety standards
without using certain fabrc components that contain PFAS. Some of our suppliers have notified us that they add PFAS 10
their fabric components to achieve the NFPA performance requirements. The Company has been named as a party to a
number of lawsuits filed by firefighters related to PFAS. These cases are consolidated in fa re: Agueons Film-Forning
Foams Products Lighility Litigation, MDL No.: 2:18-mn-2873-RMG (District of South Carolina, Charleston Division),
These matters are at an early stage with numerous factual and legal issues to be reselved.

Although we have not in the past had any material costs or damages associated with environmental claims or compliance,
and we do not currently anticipate any such costs or damages. we cannot guarantee that we will not incur material costs or
damages in the future as a result of the discovery of new facts or conditions, acquisition of new properties, the release of
harardous substances, a change in interpretation of existing environmental laws or the adoption of new environmental laws,

Seasonality — Our operations have historically been moderately scasonal, with higher sales generally occurring in March,
April and May when scheduled maintenance on nuclear, coal, oil and gas fired utilities, chemical, petrochemical and
smelting facilitics, and other heavy industrial manufacturing plants eccurs, primarily due to moderate spring temperatures
and low energy demands, Sales decline during the warmer summer vacation months and gradually increase from Labor Day
through the fall with slight declines again during holidays, such as Christmas and the Chinese New Year. As a result of this
scasonality in our sales, we have historically experienced a comesponding scasonality in our working capital, specifically
inventorics, with peak inventories occuming between December and May, coinciding with lead times required to
accommodate the spring maintenance schedules, Certain of our large customers seck sole sourcing to avoid sourcing their
requirements from multiple vendors whose prices, delivery times and quality standards differ.

In recent years, owr historical scasonal pattern has shified due to increased demand by first responders for our chemical suits
and fire gear, our growing sales into the southern hemisphere, and our development of non-scasonal products like
CleanMAX. While we doubt that we will ever fully eliminate scasonality in our business, we continue our efforts to dumnish
ils impact on revenues, operational results, working capital and cash flow, by focusing on sales into non-seasonal markets
like clean rooms, electric utilities and the fire service markets.

Avaifable Information - Our Internet address is www Lakeland.com. We make the following filings available free of charge
on the Investor Relations page on our wehsite as soon as they have been electronically filed with or fumished to the
Sccuritics and Exchange Commission (“SEC”): our annual reports on Form 10-K., our guarterly reports on Form 10-0), our
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments 1o those reports filed or fumished pursuant to Scetion 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as well as our proxy statement, Information contained on our website 15 not part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or our other filings with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet site al www.sec.gov thai
contains reports, proxy and imformation statements and other information regarding issuers like us who file electronically
with the SEC.

Infermation aboul our Executive Officers

The following is a list of the names and ages of all of our executive officers indicating all positions and offices they hold with
us as of April 10, 2024,

Mammie Ape Pagition

James M. Jenking. ... 59 Acting President and Chiel’ Executive Officer, and Executive Chairman
Roger D Shannon... 59 Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Hui (Helena) An..... 50 Chief Operating Officer

Joshua SIUEN ..o vienerismeinnn 33 Viee President of Corporate Development and Strategy

[



Jumes M. Senkins was appointed Acting President and Chiel Executive Officer on February 1, 2024, Mr. Jenkins
was appointed the Company's Executive Chairman on August 30, 2023, Previously, he served as Chairman of the Board
from February 1, 2023 through August 2023 and as a director since 2016, Mr. Jenkins also served on our Board from 2012 to
2005 and was a member of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committees. Mr. Jenkins is currently the General Counsel
and Vice President of Corporate Development for Transcat, Inc., a provider of calibration, repair, inspection and laboratory
services. Before joining Transcat, Mr. Jenking was a partner at Harter Secrest & Emery LLP, a regional law firm in New
York State, where his practice focused on corporate governance and gencral corporate law matters, including initial and
secondary public offenings, pnvate placements, mergers and acquisitions, and securities law compliance,

Roger . Shannan has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February 1, 2023 and Secretary since February |,
2024, Mr. Shannon was Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Charah Solutions from Junce 2019 to October 2022, Mr.
Shannon previously served in various roles, including Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vice President of Finance, Treasurer
and Head of Corporate Development at ADTRAN, a publicly traded provider of next-generation networking solutions, from
Movember 2005 to June 2019, Mr, Shannon also served as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for Steel Technologies and
various senior finance roles at the Brown-Forman Corporation, British American Tobacco, and accounting positions at
Vulcan Materials Company, Lexmark International and KPMG,

Helena An has served as our Chiel Operating Officer since April 6, 2023, Ms. An previously served as our Vice
President of Procurement and Asia Manufacturing since 20018, Ms. An has been with Lakeland for over 25 years in various
procurement and manufacturing leadership positions,

Joshua Sterten was appointed Vice President of Comporate Development and Strategy on April 6, 2023, He has been
instrumental im the developmen and execution of the Company’s global strategy toward higher-value products and revenue
growth. He previously served as Viee President of Corporate Development since June 2021, From July 2019 10 May 2021,
Mr. Sletten was Viee President, Mergers & Acquisitions for Craig-Hallum Capital Group LLC, an investment banking firm.
Mr. Sletten held various mergers and acquisitions roles in private equity and corporate functions from 2013 to 2019,
including The IMAGINE Group, General Mills, and ShoreView Industries, LLC.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS
RISK FACTORS

You should caorefully consider the following risks before imvesting in our commeon stock. These are not the only risks that we
may face. ff any of the events referred to below actually eccur, our business, financial condition, lguidity and results of
operations could suffer. In that case, the rading price of owr common stock could decline, and vou may lose all or part of
vour investment. You should also refer to the other information in this Forae 10-K and in the documenis we incorporate by
reference into this Form T0-K, including owr consolidated financial statements and the refated notes.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We are subject to risk as a result of our international manufacturing operations.

Because most of our preducts are manufactured at our facilities located in China, Vietnam, Mexico, Argentina and India, our
operations are subject to risks inherent in doing business infernationally, Such nsks include the adverse effects on operations
from corruption, war, international terrorism, civil disturbances, political instability, government activities such as border
taxes and rencgotiation of treatics, deprivation of contract and property rights and currency valuation changes,

Based on the complex relationships between China and the U.S., there is an inherent risk that political, diplomatic, military,
or other events could result in business disruptions, including increased regulatory enforcement against companies, t1anffs,
trade embargoes, and export restrictions. Tariffs increase the cost of our products and the components and raw materials that
g0 into making them. These increased costs adversely impact the gross margin we eam on our products, Tan(Ts can also
make our products more expensive for customers, which could make our products less competitive and reduce consumer
demand. Countries may also adopt other measures, such as controls on imports or exports of goods, lechnology, or data, thai
could adversely impact the Company ‘s operations and supply chain and limit the Company s ability to offer our products and
services as designed. These measures can require us to lake various actions, including changing suppliers and resiruciuring
busziness relationships, Changing our operations in accordance with new or changed trade restrictions can be expensive, time-
consuming, disruptive to our operations and distracting fo management. Such restrictions can be announced with little or no
advance notice, and we may not be able to miligate all adverse impacts from such measures, effectively. Political uncerainty
surrounding trade and other international disputes could also have a negative ¢ffect on consumer confidence and spending.
Any of these events could reduce customer demand, increase the cost of our products and services, or otherwise have a
materially adverse impact on our customers” and supplicrs” busincsses and results of operations,



A terrorist attack or other geopolitical crisis could negatively impact eur domestic andior infernational operations,

Our global operations are susceptible to global events, including acts or threats of war or terrorism, international conflicts,
political instability, and natural disasters. The occurrence of any of these events could have an adverse effect on our business
results and financial condition.

The impact of the invasion of Ukraine, including economic sanctions of additional war or military conflict, as well as
pitenitial responses to them by Russia, could adversely affect the Company’s business, supply chain, suppliers or customers
and potentially heighten our risk of cyber-attacks. In addition, the continuation of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine could lead to
other disruptions, instability, and volatility in global markets and industrics that could negatively impact the Company’s
operations. I is nol possible 1o predict the broader consequences of this conflict, which could include further sanctions,
cmbargoes, regional instability, geopolitical shifts and adverse effects on macrocconomic conditions, the availability of raw
matcrials, supplics, freight and labor, currency cxchange rates and financial markets, all of which could impact the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Further escalation of specific trade tensions, including those between the ULS. and China. or mare broadly in global trade
conflicts, could sdversely impact the Company’s business and operations. The Company’s business is also impacted by
social, political, and laber conditions in locations in which the Company or its suppliers or customers operate; adverse
changes in the availability and cost of capital; monctary policy; interest rates; inflation; recession; commodity prices;
currency volatlity or exchange control; ability to expatmate earnings; and other laws and regulations in the junisdictions in
which the Company or its suppliers or customers operate. For example. changes in loecal economic conditions or outlooks,
such as lower economic growth rates in Clina, Europe, or other key markets, impact the demand or profitability of the
Company’s products.

Pandemics or disease outhreaks, such as COVID-I9, may couse unfavorable economic or market condisions, which could
impact demand patterns aed/or diseupe global supply chains and manufactiuring eperations.

Collectively, these outcomes could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition,
Pandemics or discase outbreaks such as COVID-19 could result in a widespread health erisis that could adversely affect the
economics of developed and emerging markets, potentially resulting in an economic downtum that could affect customers”
demand for our products in certain industrial-based end-markets. The spread of pandemics or disease outhreaks may also
disrupt the Company's manufacturing operations, supply chain, or logistics neceasary to import, export and deliver products
to our customers. During a pandemic or crisis, applicable laws and response directives could, in some circumstances,
adverscly affect our ability to operate our plants, or to deliver our products in a timely manner. The enactment of lows and
directives aimed at mitigating health crizes may also hinder our ability to move certain products across borders. Economic
conditions can also influence order patterns, These factors could negatively impact our consolidated results of operations and
cash flow,

We have significant international operations apd are suhject to the risks of doing business in foreign counfries,
particalarly in Ching and Vietmam, which conld affect our abifity fo manufacture or sefl our products, obtain products
Srom foreign suppliers or controf the costs of our products.

We have business operations m approximately 60 foreign countrics, In FY 24, more than half of our net sales were made by
operations outside the United States. Those operations are suhject to various political, economic and other risks and
uncertainties, which could have a matenial adverse effect on our business. These risks include the following:

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

. changes in trade policy or tanff regulations;

. changes in tax laws and regulations;

. additional valuation allowances on deferred tax assets due to an inability o generate sufficient profil in
cerlain foreign jurisdictions;

. intellectual propeny protection difficulties or intellectual property theft;

. dilficulty in collecting accounts receivable;

. complications in complving with a variety of foreign laws and regulstions, some of which may conflict with
LLS. laws;

. foreign privacy laws and regulations:

. trade protection measures and price controls;

. trade sanctions and cmbargoes;

. nationalizalion and expropration:

. increased intemational instability or potential instability of foreign govemnments;



. eifectivencss of worldwide compliance with Lakeland's anti-bnibery policy, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, and similar local laws;

difficulty in hiring and retaining qualified emplovees;

the ability to effectively negotiate with labor unions in foreign countries;

the need to take extra security precautions for our international operations;

costs and difficultics in managing culturally and geographically diverse infernational operations; and
pandemics and similar disasters.

In particular, because a majority of our products are manufactured in China and Viemam, the possibility of adverse changes
in trade or political relations with China or Vietnam, political instability in China or Vietnam, increases in labor costs, the
cccurrence of prolonged adverse weather conditions or a natural disaster such as an carthquake or typhoon in China or
Vietnam, or the outbreak of a pandemic discase in China or Vietnam could severely interfere with the manufacturing andior
shipment of our products and would have a matenial adverse effect on our operations.

Our busineas operations nay be adversely affected by the current and futere political environment in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC™). The government of the PRC has exercised and continues 1o exercise substantial contrel over virtually
eviery sector of the Chinese cconomy through regulation and state ownership, Our abality to operate under the PRC may be
adverscly affected by changes in Chinese lows and regulations, including these relating to axation, impart and export tariffs,
raw materials, environmental regulations, land use nghts, property and other matters. Under its current leadership, the
povernment of the FRC has been pursuing economic reform policies that encourage private cconomic activity and greater
cconomic decentralization, There is no assurance, however, that the government of the PRC will comtinue 1o pursue these
policies or that 1t will not significantly alter these policies from time to ime without notice. A change in pohcies by the PRC
government could adversely affect our interests by, among other factors: changes in laws, regulations or the interpretation
thereof, confiscatory taxation, restrictions on currency conversion, imports or sources of supplics, or the expropriation or
nationalization of private entenpriscs,

The PRC government exercises significant control over the Chinese economy, inclueding but not limited to controlling capital
investments, allocating resources, setting monetary policy, controlling and monitoring foreign exchange rates. implementing
and overseeing tax regulations, providing preferential treatment to certain industry segments or companics and issuing
necessary licenses to conduct business. In addition, we could face additional nisks resulting from changes in the PRC's daa
privacy and cybersecurily requirements. Accordingly, any adverse change in the Chinese economy. the PRC legal sysiem or
the PRC governmental, economic or other policies could have a material adverse effect on our entities in the PRC and our
praspects generally.

We face additional risks in the PRC due to the country’s histonically hmited recognition and enforcement of contractual and
intellectual property nghts, We may experience difficulty enforcing our intellectual property rights in the PRC. Unauthorieed
use of our technologies and intellectual property nghts by partners or competitors may dilute or undermine the strength of
our brands, If we cannot adequately monitor the use of our technologies and products or enforce our intellectual property
rights in the PRC or contractual restrictions relating to the use of our intellectual property by Chinese companies, our revenue
could be adversely affected.

Orur entitics are subject to laws and regulations applicable to foreign investment in the PRC. There are uncertaintics regarding
the interpretation and enforcement of laws, rules and policies in the PRC. Because many laws and regulations are relatively
new, the interpretations of many laws, regulations and rules are not always uniform. Moreover, the interpretation of statutes
and regulations may be subject to government policies reflecting domestic political agendas. Enforcement of cxisting laws or
contracts based on existing laws may be uncertain and sporadic. As a result of the foregoing, it may be difficult for us to
obtain swift or equitable enforcement of laws ostensibly designed to protect companies like ours, which could have a
material adverse effeet on our business and results of operations.

Any one or more of these risks could have a negative impact on the success of our intermational operations and, thereby, have
a material adverse effect on our business, consolidated results of operations and financial condition.



(hur results af operations may vary widely from quarter to quarter.

Our quarterly results of operations have varied and are expected o continue 1o vary in the future, These Muctuations may be
caused by many factors, including:

Currency volatility:

Global crises, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, oil spills, or Ebola outhreak;

Cwr expansion of intermational operations;

Competitive pricing pressurcs;

Seasonal buyving patterns resulting from the cyclical natre of the business of some of our customers;
Changes in the mix of products and services sold;

The timing of introductions and enhancements of products by us or our competitors;

Market acceplance of new products;

Technological changes in fabrics or production equipment used to make our products;
Availability of raw materials due to unanticipated demand or lack of precursors (oil and gas);
Changes in the mix of domestic and international sales; and

Personnel changes.
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These vanations could negatively impact our stock price,

Disruprion in our supply chain, manufacturing or distribution operarions could adversely affect our business.

Our ability to manufacture, distribute and sell products is eritical to our operations. These activities are subject to inherent
risks such as natural disasters, power oulages, fires or explosions, labor sirikes, terronsm, epidemics, pandemics, import
restrictions, regional economic, business, environmental or political events, governmental regulatory requirements or
pongovernmental voluntary actions in response to global climate change or other concems regarding the sustainability of our
business, which could disrupt our supply chain and impair our ability 1o manufacture or sell our products, This interruption, if
niod mitigated in advance or otherwise effectively managed, could adversely impact our business. financial condition and
results of operations and require additional resources 1o address,

Climate change and otfrer sustainability matters may adversely affect our business and operations,

There is growing concern that carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases in the atmosphere may have an adverse impact on
global temperatures, weather patterns, and the frequency and seventy of extreme weather and natural disasters, We have
transition risks related to the transition o a lower-carbon cconomy and physical risks related to the physical impacts of
climate change. Transition risks include increased costs of carbon emission, increased cost to produce products in compliance
with future regulations, increased raw materials cost, shifis in customer/consumer values and other legal, regulatory and
technological nsks, Physical nsks mclude the nsk of direct damage 1o assets or supply chain disruption caused by severe
weather events such as floods, storms, wildfires and droughts. In additon, concern over climate change may result in new
legal and regulatory requirements to reduce or mitigate the effects of climate change on the environment. Our reputation
could be damaged if we do not (or are perceived not to) act responsibly with respect 1o sustainability maters, which could
adversely affect our business.

Becanse we do ot have long-term commitments from many of our customers, we must estimate customer demand, and
errors in our estimates conld negatively impact our inventory levels and net sales,

Our sales are generally made on the basis of individual purchase orders, which may later be modified or canceled by the
customer rather than on long-term commitments. We have historically been required to place firm onders for fabrics and
componenis with our supplicrs prior fo receiving an order for our products based on our forecasis of customer demands, Our
sales process requires us to make multiple demand forecast assumptions, each of which may introduce ermors in our
esfimates, causing excess inventory to accmee or a lack of manufacturing capacity when needed, If we overestimate customer
demand, as we have done in recent years, we may allocate resources 10 manufacturing products that we may not be able 1o
sell when we expect 1o or ot all. As a result, we experienced in fiscal vear 2024 a buildup of excess inventory, with
comesponding negative impacts on our financial results. We may expenience similar results if we overestimate customer
demand in the future. Conversely, if we underestimate customer demand or if insufficient manufacturing capacity is
available, we would lose sales opportunities and market share and damage our customer relabionships. On occasion, we have
been unable to adequately respond to delivery dates required by our customers because of the lead time needed for us to
obtain required materials or to send fabrics to our assembly facilities in China, Victnam, India, and Mexico,



The markets in which we compete are highly competitive, and some of our competitors have greater financial and otfrer
rexsonrces than we do,

Some of our competitors have greater financial and other resources than we do, and our business could be adversely affected
by competitors’ new product innovations, technological advances made to competing products and pricing changes made by
LS in response o competition from existing or new competitors. We may not be able to compete successfully against current
and futare competitors, and the competitive pressures faced by us could have a material adverse effect on our business,
consolidated results of operations and financial condition, In addition, e-business is a rapidly developing area, and the
execution of a successtul e-business strategy involves significant time, investment and resources.

Five of our competitors, DuPont, Honeywell, Ansell, MSA and Kimberly Clark, have substantially greater financial,
marketing and sales resources than we do. In addition, we believe that the barmiers to entry in the disposable and reusable
garments and gloves markets are relatively low. We cannot assure you that our present competifors or competitors that
choose to enter the marketplace in the future will not exent significant competitive pressures,

(hir aperations are substantially dependent upon key personmel,

Our performance is substantially dependent on the continued services and performance of our senior management and certain
other key personnel, including James M. Jenkms, our Acting President and Chiel Executive Officer and Executive Chairman;
Roger D, Shannon, our Chiel Financial Officer and Secretary; Helena An, our Chiel Operating Officer, and Joshua Sletten
our Vice President of Corporate Development and Strategy. The loss of services of any of our executive officers or olher key
employees could have a matenal adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resulis of operations. In addition, any
future expansion of our business will depend on our ability to identify, attract, hire, train, retain and motivate other highly
skilled managerial, marketing, customer service and manufacturing personnel, and our mability to do so could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Technological change could negaively affect sales of our producis and our performance.

The rapid development of fabric technology continually aiffects our apparel applications and may directly impact the
performance of our products. We cannot assure you that we will suceessfully maintain or improve the effectivencss of our
existing products, nor can we assure you that we will successfully identify new oppertunitics or continue 1o have the needed
financial resources to develop new fabric or apparel manufacwring techniques in a timely or cost-¢ffective manner. In
sddition, products manufactured by others may render our products obsolete or noncompentive,

Cybersecurity incidents coufd disrupt business opervations, result in the foss of critical and confidential information and
adversely impact our reputation and resulis of eperations,

We rely on mlormation technology systems (o process, transmil and store electronic mformation, and manage or support
various business processes and activities. In general, all information technology systems, including those we host or have
hosted by third parties, are vulnerable to damage or interruption from fire, Nood, power loss, telecommunications failure,
human error or malicious acts, break-ins, and other intentional or unintentional events. Our business is also at nsk from and
may be materially impacted and’or disrupted by information security incidents such as ransomware, malware, viruses,
phishing. social engineering, and other security incidents. Such incidents can range from individual attempts to gain
unauthorized access o mformation technology systems through phishing emails to more sophisticated secunity threats, These
events can also result from internal compromises, such as human eror or rogue employees or contractors, and can occur on
our systems or on the systems of our partners and subcontractors. In addition, the number and frequency of eybersecurity
events globally may be heightened during times of geopolitical tension or instability between countries, including, for
cxample, the ongoing war between Russia and Ukrame. Sccunty breaches of our systems or secunty breaches of third
parties’ systems on which we rely to process, store, or transmit electronic information could result in the misappropriation,
destruction or unauthonzed disclosure of confidential information or personal data, as well as material disruptions to our
operalions that could impact services.

We employ vanous measures to prevent, detect, address and mitigate cybersecunity threats (including access controls,
vulnerability assessments, training for all emplovees, continuous monitoring of our IT networks and systems and
maimtenance of backup and protective systems). However, our securily measures may be imadequate o prevent securily
breaches, and our business operations and reputation could be materially adversely affected by these events and any resulting
federal and state fines and penalties, legal claims or proceedings, There are also significant costs associated with a data
breach, including investigation costs, remediation and mitigation costs, notification and monitoring costs, attormeys” fees, and
the podential for reputational harm and losi revenues due o a loss of confidence. We cannot predict the cosis o comply with
these laws or the costs associated with a potential data breach, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial position and cash flows, and our business reputation. As cyber threats continue to evolve, we
may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches or to
mitigate and alleviate problems caused by security incidents, While risks from identified cvbersecurity threats or previous
eybersecurity incidemts to date have not materially affected our business strategy, results of operations or financial condition
to date, there can be no assurance that such risks will not have a material adverse effect in the Tuture.



Dvata privacy awd security faws relating to the handiing of personal information are evolving across the world and meay be
drafted, interpreted o applied fn a mianner that resilts fn Dicreased costs, legal claimis, firnes a@arist us, or reputational
damage.

As a global organization that accesses and processes personal data in the course of its business, we are subject to ULS. and
international data privacy, secunty and data breach notification laws, as well as contractual requircments that may govern the
collection, use, disclosure and protection of personal data.

For cxample, in the United States, individual states regulate data breach notification requirements as well as more gencral
privacy and sccurnity requirements, Certain of these laws grant individuals vanous nights with respect to personal information,
and we may be required 1 expend significant resources o comply with these laws. Further, all 50 states, the District of
Columbia and U.S. territories have adopted data breach notification laws that impose, in varying degrees, an obligation to
notify affected persons and'or state regulators in the cvent of a data breach or compromise, including when their personal
information has or may have been accessed by an unauthorized person, These laws apply according 1o the residence of the
impacted individual. Some state breach notification laws may also impose physical and electronic security requirements
regarding the safeguarding of personal information. In addition, certain states’ privacy, sccurity. and data breach lows,
including, for example, the California Consumer Privacy Act ("CCPA”) (as amended by the California Privacy Rights Act),
include private rights of action that may expose us o private litigation regarding our privacy and security practices and
significant damages awards or sentlements in civil litigation.

Compliance with the varying data privacy regulations across the United States and around the world may require
expenditures and changes in our business models. Failure to comply with these statutory requirements, or even the
occurrence of a data breach, can subject us to legal, regulatory, and reputational risks, as well as the financial nsks that can
accompany regulatory investigations and enforcement actions and private lihgation.

(hir siwccess depends in part on our proprietary technology, and if we fail to suceessfully obrain or enforce our intellectual
property Fights, our competitive position may be armed,

We rely on our portfolio of issued and pending patent applications in the U5, and other countries to protect a large part of
our intellectual property and our competitive pasition; however. these palents may be insulficient to protect our intellectual
property rights because our patents mav be challenged, invalidated, held unenforceable, circumvented, or may not be
sufficiently broad to prevent third partics from producing competing products similar in design to our products and foreign
patents protections may be more limited than those provided under U.S. patents and intellectual property laws.

We may not be afforded the protection of a patent if our currently pending or future patent filings do not result in the
issuance of patents or if we fail to apply for palent protection. We may fail to apply for a patent if our personnel fail to
disclose or recognize new patentable ideas or innovations, Remote working can decrease the opportunities for our personnel
to collaborate, thereby reducing the opportunities for effectivie invention disclosures and patent application filings. We may
choose not 1o file a foreign patent application if the limited protections provided by a foreign patent outweigh the costs of
obtaining it. Cur foreign patent portfolio is less extensive than our ULS. portfolio.

Or anability o maintain the proprictary namure of our fechnology through patents, copynights or wrade secrets would impair
our competitive advantages and could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and Future
growth prospects, In particular, a failure to protect our intellectual property rights might allow competitors to copy our
technology or ereate counterfedt or pirated versions of our products, which could adversely affect our reputation, pricing and
mearket share,

Char imahility to swccessfully identify, consummate and integrate curvent and future aoquisitions and strategic imvestments
ar fir realize aniicipated cost savings and otfer benefits could adversely affect our business,

In the future, subjeet to capital constraints, we may seck 1o acquire sclected safery product lines or safety-related businesses
or other businesses, that wall complement our existing products. Our ability to acquire these businesses is dependent upon
many factors, including our management’s relationship with the owners of these businesses, many of which are small and
closely held by individual stockholders. In addition, we will be competing for acquisition and expansion opportunitics with
other compamies, many of which have greater name recognition, marketing support and financial resources than us, which
may result in fewer acquisition opportunifies for us, as well as higher scquisition prices. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to identify, pursue or acquire any targeted business.



If we are unable o integrate or successhully manage businesses that we have recently acquired or may acquire in the fuiure,
wie may not realize anticipated cost savings, improved manufacturing efficiencics and inereased revenue, which may result in
material adverse shon and long-term effects on our consolidated operating results, finarcial condition and liquidity. Even if
we are able to mtegrate the operations of our acquired businesses info our operations, we may not realize the full benefits of
the cost savings, revenue enhancements or other benefits that we may have expected at the time of acquisition. In addition,
even if we achieve the expected benefits, we may not be able to achieve them within the anticipated time frame, and such
benefits may be offset by costs incurred in integrating the acquired companies and increases in other expenses.

Acquisitions involve a number of special risks in addition to those mentioned above, including the diversion of
management’s allention o the assimilation of the operations and personnel of the acquired companies, the potential loss of
kev employees of acquired companics, potential exposure to unknown liabilities, adverse effects on our reported operating
results and the amortization or write-down of acquired intangible assets. We cannot assure you that any acquisition by us will
or will not occur, that if an acquisition does occur it will not materially and adversely affect our results of operations or that
any such scquisition will be successful in enhancing our business. To the extent that we are unable to manage growth
cfficiently and cffectively or are unable to attract and retain additional gualified management personnel, our business,
financial condition and results of operations conld be matenally and adversely affected,

(On Movember 30, 2023, the Company acquired New Zealand-based Pacific Helmets NZ Limited (“Pacific™) in an all-cash
transaction valued at approximately 58.5 million, subject to post-closing adjustments and customary holdback provisions,
Pacific Helmets is a leading designer and manufacturer of helmeis for the struciural firefighting, wildland firefighting, and
rescue markets, The acquisition enhances Lakeland's product pontfolio, particularly within fire service.

Beginning i October 2021, the Company has made a senes of strategic investments totaling $£.0 million in Inova Design
Solutions Lid. (doing business as Bodytrak®) (“Bodwirak™) as a step toward entering the Connected Worker Market (or
“Smart FPE.” Through January 31, 2024, the Company has recognized a total of 51,1 million in losses from its investment in
Bodytrak. The Company may incur additional losses.

On February 5, 2024, the Company acquired Italy and Romania-based Jolly Scarpe 5.p.A. and Jolly Scarpe Romania 5.R.L.
(collectively, “Jolly"”) in an all-cash ransaction valued at approximately 9.3 million subject to post-closing adjustments and
customary holdback provisions. Jolly is a leading designer and manufacturer of professional footwear for the fircfighting,
military, police, and rescue markets, The company is headguartered in Montebelluna, [taly, with manufacturing operations in
Bucharest, Romania, and has 150 emplovees. Jolly provides a differentiated product portfolio through its continued
investment in rescarch and development and the use of modern materials and cutting-edge technologics in the production of
its footwear. See Note 15, “Subsequent Events,” to the consolidated financial statements in ltem 8 of this Annual Repont on
Form 10-K for additional information,

Changes in financiol accounting standards or policies fave affected, and in e future may affect, our reported financial
condition or results of operations; there are inherent fimitations fo our system of imternal controls; changes in corparate
governance reguirements, policies and practices may impact our business.

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements in
accordance with GAAP requires that we make ¢stimates and assumptions that affect the recorded amounts of assets,
liahilities and net income during the reporting period. A change in the facts and circumstances surrounding those estimates
could result in a change to our estimates and could impact our future operating results, GAAP is subject to interpretation by
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASR”), the SEC and various bodics formed to interpret and create accounting
policies. A change in those policies can have a significant effect on our reported results and may affect our reporting of
transactions that arc compleied before a change 15 announced. A significant change in our accounting judgmenis could have a
significant impact on our reported revenue, gross profit, assels and liabilitics. In general, changes to accounting rules or
challenges to our interpretation or application of the rules by regulators may have a material adverse effect on our reported
financial results or on the way we conduct busincss,

Owr system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures was designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving its
objectives. However, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if
any, have been or will be detected. As a result, there can be no assurance that our system of intemal and disclosure controls
and procedures will be successful in preventing all errors, theft and fraud or in informing management of all material
information in a timely manner, For example, as disclosed in [tem 9A of this annual report, we have remediated a material
weakness related to controls over our forcign subsidiary currency translation or remeasurement o ¢nsure the foreign
subsidiary’s account balances were accurately stated in the conselidated financial statements. We can give no assurance that
additional material weakneszes will not arize in the futre.



Finally. corporate governance, public disclosure and compliance practices conlinue 10 evalve based on continuing legislative
action, SEC mlemaking and policy positions faken by large institutional stockholders and proxy advisors. As a result, the
number of rules, regulations and standards applicable 1o us may become more burdensome to comply with, could increase
serutiny of our practices and policies by these or other groups and increase our legal and financial compliance costs and the
amount of time management must devote to governance and compliance activities. For example, the SEC has recently
adopted rules requining that issuers provide sigmificantly increased disclosures concerning cybersecurity risk management,
strategy, wovernance and incident reporting and adopt more stingent executive compensation clawback policies. Increasing
regulatory burdens and corporate governance reguirements could make it more difficult for us to amract and retain gualified
members of our Board of Directors and qualified executive officers,

Financial Risks

hir results of aperations could be negatively affected by potential uctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

Most of our assembly arrangements with our foreign-based subsidianies or third-party supplicrs require payment o be made
in U5, dollars or the Chinese Renminbi (“RMB™). Any decrease in the value of the ULS, dollar or RMB in relation to foreign
currencies could increase the cost of the services provided 1o us upon contract expirations or supply renegotiations, There can
be no assurance that we will be able to increase product prices to offset any such cost increases, and any failure 1o do so
could have a material adverse effect on our business. financial condition and resulis of operations.

We are also exposed 1o foreign currency exchange rate risks as a result of our sales o customers in foreign countries in the
amount of 3693 million in FY 24, Our sales in these countries are usually denominated m the local currency. 1T the value of
the L5, dollar increases relative to these local currencies, and we are unable 1o raise our prices proportionally, then our profit
margins could decrease because of the exchange rate change,

Due to our purchases and sales in other countries, we are exposed (o changes in foreign currency exchange rates. To manage
this volatility, we seek o limil, o the extent possible, our non-1U5 dollar-denominated purchases and zales.

In connection with our operations in China, we purchase a significant amount of products from outside of the United States,
However. our purchases in China are pnmarily made in the RMB, the value of which has floated for the last 6 years, and
therefore we have been exposed to additional forcign exchange rate risk on our Chinese raw material and component
purchases,

Chur primary risk from foreign currency exchange rate changes is presently related to non-US dollar-denominated sales in
China, Canada and Europe and, to a smaller extent, in South American countries and Russia. Our sales to customers in
Canada are denominated in Canadian dollars, Europs in Euros and British pounds, and China in EMB and U.S, dollars. 17 the
value of the U5, dollar increases relative to the Canadian dollar, the Pound, the Ewro, or the RMB, then our net sales could
decrease as our products would be more expensive o these intemational customers because of changes in the rate of
exchange. When appropniate, we manage the foreign currency nisk through forward contracts against the Canadian dollar,
Australian dollar, New Zealand dollar and Euwro and through cash flow hedges in the LS. against the RMB and the Euro, We
do not hedge other currencies at this time, In the event that non-U.5, dollar-denominated international purchases and sales
grow, exposure to volatility in exchange rates could have a material adverse impact on our financial resulis,

Covenants in our credit facilities may restrice our financial and operating flexibility,

As a result of the Loan Agreement the Lumparr}r entered into on June 25, 2020, as amended to date, we currently have a
540.0 million revolving credit facility, expinng March 25, 2029, Our credit facility requires, and any future credit facilities
may also require, among others that we comply with specified financial covenants relating to fixed charge coverage and
investment in acquisitions. Our ability to satisfy these financial covenants can be affected by events beyond our control, and
we cannot guarantee that we will meet the requirements of these covenants.

On March 3, 2023, the Company changed the benchmark interest rate in our credit facility from the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) to the Sccured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”). At January 31, 2024, we did not have any
outstanding debt under our credit facility.

We may need additional funds, and if we are unable to obtain these funds, we may not be able to expand or aperate our
business ax planned,

Our operations require significant amounts of cash, and we may be required to seck additional capital, whether from sales of
equity or by borrowing money. to fund acquisitions for the future growth and development of our business or to fund our
opcrations and inventory, pariicuilarly in the event of a market downturm.

A number of factors could affect our ability 10 access future debt or equity financing, including:

Our financial condition, strength and credit rating;

The financial markels' confidence in our management team and financial reporting;

General economic conditions and the conditions in the homeland secunty and energy sectors; and
Capital markets conditions,



Even if available, additional financing may be more costly than our current facility and may have adverse consequences. [F
additional funds are raised through the incurrence of debt, we will incur increased debt servicing costs and may become
subject 1o additional restrictive financial and other covenants. We can give no assurance as to the terms or availability of
additional capital. Although management believes it currently has sufficient capital, if we do need additional capital in the
future and are unsuccessful, it could reduce our net sales and matenally adversely impact our carming capability and financial

proSitIon.

Adverse developments affecting the financial services fndusiry, including evenis or concerns involving Nguidity, defaulis
or ormence by financial institutions or transactional counterparties, coufd adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations,

Events invalving limited liquidity, defaults, non-performance or other adverse developments that affect financial institutions,
transactional counterparties or other companies in the financial services industry or the financial services industry generally,
of concems or rumors about any events of these kinds or other similar risks, have in the past and may in the future lead to
market-wide liquidity problems. Although we assess our banking and customer relationships as we believe necessary or
appropriate, our access 1o funding sources and other credit arrangements in amounts adequate 1o finance or capitalize our
current and projected [uture business operations could be sigmficantly impaired by factors that affect us, the fnancial
services industry or economy in general. These factors could include, among others, events such as liquidity constraints or
failures, the ability to perform obligations under various types of financial, credit or liguidity agreements or amangements,
disruptions or instability in the financial services indusiry or financial markets, or concems or negative expectations about the
prospects for companies in the financial services industry,

In addition, investor concemns regarding the LS. or intemmational financial systems could result in less favorable commercial
financing terms, including higher interest rates or costs and tighter financial and operating covenants or systemic limitations
on access to credit and liquidity sources, therchy making it more difficalt for us o acquire financing on acceptable terms or at
all. Any decline in available funding or access to our cash and liquidity resources could have material adverse impacts on our
licquidity and our business, financial condition or resulis of operations,

Af our goodwill, other infangible assers and long-lived assets become impaired, we may be reguired fo record significant
cfvarges fo earnings,

We review our long-lived assets for impairment when events of changes in circumstances indicate the carrving amount may
nol be recoverable, Goodwill and indefinie-lived intangible assets are required 10 be assessed for impairment al least
annually. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstances, indicating that the carrying amount of our goodwill,
indefimite-lived intangible assets or long-lived assets may not be recoverable, include slower growth rates in our markets,
reduced expected future cash flows, increased country risk premiums as a result of pelitical uncertainty and a decline in stock
price and markel capitalization. We consider avalable current information when calculabing our impairment charge. IT there
are indicators of impairment, our long-term cash flow forecasts for our operations deteriorate or discount rates increase, we
may be required 1o recognize additional impairment charges in later periods.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

We deal in countries wiere corruption is an abstacle.

We must comply with American laws such as the Foreign Cormupt Practices Act (FCPA) and Sarbanes-Oxley and also with
anticorruption legislation in the UK. Some of our competitors and customers in foreign junsdictions may not adhere to such
legislation. As a result, we belicve that we lose sales onders due to our strict adherence to such regulations.

We are subject fo various US. and foreign fax laws, and any changes in these laws related fo the favation of businesses
anid resolutions of tax disputes could adversely affect our reswlts of operations.

The U8, Congress, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) and other government agencies
in jurisdictions in which we invest or do business have maintained a focus on issues related to the tuxation of multinational
companies, The OECD has changed numerous long-standing tax principles through its base erosion and profit shifting
(“BEPS") project, which could adversely impact our effective tax rate,

We are subject to regular review and audit by foreign and domestic tax authorities, While we believe our tax positions will be
susiained, the final ouicome of tax audiis and related litigation may dilfer materially from the tax amounts recorded in our
consolidated financial statements, which could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated resulis of operations,
financial condition and cash flows,



We may be subfect to product Bability claims, and insurance coverage conld be inadequate or unavailable to cover these
cfaims,

We manufacture products used for protection from hazardous or potentially lethal substances, such as chemical and
biological toxins, fire, viruses and bacteria. The products that we manufacture are typically used in applications and
situations that involve high levels of risk of personal injury. Failure to use our products for their intended purposes. failure to
use our products properly or the malfunction of our products could result in serious bodily injury or death of the user. In such
cases, we may be subject w0 product liability claims arising from the design, manufacture or sale of our products, I these
claims are decided against us and we are found to be hable, we may be required to pay substantial damages, and our
insurance costs may inerease significantly as @ result. We cannot assure vou that our insurance coverage would be sufficient
to cover the payment of any potential cloim. In addition, we cannot assure vou that this or any other insurance coverage will
continue to be available or, if available, that we will be able to obtain it at a reasonable cost. Any matenial uninsured loss
could have a material adverse cffect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Envirommeental laws and regulations may subfect us to significant Babilities.

Our U5, operations, including our manufacturing facilities, are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations relating 1o the discharge, storage, treatment, handling. disposal and remediation of certain materials, substances
and wastes. Any violation of any of those laws and regulations could cause us to incur substantial hability 1o the ULS,
Environmental Protection Agency, to the state environmental agencies in any affected state or to any individuals affected by
any such violation. If hazardous substances are relcased from or located on any of our propertics, we could incur substantial
costs and damages, Any such liability could have a matenal adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations,

For example, governmental authorities in the LS, and in other jurisdictions are increasingly focused on potential
contamination resulting from PFAS, Products containing PFAS have been used in manufacturing, industrial, and consumer
applications over many decades, incleding in some of our component materials purchased from supplicrs. In 2021, the Biden
Administration announced a multi-agency plan o address PFAS contamination, and the US, Environmental Prolection
Agency released its PFAS Strategic Roadmap, which dentified a comprehensive approach 1o addressing PFAS. In August
2021, the U.S. EPA proposed o designate perflucrooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) and perfluoroocianoic acid (PFOA), iwo of
the most common PFAS chemicals, as hazardous substances, which could have wide-ranging impacis on companics across
vanous industnes, including ours. We may incur costs in connection with any obligations to transition away from the usage
of PFAS-containing products, to dispose of PFAS-containing waste or to remediate any PFAS comamination, which could
have a negative effect on our financial position, resulis of operations and cash flows,

In addition, some environmenial laws impose liability, sometimes withoul fault, for investigating and'or cleaning up
contamination on, of emanating from, properties currently or formerly owned, leased or operated by a person, as well as for
damages o property or natural resources and personal injury ansing oul of such contamination. Such hability may be joini
and several, meanming that we could be held responsible for mere than our share of the hability involved, or even the entire
linbility.

The regulatory environment in which we operate is subject to change, and new regulations and new or existing claims, such
as those related 1o cermain PFAS substances, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations or make aspects of our business as currently conducted no longer possible. For example, the Company
has been named as a party to a number of lawsuits filed by firefighters related to exposure o PFAS in ﬁ.rc['ghl:ﬂ Turmioul
gear, These cases are consolidated in fn re: Agueous Eilm-Forming Foams Prodwets Lighilitv Litigation, MDL No.: 2:18-mn-
2ET3-RMG (District of South Carolina, Charleston Division). We may. in the future, be suh;:-cct to additional claims n.-!nt:d to
PFAS, including for degradation of natural resources from such PFAS and persenal injury or product liability claims as a
result of human exposure to such PFAS,

Provisions in our restated certificate of incorporation, by-faws, and Defaware law could make a merger, tender offer or
proxy contest difficult,

Owr restated certificate of incorporation contains classified board provisions, authorized prefemred stock that could be utilized
to implement vanous “poisen pill” defenses and a stockholder authorized, but as yet unused, Emplovee Stock Ownership
Plan (*ESOP”), all of which may have the effect of discouraging a takeover of Lakeland, which is not approved by our board
of directors, Further, we are subject to the antitakcover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware (eneral Corporation Law,
which prohibil us from engaging in a “business combination™ with an “interested siockholder™ for a period of three years
after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder unlfess the business combination is
approved in the presenbed manner,



Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

The market price of our commeon stock may fluctuate widely.

The market price of our commaon stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response 0 quarter-fo-quarter varations
in our operating results, announcemenis of new products or services by us or our competitors and other events or factors, For
example, a shorifall in net sales or net income, or an increase in losses, from levels expected by securities analysts or
investors, could have an immediate and significant adverse effect on the market price of our common stock, Volume
fluctuations that have particularly affected the market prices of many micro and small capitalization companics have often
been unrclated or disproportionate to the operating performance of these companies. These fluctuations and gencral

economic and market conditions may adversely afTect the market price for our commion stock.

In February 2023, the Company began paying a quarterly cash dividend. Fulure quarterly dividends are subject 1o declaration
by the Company’s Board of Directors, and the Company's share repurchase programs de not obligate it to acquire any
specific number of shares. If the Company fails to meet expectations related to future growth, profitability, dividends, share
repurchases or other market expectations, the price of the Company’s stock may decline significantly, which could have a
material adverse impact on investor confidence and employee retention.

ITEM IB: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Mone,

ITEM 1C: CYBERSECURITY

Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy

We recognize the imponance of assessing, identifying. and managing material risks associated with cybersecurity threans, as
such term is defined in [tem 106(a) of Regulation S-K. These risks include, among other things, operational disruption,
intellectual property thefl, fraud, extortion, harm o employees or customers, violation of privacy or security laws and other
litigation and legal risks, and reputational risks, We have implemented several cybersecurity processes, technologies, and
controls to aid in our efforts to assess, identify, and manage such material nsks.

To wdentify and assess material risks from cybersecunty threats, our enterprise risk management program considers
cybersecurity threat risks alongside other company risks as pan of our overall risk assessment process, Our enterprise risk
professionals collaborate with subject manter specialists, as necessary, to gather insights for identifying and asscssing
matenal cybersecurity threat nsks, thewr seventy, and potential mitigations. We cmploy a range of tools and services,
including regular network and endpoint monitoring, vulnerability assessments, and penetration testing, to inform our
professionals’ nsk identification and assessment,

We also have a cybersecurity specific risk assessment process, which helps idemtily our eybersecurity threat risks by
comparing our program 1o best practices, 25 well as by engaging expents 1o attempt 1o infiltrate our information systems (as
such term is defined in [tem 106(a) of Regulation 5-K ). We test and review the result on an annual basis.,

Our cvbersecunity program includes controls designed to prevent, wdentify, protect against, detect, respond 10 and recover
from cybersecurity moidents (as such term is defined in Iem 106(a) of Regulation 5-K ), and to provide for the availability of
critical data and systems and 10 maintain regulatory compliance. These controls include the following activitics:

. momtor emerging data protection laws and implement changes 1o our processes designed 1o comply;

. conduct regular cybersccurity management and incident training for all employees;

. conduct regular phishing email simulations for all employees with access to corporate email systems o
enhance awareness and responsiveness to such possible threats. Any employee who fails a phishing test is
automatically enrolled in additional cyvber training;

. through policy, practice and contract (as applicable) require emplovees, as well as third partics who provide
services on our behalf, to treat customer information and daa with care;

. maintain multiple lavers of controls, including embedding technological and administrative security features

inte our technology investments, multi-factor authentication tools, system access policies and privileges, and

network configuration;

perform annual system access audit with all departments and personnel;

review access logs and continually monitor detection alerts;

conduct annual fabletop exercises to simulate cvber incidenis to refine cyber security pelicies, further;

implement a remote disaster recavery backup zite and fail over testing.

We perform periodic internal assessments to test our cybersecurity controls and regularly evaluate our palicies and
procedures surrounding our handling and control of personal data and the svstems we have in place o help protect us from
cybersecunity or personal data breaches, and we perform periodic internal assessments o test our conirols and 1o help us
identify arcas for continued focus, improvement, and/or compliance.
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We have established a cyvbersecurity risk management process that includes internal reporting of =ignificant cybersecurity
risk to our board when found. In addition, our incident response plan coordinates the activities we take 1o prepare for, detect,
respond to and recover from cybersecurity ncidents, These include processes to triage, assess seventy, escalate, contain,
investigate, and remediate the incident, as well as comply with potentially applicable legal obligations and mitigate brand and
reputational damage.

Orur processes also address cvbersecurity threat risks associated with our use of third-party service providers, including those
in our supply chain or who have access to our customer and emplovee data or our systems. Third-party nisks are included
within our cnterprise risk Mmanagement program, as well as our cvbersecurity-specific risk dentification program, both of
which arc discussed above. In addition, cybersecunity considerations affect the sclection and oversight of our third-party
service providers.

We describe whether and how risks from identified cybersecurity threats, including as a result of any previous cybersecurity
incidents, have materially affected or are reasonably likely to marenally affect us, including our business sirategy, resulis of
operations, or financial condition, under the heading “Cvbersecurity incidents could disrupt business operations, result in the
foss o critical and confidential information and adversely impact our reputation and resalts of operations™ included as pant
of our risk factor disclosures at ltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K which dizclosures are incorporated by reference
herein.

In the last three fiscal vears, we have not expenienced any matenal cybersecurity incidents and the expenses we have incurred
from them were immaterial. This incledes penalties and settlements, of which there were none.

Cybersecurity Governance

Cybersecurity i3 an important part of our enterprise nsk management program and an ares of increasing focus for our Board
and management, We have established a Cyber Security Council, comprised of top-level exccutives and board members, that
acts under the oversight of our Audit Committee. The Cyber Security Council is responsible for the oversight of risks from
cybersecurity threats, Management is informed about and monitors the prevention, mitigation, detection, and remediation of
cybersecunity incidents through their management of and participation in the cybersecunity nsk management process
described above, including the operation of our incident response plan, Annually, the Cyber Security Council receives an
overview from managemenl of our eybersecurity threal risk management process and stralegy covering topics such as data
security posture, results from secunity sssessments, progress towards pre-determined risk-mitigation-related poals, our
incident response plan, and material cybersecurity threat risks or incidents and developments, as well as the seps
management has taken to respond 1o such risks. In such sessions, the Cyber Security Council generally receives materials,
incheding current and emerging material eybersecurity threat risks and describing the company’s ability to mitigate those
risks, and discusses such matters with our Viee President of Information Technology.

Members of the Cyber Security Council are also encouraged to regularly engage in ad hoc conversations with management
on cybersecurity-related news events and discuss any updates o our cybersecurity risk management process, Material
cybersecurity threat risks are also considered during separate Board meeting discussions of important matters like enterprize
risk management, operational budgeting, business continuity planning, mergers and acquisitions, brand management, and
other relevant matlers. Any potential threat or incident is reporied to the Cyber Security Council based on the severity and
potential risk based on the escalation procedure as defined by the Incident Response Plan.

Our cybersecurity risk management process, which is discussed in greater detail above, is led by our Vice President of
Information Technology. This individual has over thirty years of prior work experience in various [Information Technology
roles including managing information systems and sccurity.

Ouwr Vice President of Information Technology and technology professionals have d expenience and skills related to the
development, implementation and monitoring of cyvber technology assets, Our technology s1aiT and parners have a sirong
track record of working with major vendors” secunty, firewall, identity management, and other platforms.

ITEM L. PROPERTIES

COrur principal executive office 1 located at 1525 Penimeter Parkway Suite 325, Huntsville, AL 35806 United States. We own
or lease our primary facilities. We own our manufacturing Iocations in AnQui City, China and Jerez, Mexico. We lease our
manulacturing lecations in Buenos Aires, Argenting: Noida, India, and Xuan Trung Commune, Vietnam,

We believe that all of our facilities, including the manufacturing facilities, are in good repair and suitable condition for their
interded purpose,
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From lime 1o lime, we are a party (o litigation anising in the ordinary course of our business. We are not currently a parly lo
any livigation or other legal proceedings that we believe could reasonably be expected o have a matenial adverse effect on
our resulis of operations, financial condition or cash Tows,

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DMSCLOSURES
Mot applicable.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock 15 currently traded on the Nasdag Market under the symbol “LAKE.” On Apnl 5, 2024, there were 30
registered holders of our shares of common stock. This number of registered holders does not represent the actual number of
beneficial owners of our common stock because shares are frequently held in “street name™ by securitics dealers and others
for the benefit of individual owners who have the right to vote their shares,

Dividend Policy

Prior to February 2023, we had not paid any cash dividends on our common stock. In February 2023, the Company began
paying a quarterly cash dividend of 50.03 per share. The payvment and rate of future cash or stock dividends, if any, or stock
repurchase programs are subject (o the discretion of our board of directors and will depend wpon our camings, financial
condition, capital or contractual restrictions under our eredin facilities and other factors. There is no guarantee that additional
dividends will be declared and paid at any time.

Muaximum
Total Number Dallar
of Shares Amount of
Purchased Shares thai
Total as Part of May Yet Be
Number Average Publicly Purchased
Issuer Purchase of Equily Securities of Shares Price Paid Announced Under
Perind Purchased per Share Programs the Programs
MNovember | — November 30......oovveeerreeeerveseeesrinsneens — 3 - - 5 5,030,479
December 1 — Diecember 31 visisissseesimsneins -— % --- — & 5030479
January | = January 31 .......... - & — - & 5,030,470
B - % - - 5030479

dly

Represents the amount remaining under our share repurchase program as of January 31, 2024,

On February 17, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program under which the Company
may repurchase up to 85 million of its outstanding common stock, On July &, 2021, the Board of Directors authorized an
increase in the Company's then-current stock repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up o an
additional 55 million of its outstanding common stock, On Aprl 7, 2022, the Board of Directors authonzed a new stock
repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to 35 million of its outstanding common stock, which
became effective upon the completion of the prior share repurchase program. On December 1, 2022, the Board of Directors
authorized an increase in the share repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to an additional 35
million of its outstanding common stock. The share repurchase program has no expiration date but may be terminated by the
Board of Directors at any time.

We do not have any other share repurchase programs.
ITEM 6. [RESERVED]

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

You should read the folfowing summary together with the more detailed business information and consolidated financial
statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in the docunents that we incorporate by referernce
frrtir thix Form [0-K. This document may contain cevtain “forward-fooking ™ information within the meaning of the Private
Securfties Livigarion Reform Act of 1995, This information invelves risks and ancertainties. Cur actual resulis may differ
merterially from the resulis divcnssed in the forward-looking statements. fn this Form [0=-K, (o) “FY" means fiscal vear; thus
for example, FY24 refers to the fiscal vear ended Janwary 31, 2024, and i) "Q" refers toa guarter; thus, for example, (04
FY24 refers to the fourth quarter of the fiscal vear ended Januwary 31, 2024



Overview

We manufacture and sell a comprehensive line of industrial protective clothing and accessornies for the industrial and public
protective clothing market. Our products are sold globally by our in-house sales teams, our customer service group, and
authonized independent sales representatives to a network of over 2,000 global safety and industrial supply diswributors. Owr
suthorized dismbutors supply end users, sich as integrated oil, chemical/petrochemical. automobile, steel, glass,
construction, smelting, cleanroom, janitorial, pharmaceutical, and high fechnology electronics manufacturers, as well as
scientific, medical laboratorics and the utilitics industry. In addition, we supply federal, state and local governmental
agencics and departiments, such as fire and law enforcement, airport crash rescue units, the Depanment of Defense, the
Department of Homeland Security and the Centers for Disease Control. Internationally, we sell 10 a mixture of end users
directly and to industrial distributors depending on the particular country and market. In addition to the United States, sales
are madc to more than 50 forcign countrics, the majority of which were in China, countries within the European Economic
Community ("EEC™), Canada, Chile, Argentina, Russia, Kazakhstan, Colombia, Mexico, Ecuador, India, Middle East and

countrics within Southeast Asia,
We had net sales of $124.7 million in FY 24 and $112.8 million in FY23.

We have operated facilities in Mexico singe 1993 and in China since 1996, Beginning in 1995, we moved the labor-intensive
sewing operation for our limited use/disposable protective clothing lines to these facilities. Our facilities and capabilities in
China and Mexico allow our access to a labor pool that is less expensive than that available in the United States and permits
us to purchase certain raw materials at a lower cost than they are available domestically. During FY 24, the Company was
impacted by tanfl costs on certain products imported from China. The Company has been able 1o pass along a portion of
these costs to its customers. We added manufacturing operations in Vietnam and India in fiscal 2009 to offset increasing
manufacturing costs in China and further diversify our manufacturing capabilitics. Our China operations will continue
primarily manufacturing for the Chinese market and other markets where duty advantages exist. Manufacturing expansion is
not only necessary to control rising costs, it is also necessary for Lakeland to achieve its growth objectives,

Our net sales attributable 1o customers outside the United States were $69.4 million and $63.9 million for the fiscal years
ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

On November 30, 2023, we acquired New Zealand-based Pacific Helmets NZ Limited (“Pacific™) in an all-cash transaction
valued at approximately 53.6 million, subject to post-closing adjustmenis and customary holdback provisions. Pacific is a
leading designer and manufacturer of helmets for the structural firefighting, wildland firefighting, and rescue markets. The
company has 70 employees and is headquartered in Whanganui, New Zealand. Pacific provides differentiated product
offenings through its innovative and premium solutions. The existing staff and the majority of the management team will
remain in place and will continue to service customer needs.

On December 2, 2022, we acquired UK-based Eagle Technical Products Limited (“Eagle™) in an all-cash transaction valued
at approximately 5105 million, net of net working capital acquired, subject to post-closing adjustments and potential future
camout payments, The acquisition enhances Lakeland's product portfolio, particularly within fire service protective clothing
and expands its sales presence in the Middle East and Europe, Headguartered in Manchester, UK, Eagle is a leading designer
and provider of protective apparel 1o the fire and industrial sectors, Eagle provides differentiated product offerings through its
innovative and technical solutions,

The cost o manufaciure and distribute our products is influenced by the cost of raw matenals, finished goods, labor, and
transportation. During FY24, we have experienced continued inflationary pressure and higher costs as a result of the
increasing cost of raw materials, finished goods, labor, transportation, and other administrative costs associated with the
normal course of busingss. The inerease in the cost of raw materials and finished goods is due in part 1o a shomage in the
availability of certain products, the higher cost of shipping, and inflation. We can only pass elevated costs onto customers in
an effort to offset inflationary pressures on a limited basis. Future volatility of general price inflation and the impact of
inflation on costs and availability of materials, costs for shipping and warchousing and other operational overhead could
adversely affect our financial results.



Impaci of Russia’s Invasion of Ukraine on Our Business

The current conflict between Russia and Ukraine is creating substantial uncertainty about the role Russia will play in the
glohal economy in the future. Although the length, impact, and outcome of the ongoing military conflict between Russia and
Ukrame are highly unpredictable, this contliet could lead to sigmificant market disreptions and other disruptions. The
cscalation or continuation of this conflict presents heightened risks and has resulted and could continue to result in volatile
commodity markets, supply chain disruptions, increased nsk of evber incident or other disraptions to information systems,
heightenied risks 10 employee safety, significant volatility of the Russian ruble, limitations on access to credit markets,
increased operating costs (including fuel and other input costs), the frequency and volume of failures to scttle securitics
transactions, inflation, potential for increased volatility in commedity, currency and other financial markets, safety risks, and
restrictions on the ransfer of funds o and from Russia, We cannot predict how and the extent 10 which the conflict wall
affect our customers, operations or business partners or the demand for our products and our global business. Depending on
the actions we take or are required to take, the ongoing conflict could also result in loss of cash, asscts or impairment
charges. Addivionally, we may also face negative publicity and reputational nisk based on the actions we take or are required
to take as a result of the conflict, which could damage our brand image or corporate reputation. We are continually
monitoring the potential financial impact of the Russian invasion of Ukraine on our operations.

Dur business in Russia accounted for approximately 3.0% and 2.4% of our consolidated net revenues for the years ended
Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Our assets in Russia were approximately 2.6% and 2.5% of our consolidated assets
at January 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The net book value of our assets in Russin on January 31, 2024 was
approximately 54.0 million, of which 0.3 million is cash. We currently have not recognized any impairment charges related
1o the asscts of our Russian business. However, the extent, sevenity, duration and outcome of the conflict between Russia and
Ukraine and related sanctions could potentially impact the value of our assets in Russia as the conflict continues. Our Russian
business 15 part of our Cther Foreign segment.

Our sales in Ukraine were not significant.

Critical Accounting Policics and Estimates

Revenie Recognition. Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from product sales. which consist of sales of the
Company’s personal protective wear products to distributors, The Company considers purchase orders to be a contract with a
customcr. Contracts with customers are considered to be shont-term when the time between order confirmation and
satisfaction of the performance obligations is equal to or less than one vear, and virtually all of the Company's contracts are
shori-term. The Company recognizes revenue for the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflecis the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company typically satisfies its
performance obligations in contracts with customers upon shipment of the goods. Generally, payment is due from customers
within 30 to 90 days of the invoice date, and the contracts do not have significant financing components. The Company
clected 1o account for shapping and handling activities as a fulfillment cost rather than a separate performance obligation.
Shipping and handling costs associated with outbound freight are included in operating expenses, and for FY24 and FY23
aggregated approximately $3.4 million and 53.2 million, respectively. Taxes collected from customers relating to product
sales and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from revenue.

The tranzaction price includes estimates of variable consideration related to rebates, allowances, and discounts that are
reductions in revenue, All estimates are based on the Company's historical expericnce, anticipated performance, and the
Company’s best judgment at the time the cstimate is made. Estimates for variable consideration are reassessed cach reporting
period and are included in the transaction price to the extent it 15 probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur upon resolution of unceriainty associated with the vanable consideration. All the Company’s
contracts have a single performance obligation satisfied af a point in time and the transaction price is stated in the contraet,
usually as quantity times price per unit.

Imventories. Inventories include freighi-in, materials, labor and overhead cosis and are stated at the lower of cosi {on a first-
in, first-out or moving average basis) or net realizable value. Allowances are recorded for slow-moving, obsolete or unusable
inventory. We assess our inventery for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory and write down the difference
between the cost of mventory and the estimated net realizable value based upon assumptions about future sales and supply on
hand, if necessary. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional invemory
write-downs may be required. The Company recorded approximately 83 4 million and $1.3 million in inventory adjustments
i FY24 and FY23, respectively. The inventory adjustments in FY24 included 523 million in adjustments for certain
products that the Company decided to discontinue or no lenger support from a sales and marketing perspective.
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Income Taves, The Company i3 required fo estimate its income faxes in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates as parni
of preparing the consolidated financial statements. This involves cstimating the actual current tax in addition to assessing
temporary differences resulting from differing treatments for 1ax and financial accounting purposes, These differences,
together with net operating loss carrylorwards and tax credits, are recorded as deferred tax assets or liabilities on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. A judgment must then be made of the likelihood that any deferred tax assets will be
recoverad from future taxable income. A valsation allowandce may be required o reduce deferred tax assets to the amauint
that is more likely than not to be realized. In the event the Company determines that it may not be able to realize all or part of
its deferred tax asset in the future or that now estimates indicate that a previously recorded valuation allowance is no longer
required, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset is charged or credited to income in the period of such determination. In
F¥24 and FY23, we recorded a change m our valuation allowance of approximately $3.1 milhon and $0.4 milhion,
respectively,

The Company recognizes tax positions that meet a “more likely than not™ minimum recognition threshold, [F necessary, the
Company recognizes interest and penalties associated with tax maiters as part of the income tax provision and would include
accrued interest and penaltics with the related tax liability in the consolidated balance sheets.

Business combinations, In accordance with the accounting guidance for business combinations, the Company uses the
acquisition method of accounting to allocate costs of acquired businesses to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on their estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Assigning fair market values to the assets acquired and liabilities assumied at the
date of an acquisition requires knowledge of current market values and the values of assets in use and often reguires the
application of judgment regarding estimates and assumptions. While the ultimate responsibility resides with management, for
matenal acquisitions, we retan the services of cerified valuation specialists to assist with assigming estimated values to
certain acquired assets and assumed lisbilities, including intangible assets, tangible long-lived asscts, and contingent
consideration. Acquired intangible assets, excluding goodwill, are valued using certain discounted cash flow methodologies
based on fiture cash flows specific to the tvpe of intangible assct purchased. Scveral significant assumptions and cstimates
were involved in the application of these valuation methods, including forecasted sales volumes and prices, royalty rates,
costs to produce, tax rales, discount rates, attrition rates and working capital changes.

If the contingent consideration i3 deemed significant or absent an agreed-upon payout amount, the initial measurement of
contingent consideration and the corresponding liability is evaluated wsing the Monte Carle Method. For this valuation
method. management develops projections during the contingent consideration period utilizing various potential pay-ouf
scenarios. Probabilities are applied to each potential scenario, and the resulting values are discounted using a rate tha
considers weighted average cost of capital as well as a specific risk premium associated with the nskiness of the contingent
consideration itself, the related projections, and the overall business. Should actual results increase or decrease as compared
to the assumption used in our analysis, the fair value of the contingent consideration obligations wall increase or decrease, up
to the contracted limit, as applicable. Changes in the fair value of the contingent carm-out consideration could cause a
muterial impact and volatility in our operating results.

Refer to Note |, “Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” and Note 5, “Acquisitions,” w0 the
consolidated financial statements in Item & of this Anmeal Report on Form 10-K for further information on the Company's
busincss acquisitions.

Equity Method Investments, Investments in which the Company can exercise significant influence but do not control, are
accounted for using the equity method and are presented on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s share of the net
camings or losses of the investee 15 presented within the consolidated statements of operations as other income (eXpensc),
The Company evaluates its equity method investments whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying
anwounts of such investments may be impaired. The primary factors the Company considers in s determination are the
length of time that the fair value of the investment is below the Company’s carrying value; the severity of the decline; and the
financial condition, operating performance and near-term prospects of the investee. If the decline in fair value is deemed to
ke other than temporary, the security is wrntten down to Fair value. In situations where the fair value of an investment is not
evident due to a lock of a public market price or other factors, the Company estimates fair value based on a discounted cash
flow model and a market-based approach using nputs which include expected cash flows and a discount rale representative
of the nisks within the underlyimg business and forecasts to amve at the estimated fair value of such investment. The
Company's assessment of the foregoing factors involves a high degree of judgment and sccordingly, actual resulis may differ
materially from the Company's estimates and judgments.
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Net Income Per Share. Basic nel income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
without consideration of common stock equivalents. Diluted net income per share is based on the weighted average number
of common shares and common stock equivalents. The diluted net income per share calculation takes into account unvested
restricted shares and the shares that may be issued upon the exercise of stock options and warranis, reduced by shares that
may be repurchased with the funds received from the exercise, based on the average price during the fiscal year,

Recent Developments
On February 1, 2024, the Company s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend. The quarterly dividend of $0.03
per share or approximately 50.2 mullion, was paid on February 22, 2024, 10 stockholders of record as of February 15, 2024,

On February 5, 2024, the *Company acquired Italy and Romania-hased Jolly Scarpe S.p.A. and Jolly Scarpe Romania S.R.L,
(collectively, “Jolly™) in an all-cash transaction valued at approximately $9.3 million subject to post-closing adjustments and
customary holdback provisions. The Company drew down $12.3 million on its credit line w fund the acquisition, with a
portion of the funds used to pavdown Jolly's existing debt. Jolly is a leading designer and manufacturer of professional
footwear for the firefighting, military, police. and rescue markets, The company is headquartered in Montebelluna, [aly, with
manufacturing operations in Bucharest, Romania, and has 150 emplovees. Jolly's primary customers are based in Europe,

On February 13, 2024, the Company made an additional funding investment of £500,000 (30,6 million on the date of
investment) in Bodytrak s convertible notes.

On March 28, 2024, the Company entered into Amendment No. 4 to the Loan Agreement by and between Bank of America,
MN.A (the “Lender™) and the Company (the “Feurth Amendment™). Pursuant 1o the Fourth Amendment, the Lender and the
Company agreed to, among other things, (1) extend the expiration date of the credit facibity to March 28, 2029, (i1) increase
the availability under the revolving credit facility to 5400 million with an accordion feature providing for the potential
funding of an additional $10.0 million, (i) remove the borrowing base component of the credit facility; and (iv) modify the
interest rate based on Daily SOFR plus the Applicable Rate. The Applicable Rate is based upon a Funded Debt 10 EBITDA
Ratio and includes four (4) different levels constituting a SOFR margin range from 1.25% to 2.00%, In addition, the Fourth
Amendment (i) modified the Funded Debt to EBITDA Ratio covenant s0 as nod to exceed 3.5% (with step-dovwns to 3.25 and
3.0 in 2025 and 2026),

(if) modified the Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant to a minimum of 1.20x, (i) includes a springing Asset
Coverage Ratio covenant of ail least 1.10x, but only to the extent that the maximum Total Leverage Ratio exceeds 3.00x ai
any reporting period, (iv) increases the sublimit for lemers of credit to 31000 million, and (v) imposes a floor to Daily SOFR
of one percent (1.00%). The Fourth Amendment provides for additional indebtedness or the assumplion of existing
indcbtedness for acquisitions of foreign subsidiaries (not to exceed $10.0 million in USDY) and increases the size of Permitted
Acquisitions, without prior approval from the Lender, to 517.5 million per occurrence and $35.0 milhon in the aggregate.

Significant Balance Sheet Fluctuation Jannary 31, 2024, as Compared to January 31, 2023

Cash increased by $0.7 million, prnimarily as a result of $10.8 million of cash provided by operations coupled with 54.6
million in proceeds from the sale of our Canada warchouse facility. The Company invested $5.4 million in the Pacific
acquisition and 52.2 million in Bodvtrak and $2.0 million in capital expenditures. The Company used 53.5 million in
financing activitics including paying down 31,4 million in debt acquired from Pacific, $0.4 million in the UK credit facility,
S0.3 million in stock repurchases and $0.9 million in dividends, Operating cash flow changes were driven by 57,6 million in
inventory reductions, increases in accruals of $2.5 million and increases in accounts receivables and prepayments of §1.5
million.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our external sales by our product lines and peographic regions and our historical results of
continuing operations as a percentage of our net sales from operations, for the years and three-months ended January 31,
2024 and 2023,

Three Months Ended January 31,
(Unaudited) Year Ended January 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
External Sales b}r Product Line:
Disposables.......ccou.. Ao e e DE R . 129 § 139 § 496 5 55.2
EIBIIICEL . rivmsien s saissisiminsuinn b e asibims 49 48 0.3 222
Fire Servlces 6.5 5.5 26.5 14.7
Gloves... 0.5 0.5 22 23
High thlhty & 12 1.2 .6 A8
High Fﬂfunmncc Wu:ar 1.7 1.2 6.9 5.0
Wovens... i 35 1.9 12.6 7.6
Consolidated external sales 5 312 § 290 § 1247 § 1128
Three Months Ended Jamuary 31,
(Unaudited) Year Ended January 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
External Sales h_',.r Tegion:
USA ... i A O N e A L AR 127 § 11.9 § 552 § 49.0
Other rl:lhTIETl ...... . 2 31 1.8 929 1.2
Europe (UK) ..o 37 30 16.3 B3
Mexico... 1.1 08 4.0 17
Asia_.. 4.0 86 13.8 4.7
{‘:m:ldu 21 21 94 9.1
Latin America. . " 4.3 18 16.1 10.%
Consolidated :!:[cmal mlc;_ £ 3.2 8 290 % 1247 § 128
Three Months Ended JTanuary 31,
{Unaudited) Year Ended January 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Met sales.... 100085 100.0% 1000.0% 1ML
Cost ofgoods mld 64.1% 62.5% 58.9% 59.4%
Giross profit.... 35.9% 17.5% 41.1% 40.6%
Operating uxpmsci............ 46.4% 37.2% 36.3% 15.7%
Operaling profit ..... (10.5)% 0.3% 4.8% 4.9%
Other income, net ... 11.5% 0.3% 2. 7% 0.0
Interest expense ... 01% 0% [N 0.1%
Incomne before tax ... LR 0.6% 1.5% 4.8%
Incanse tax expense ... i 405 (0.0)%% 3% 3%
Mt inCOmE (DOBE) ... o irrsisansereisamisionsi ssmiassissisasasssans (3.1)% 0.0% 4.4% 1.6%

Net Sales. Net sales increased (o $124.7 million for the vear ended January 31, 2024 compared to 5112.8 million for the vear
ended January 31, 2023, an increase of 5119 million. Sales in the U.S. increased $6.2 million or 12.7%, primarily duc to
increased sales of fire services gear and improvements in direct container sales. Sales 1o the Asian market decreased by $10.9
million or 44.1% due to the reduction in COVID-19% driven demand coupled with slow improvement in the Chinese indusirial
sector. Sales to the European market increased by $5.0 million or 96.4%. Eagle was the primary driver with an increase in
fire services sales of $7.2 million in FY 24, Eagle was acquired on December 2, 2022 and contributed $1.3 million in sales in
F¥23. The remaining increase was due to strengthening in European demand, primarily in the industrial seetor, Canada sales
increased by $0.3 million or 3.3% due to improvements in the industrial markets. Latin America sales increased $3.3 million
or 4%.1% duc to stronger sales in Argenting as many competitors have exited the market due to the weakening Argentine
peso and high inflation. Sales into Uruguay increased $1.1 million or 1.0 due to increased fire services onders. Sales into
the Mexican market increased by S0.3 million or 8.1%, driven by the strengthening Mexican peso against the US dollar.
Sales in our other foreign markets increased $2.2 million, including 51.0 million in sales from Pacific acquired in November,
and a $1.0 million increase in sales 10 the Russian market. Sales of our disposable and chemical product line were i

due o a reduction in COVID-19 demand, primarily in Asia offset by improving demand in our indusirial markets, Other
product lines, such as fire services, high performance, and wovens, increased by 5187 mullion due to strengthening demand
i those markets and the inpact of Eagle's sales dunng FY 24,
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Gross Proffi. Gross profit increased $5.4 million, or 11.8%, to $51.2 million for the year ended January 31, 2024, from $45.8
million for the vear ended January 31, 2023, Gross profil as a pereentage of net sales increased 1o 41.1% for the yvear ended
January 31, 2024 from 40.6% for the vear ended January 31, 2023, Gross profit performance in FY' 24 benefited from higher
volumes including direct comainer shipments, related factory utilization and an improving product mix with pricing power,
These improvements were offset by 323 million in inventory adjustments for certain end-of-life products and planned
disposal of certain products that were constraining manufacturing operations.

Operating Expense. Operating expenses increased 12.2% from 5403 million for the year ended January 31, 2023 to 3452
million for the vear ended January 31, 2024, Operating expenses as a percentage of net sales were 36.3% for the year ended
January 31, 2024, as compared 1o 35. 7% for the year ended January 31, 2023, Operating expenseés increased prmanly due to
Increases in currency translation expense of 1.7 million driven by the devaluation of the Argentine peso in December 2023,
restructuring costs of $0.3 million, administrative costs associated with the Monterrey, Mexico facility of $0.7 million,
aogquisiion-related expenses of $0.5 million, and increases in professional expenses, primarily legal and accounting, 10
support future initiatives. The remaining increase was due 10 increases in compensation, professional fees and intangibles
amortization. The Company evaluared the camout consideration accrual related 1o the Eagle acquisition and reduced the
accrual by 525 million, which was recorded duning FY 24 as a reduction in operating expenscs.

Operating Prafir. Operating profit increased o 36,0 million for the year ended January 31, 2024, from $5.5 million for the
year ended January 31, 2023, due to the impacts detailed above, Operating margin decreased o 4.8% for the year ended
January 31, 2024, compared to 4.9% for the year ended January 31, 2023,

Interest Expense. Interest expense was less than 30,1 mallion for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023,

(ther ncome. On November 27, 2023, the Company sold its office and warchouse facility in Brantford, Ontario to an
unrelated party for $4.9 million, The sale resulted in g pre-tax gain, after selling expenses, of approximately 538 million,
Going forward, the Company will utilize third party logistics providers for customer fulfillment in Canada,

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense consists of federal, state and foreign income taxes. Income tax expense was $3.9
million and included 50.8 million associated with the GILTI component of the Tax Act of 2017 for the year ended January
31, 2024, as compared to an income tax expense of $3.6 million and included $0.2 million associated with the GILTI
compenent of the Tax Act of 2017 for the year ended January 31, 2023, All international subsidiaries impacted the GILTI
compoenent of income lax expense. The Company changed its permanent reinvestment assertions for its Chinese operations
during the second quarter of FY23 due to increased volatility of the Chinese yuan and an updated evaluation of investment
strategies. The Company recorded 52.0 million i withholding taxes for a planned repatriation during FY 23,

Ner Income. Met income increased 1o 55,4 million for the year ended January 31, 2024 from 51.9 million for the year ended
January 31, 2023,

Fourth (ruarter Results
MNet sales and net loss were $31.2 mallion and ($0.0) mallion, respectively, for Q4 FY24, as compared 1o zales of 5290
million and net income of $0.6 million, for Q4 FY 23,

Factors affecting Q4 FY 24 results of operations inchuded:

. Improvement in sales for fire services due to the acquisition of Pacific and strengthening in the Latin America
markel, prinarily Argentina.

. Margins were impacted by the Argentine peso devaluation and, the wnte-down of the carrying value of
certain inventory.

. The Company recognized a gain on the sale of its Canada facility.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources

Al January 31, 2024, cash and cash cquivalents were approximately 525.2 million and working capital was approximately
§83.2 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased $0.5 million and working capital decreased £3.8 million from January 31,
2023 reflecting the impact of the Company’s purchase of Pacific and additional investment in Bodytrak offset by the sale of
our Canadian facility.Of the Company”s total cash and cash equivalents of 5325.2 million as of January 31, 2024, cash held in
Latin America of $4.1 million, cash held in Hong Kong of $1.7 million, cash held in the UK of $1.7 million, cash held in
Viemam of $0.8 million, cash held in India of $0.6 million and cash held in Canada of 54.5 million would not be subject to
additional US income tax in the event such cash was repatriated due 10 the change in the US. tax law as a result of the 2017
Tox Cuts and Jobs Act (the *Tax Act”). The Company monitors its finangial depositones by their credit rating, which vanes
b country, In addition, cash balances in banks in the United States are insured by the FRIC subject to certain limitations,
There was approximately $3.3 mullion included in U5, bank accounts and approximately $21.9 million in foreign bank
accounts as of January 31, 2024, of which $24.4 million was uninsured. These balances could be impacted if one or more of
the financial mstitutions with which the Company deposits its funds fails or is subject to other adverse conditions in the
financial or credit markets. To date, the Company has experienced no loss of principal or lack of access to invested cash or
cash equivalents; however, we can provide no assurance that access to our invested cash and cash equivalents will not be
affected iF the financial mstitutions that hold the Company's cash and cash equivalents fml. See Part 1, Item 1A, Risk Factors
i this Annual Report on Form [0-K under the caption “Adverse developments affecting the financial services industry,
including events or concems involving liquidity, defaulis or non-performance by financial institutions or transactional
counterpartics, could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.”

The Company strategically employs an intercompany dividend plan sud:jcct o subsidiary proﬁ1ahi|'tr1.r. cash requirements and
withholding taxes. During FY23 the Company changed its” permanent reinvestment assertions for its Chinese operations due
to the increased volatility of the Chinese yuan and an updated evaluation of investment strategies. During FY24 the
Company’s subsidiarics in Canada and China declared and paid dividends of $4.5 million and $7.0 million, respectively.

Net cash provided by operating activities of $10.9 million for the year ended January 31, 2024 was primarily duc to a
decrease in nel inventories of $7.7 million and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2.4 million ofTset by
an increase in accounts receivable and prepaids of 1.6 million due 10 stronger Q4 FY 24 sales. Net non-cash income ilems
were 330 million due tw the gain on the sale of our Canadian facility of 33.8 million and the revaluation of the Eagle eamout
of 52.5 million. These items were partially offsct by the impact of depreciation and amortization and cquity compensation
expense. Net cash used in investing activitics of $5.1 million for the vear ended January 31, 2024 includes the $5.5 million
Pacific acquisition and reflects the Company’s further investment of 52.2 million in Bodytrak®. Property and cquipment
purchases totaled $2.1 million primarily for equipment purchases in Mexico and Vietnam. These investments were offset by
34.6 million in proceeds from the zale of the Canadian facility. Wet cazh used in financing activities was 33.5 million for the
wear ended January 31, 2024 due to $0.9 million in dividends, $1.8 million in net debt repavments, primarily § 1.4 million of
debt acquired with the Pacific acquisition, $0.3 million of stock repurchases and 0.4 million in shares retumed 1o pay taxes
for our resinected stock programs.

MNet cash used in operating activitics of $5.5 million for the year ended January 31, 2023 was primarily due to an increase in
net inventories of 39.7 million and an increase inaccounts receivable of 32.3 million due to stronger Q4 FY 23 sales, partially
offset by non-cash expenses of 53.6 mullion for deferred taxes, depreciation and amortization, and stock compensation. Net
cash used in investing activities of 8165 million for the year ended January 31, 2023 includes the $10.5 million Eagle
acquisition and reflects the Company’s 531 million investment in Bodytrak®, Purchases of property and cquipment were
520 million as the Company increased capital expenditures in the year for the ERP project and equipment purchases in
Mexico and Vietnam. Net cash used in Ninancing aclivities was 55.9 million for the vear ended January 31, 2023 primarily
due 1o the purchase of 35.4 million of our common stock.

On June 25, 2020, we entered into a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement™) with Bank of America ("Lender™). The Loan
Agreement provides the Company with a secured 5125 million revolving credit facility, which includes a $5.0 million letter
of credit sub-facility. The Company may reguest from time to time an increase in the revolving credit loan commitment of up
to 55.0 million (for a wial commitment of up to £17.5 million). Borrowing pursuant to the revelving eredit facility is subject
to a bormrowing base amount caleulated as (a) 2096 of cligible accounts receivable, as defined, plus (b) 50% of the value of
acceptable mventory, as defined, minus (c) certain reserves as the Lender may establish for the amount of estimated
exposure, as reasonably determined by the Lender from time fo time, under cerlain interest rate swap contracts. The
borrowing base limitation only applies during periods when the Company’s quarterly funded debt 10 EBITDA ratio, as
defined. exceeds 2.00 to 1,00, The credit facility was to mature on June 25, 2025, Borrowings under the revolving credit
facility bear intcrest at a rate per annum equal to the sum of the LIBOR Daily Floating Rate (“LIBOR™), plas 125 basis
points. LIBOR is subject to a floor of 1K basis pomnts. On March 3, 2023 the Company changed the benchmark interest rate
in our credit facility from the LIBOR to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“S0FR”). All outstanding principal and
unpaid accrued interest under the revolving credin facility 13 due and pavable on the matunity date. On a one-time basis, and
subject 1o there not existing an event of defanlt, the Company may ¢lect to convert up to 55.0 million of the then outstanding
principal of the revolving credit facility to a term loan facility with an assumed amortization of 15 years and the same interest
rate and maturity date as the revolving credit facility. The Loan Agreement provides for an annual unused line of credit
commitment fee, pavable quarerly, of 0.25%, based on the difference between the tolal credit line commitment and the
average daly amount of credit outstanding under the facility duning the preceding quarter,
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On June 18, 2021, the Company entered into Amendment No. | to Loan Agreement (the “Amendment”) with the Lender,
which modified certain terms of the Company’s existing Loan Agreement with the Lender. The Amendment increased the
credit mit under the Loan Agreement’s semior secured revolving eredit facility from 5125 mullion to 525.0 million. The
Amcndment also amended the covenant in the Loan Agreement that restricts acquisitions by the Company or ifs subsidiarics
in order to allow, without the prior consent of the Lender. acquisitions of a business or its assets if there 15 no default under
the Loan Agreement and the aggregate consideration does not excecd 37.5 million for any individual acquisition or $15.0
million on a cumulative basis for all such acquisitions.

The Loan Agreement requires the Company to maintain a Funded Debt 1o EBITDA (as each such term 15 defined in the Loan
Agreement) ratio of 3.0 to L0 or less and a Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined i the Loan Agreement) of af
least 1,15 to 1.0, The Loan Agreement also confains customary covenants, inchuding covenants that, among other things,
limit or restrict the Company ‘s and/or the Company's subsidiaries ability, subject to ceriain excepiions and qualifications, o
incur liens or indebtedness, or merge, consolidate or sell or otherwise transfer assets.

On November 30, 2023, the Company entered into Amendment No. 3 1o the Loan Agreement by and between Bank of
America, NA. (the “Lender™) and the Company (the “Third Amendment™). Pursuant to the Third Amendment. the Lender
consented to the Company’s acquisition of one hundred percent (100%) of the cquity intercsts of Pacific. The Third
Amendment further provided for certain amendments to the Loan Agreement to permit additional indebtedness to be made
available to Pacific, to exempt Pacific from cenain requirements of the Loan Agreement pertaining to subsidiary guaranty
and asset pledges that would otherwise be required under the Loan Agreement and to waive the Company’s borrowing base
limitations through Januwary 31, 2024, The Third Amendroent alse provided for the reaffirmation of representalions,
wﬁcs and covenants under the Loan Agreement as are customary in connection with similar amendments of credit
Umenls.

As of January 31, 2024, the Company had no borrowings under the Loan Agreement, and there was $25 million of additional
available credit under the Loan Agreement.

On February 5, 2024, the Company acquired Italy and Romania-based Jolly Scarpe S.p.A. and Jolly Scarpe Romania S.R.L,
{collectively, “Jolly") in an all-cash transaction valued at approximately $9.3 million subject to post-closing adjustments and
customary holdback provisions, The Company drew down $12.3 million on its credit ling to fund the acquisition which
included pavdown of existing Jolly debt. Jolly is a leading designer and manufacturer of professional footwear for the
firefighting, military, police, and rescue markets. The company 15 headguartered in Montebelluna, Italy, with manufactuning
operations in Bucharest, Romania, and has 150 cmployees.

On March 28, 2024, the Company entered into Amendment No. 4 to Loan Agreement by and between Bank of America,
N.A. (the "Lender”) and the Company (the “Foeurth Amendment”). Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment, the Lender and the
Company agreed to, among other things, (1) extend the expiration date of the credit facihity to March 28, 2029, (i1) incréase
the availability under the revolving credit facility to $40.0 million with an accordion feature providing for the potential
funding of an additional $10.0 million, (i) remove the borrowing base component of the credit facility; and (iv) modify the
interest rate bazed on Daily SOFR plus the Applicable Rate, The Applicable Rate is based upon a Funded Debt 10 EBITDA
Ratio and includes four (4) different levels constituting a SOFR margin range from 1.25% to 2.00%. In addition, the Fourth
Amendment (i) modified the Funded Debt to EBITDA Ratio covenant so as not 10 exceeed 3.5x (with step-downs to 3.25 and
3.00in 2025 and 2026), (11) modified the Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant 1o a minimum of 1.20x, (i) includes a
springing Asset Coverage Ratio covenant of at least 1.10x, but only to the extent thai the maximum Total Leverage Ratio
exceeds 3.00x at any reporting period, (iv) increases the sublimit for letters of credit to 510.0 million, and (v) imposes a floor
o Daily SOFR of one percent ( 1.00%%5). The Fourth Amendment provides for additional indebtedness or the assumption of
existing indebtedness for acquisitions of foreign subsidianes (not © exeeed 10,0 million in USD) and increased the size of
Permitted Acquisitions, without prior approval from the Lender, to $17.5 million per occurrence and $35.0 million in the

aggregate.

We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents, borrowing capacity under our Loan Agreement and the cash o be
Fenmlr.d from expected product sales will be sufficient o meet our projected operating and investing requirements for at
cast the next twelve months, However, our liquidity assumptions may prove to be incorrect, and we could utilize our
available financizl resources sooner than we currently expect. We were in compliance with all financial covenants of the
Loan Agreement as of January 31, 2024,

Stock Repurchase Program, On February 17, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up to 35 million of its outstanding common stock. On July 6, 2021, the Board of
Directors authorized an incrcase in the Company’s then-current stock repurchase program under which the Company may
repurchase up to an additional 55 million of ils outstanding common steck. On April 7. 2022, the Booard of Directors
authorized a new stock repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to 35 million of its outstanding
common stock which became ¢ffective upon the completion of the prior share repurchase program. On December 1, 2022,
the Board of Directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up
to an additional £5 million of its outstanding common stock. The share repurchase program has no expiration date but may be
terminated by the Board of Directors at any (ime,
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The common shares available for repurchase under the authorizations currently in effect may be purchased from time to time,
with consideration given to the market price of the common shares, the nature of other investment opportunitics, cash flows
from operations, gencral economic conditions and other relevant considerations. Repurchases may be made on the open
market or through privately negotiated transactions.

Shares repurchased in FY 24 wotaled 27,514 shares ai a cosi of $0.3 million, lecaving $5.0 million remaining under the share
repurchase program at January 31, 2024, The share repurchase program has no expiration date but may be terminated by the
Board of Directors at any time.

Capital Expendifures. Our capital expenditures for FY24 of 32.1 million principally relate to our capital purchases for our
manufacturing facilitics in Vietnam and Mexico. We anticipate FY25 capital expenditures to be approximately $3.0 mullion
to replace existing equipment in the normal course of operations and expand our fire services products manufacturing

capabilitics. We expect to fund the capital expenditures from our cash flow from operations.
Recently Adopted and Recemtly Issued Accountimg Standards

Income Taxes

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 7401 Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures.”
This guidance requires a public entity (o disclose in their rate reconciliation table additional categories of information about
federal, state and foreign income taxes and to provide more details aboul the reconciling items in some categories 1f the tems
meet a quantitative threshold, The guidance also requires all entities 1o disclose annually income taxes paid (net of refunds
received) disaggregated by federal (national), state and foreign taxes and to disaggregate the information by jurisdiction
based on a quantitative threshold. This guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, Early
adoption is permitted, and this guidance should be applied prospectively but there is the option to apply it retrospectively,
The Company plans to adopt the provisions of this guidance in conjunction with our Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending
January 31, 2026,

Segment Reporiing

In November 2023, the FASB issucd ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting (Topic 2800 Improvements 1o Reportable Segment
Disclosures.” This guidance requires a public entity to disclose for each reportable segment, on an interim and annual basis,
the significant expense categories and amounts that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM™)
ard included in each reported measure of a segment’s profil or loss. Additionally. it requires a public entity o disclose the
title and position of the individual or the name of the group or comminee identified as the CODM. This guidance is effective
for fiscal years beginning afler December 31, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginming afler December 15,
2024. Early adoption 15 permitted and the guidance should be applied retrospectively 1o all periods presented in the financial
statements, unless it is impracticable. The Company plans to adopt the provisions of this guidance in conjunciion with our
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2025,

GECH and Piflar Twa

In 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECT) announced an Inclusive Framework on Base
Erozion and Profit Shafting including Pillar Two Model Rules defining the global minimum tax, which calls for the taxation
of large multinational corporations at & minimum rate of 5%, Subsequently multiple sets of administrative guidance have
been issued. Many non-US, tax junisdictions have either recently enacted legislation 1o adopt certain components of the
Pillar Two Model Rules beginming in 2024 with the adoption of addinonal components i later vears or announced their
plans to enact legislation in future years. Although we expect increased tax compliance efforts as a result of new legislation,
wt do not expect Pillar Two to have a significant impact on our effective tax rate or our consolidated results of operations,
financial pesitton and cash flows,

ITEM TA, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AROUT MARKET RISK

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is not required io provide the information required by this Tiem and therelore,
no disclosure is required under ltem 7A for the Company.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIMNG FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Lakeland Industries, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lakeland Industries, Inc. and subsidianes (the
'{‘ompa.ndy"j as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, the related statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss),
stockholders” equity, and cash flows, for cach of the two years in the period ended Januvary 31, 2024, and the related notes
feollectively referred to as the “financial siatements™). In our opinion, the financial slatements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the l’_‘unm as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for cach of the two years in the peniod ended January 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in sccordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB). the Company’s intermal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2024, based on criteria established in
Imternal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) is&mﬂweb‘i; the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our repert dated April 10, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion en the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Rasis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company”s nnnzfumnl. Cur responsibility 15 to express an opanion
on the Ctmany‘s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the US, federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our awdits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis are free of material misstatement, whether
dise to error or fraud. Our audits incloded performing procedures o assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respend to those risks. Such precedures included
exanining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and sigmificant cstimates made by nmnnﬁcmc-nh as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The entical audit matters communicated below are matters ansing from the current-period audit of the financial statements
that were communicated or required o be communicated to the sudit commitee and that (1) relate 1o accounts or disclosures
that are matenial to the financial statements and (2) mvolved our especially challenging. subjective, or complex judgments,
The communication of critical audit maters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statemens, taken as a
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit
matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Acguisitions — Pacific Helmets NZ Limited —Intangible Assets— Refer to Notes 1 and 6 to the financiol statements
Critical Auwdit Marrer Description

The Company completed the acquisition of Pacific Helmets NZ Limited (“Pacific”) on November 30, 2023, The Company
sccounted for the acquisilion under the acquisition method of accounting lor business combinations. Accordingly, the
Company allocated the purchase price, on a preliminary basis, 1o the assets acquired and habalitics assumed based on their
estimated fair values. The Company recorded intangible assets related to customer relationships, trade names and trademarks
and technological know-how,

thtlin:d intangible assets were valued using certain methods including the excess camings approach and relief from rovalty
methods specific 1o the type of intangible asset acquired. Several significant assumptions and estimates were involved in the
application of these valuation methods, including forecasted revenue growth rates, ERITDA margins and resulting forecasted
cash Mlows, as well as royvalty and discount rates,

Given the fair value determination of the intangible assetz for Pacific requires management to leverage complex valuation
methodologies and make significani estimaies and assumplions relaied o the forecasis of revenue, EBITDA margins and
resulting future cash flows and the selection of rovalty and discount rates, performing audit procedurcs to evaluate the
reasonableness of these estimates and assumptions required o high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of
cffort, including the need to involve our fair value specialists,

Hew the Criticad Audit Matter Was Addvessed in the dudit

Our audit procedures related to the forecasts of future revenues and EBITDA marging and resulting future cash flows, the
selection of valuation methedologies utilized, and the selection of the rovalty and discount rates for the imtangible assels,
included the following, among others:

. We evaluated the d:sign and o11cming cffectiveness of controls over the valuation of the i ible assets,
jill:'.r:';tl.u:iing management’ s controls over forecasts which estimate future cash flows and selection of the rovalty
discount rales,
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. We assessed the reasonablencss of management's forccasts of future revenucs, EBITDA margin and cash
flows by comparing the projections to historical results, actual results through vear-cnd, and relevant industry
reports and evaluated whether the estimated resulting future cash flows were consistent with evidence
ebained in other arcas of the audit,

. With the assistance of our fair value speciahsts, we evaluated the reasonableness of the (1) valuation
methodologies and (2) the valuation assumptions used in the fur value analyses by:

o Comparing the selected royalty rate to market data for comparable rates,
o Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the royalty and discount rates.

] Developing a range of independent estimates for the royalty and discount rates and comparing those to
the rates selected by management.

Egquity method invesiment - Refer to Notes | and 4 to the financial stetemenis
Critical Awdit Matter Description

The Company uses the equity method of accounting to account for its $4.7 million investment in the Class A stock of Inova
Design Solutions Litd, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales and headguaniered n the
United Kingdom, doing business as Bodymak® (“Bodytrak™). The Company also holds 2.2 million of notes receivable from
Bodytrak which are convertible into shares of the entity. The Company evaluates its equity method imvestments whenever
events of changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amounts of such investments may be impaired. If the decling in
fair value 15 deemed 10 be other than temporary, the investment is wnitten down to fair value. In sitsations where the fair
value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of a public market price or other factors, the Company uses its best
estimates and assumptions to amve ot the estimated fair value of such investment based on accepted valuation methods,
which require management to make significant estimates and assumptions related to future cash flows and the selection of the
discount rate used in the valuation,

We adennified the estimation of fumure cash flows and discount rate associated with the valuanon of Bodytrak as a critical
audil maiter due to the significant judgmenis required in the estimation of fuiure revenues and resuliing cash lows and the
selection of the discount rate. This required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the
need to involve our fair value specialists, when performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonablencss of management's
forecasts of Tuture cash Nows and the selection of the discount rate.

How the Critical Awdit Meatter Was Addvessed in the Auwdit

Our audit procedures related 1o the estimates and assumptions ulilized in the determination of fur value used for the
impairment analysis included the following, among others:

. We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls related to the accounting for
potential impairment of the investment.

. We evaluated the reasonableness of the forecasts of funere revenues and resulting cash flows by comparing
those ecstimates to historical results, internal communications to management and the Board of Directors,
existing arrangements with customers, and relevant industry/market data.

. With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the (1) valuation
methodology and (2) discount rate by:

o Testing the source mformation Lmd::rl:.rin; the determmation of the discount rate and testing the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation,

o Developing a range of independent estimates and companng those (o the discount rate selected by
management.

o Independenily testing the guideline public company market valuation prepared by management’s
specialist to further evaluate the estimated fair value,

. We considered whether other information obtained during the course of our audit represented contradictory
evidence in relation to the estimated future revienues and resulting cash flow projections utilized in the model.

faf Deloatte & Touche LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
April 10, 2024

Wi have served as the Company s auditor since 2020,
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the sharcholders and the Board of Directors of Lakeland Industries, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the intermal control over financial reporting of Lakeland [ndustries, [nc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™)
as of January 31, 2024, bascd on critenia cstablished in foternal Control — [ntegrated Framework (2043 issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2024, based on enleria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COS0O,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCADBY), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended January 31, 2024, of the Company and our
report dated April 10, 2024, expressed an ungualified opinion on those financial statements.

As described in Management's Repom on Internal Comtrel over Financial Reponting, management excluded from its
assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Pacific Helmets NZ Limited, which was acquired on November 30,
2023, and whase linancial statements constitute 6% and 6% of net and total assets, respectively, less than 1% of revenues,
and 4% of net income of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended January 31, 2024,
Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control ever financial reporting at Pacific Helmets NZ Limited.

Basis for Opinion

The Company s management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibality is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the ULS. federal securities laws and the
applicable miles and regulations of the Securitics and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perfiorm
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maimained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemmal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed nisk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting pringiples, A company’s interal control over financial reporting includes those policics and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fuirly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2} provide reasonable assurance thai ransactions are recorded as
necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
dircetors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely deteetion of unawthorized
sequisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivencess o future peniods are subjeet o the nsk that controls may become madequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

& Dheloirre & Touche LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
April 10, 2024
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Lakeland Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023
(500075 ) except share information

2024 2023
PREL AL ., oo coiionarsosimsisnnapisiisanssimnnspiaiissn amnas i pmsksbsna s (R s s b s B isnssissisinsniiy o, 1008 % 1IEEAG
Cost of goods sold .. 73,496 06,997
I DR i s e e s bams b b e o by S5ostna i Al A ot A vod 14 s o A i Smm et 51192 45,849
Operating profit ... 5.093 5,541
Othier COMIE (ERPERBER MBI oot iimiiismniiiissnssiasmsr i asmssrhams st b aaa bt 48 s asa beb s2mn b gme R A2 bS48 3415 (3%
Income before taxes.... 9,356 5471
INCOMIE LK CXPEMASE | iuiioiisnsniirsinssissssmsssteiasas b bibsmas b sais 1 3.930 3598
Nl INCOMME. ocirrimasnsinisasinissassn . 5 54215 3 1,873
MNet income per common share

0.25
0.24

o

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
B it b R R R TR 7,562,187

LT D O SO OO OPUUOOURPRY 0= X . | 1. 1,737,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Mnancial statements.



Lakeland Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the Years Ended Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023
(SHM0)s
o4 2023
Other comprehensive imcome:
Forcign currency translntion sdjustrieihs ... o i i e s s e (1,669) (2,193)

Comprehensive IMCOMIE (OSSN ..o s s e m s b s b asbiins | 3756 % {3209

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Lakeland Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
January 31, 2024 and 2023
(S000°s) except share information

ASSETS
Current assels 2024 2023
Cash and cazh equivalents.... - . % 25222 §F  M4.639
Accounts receivable, net of al]ml.'ancc ﬁ:n' dm:blﬁ.n n-:-:oum.s uf SSST and $SDﬂ ut Jurru.an.' 3I
2024 and 2023, respectively.... 19,169 17296
Inventories.... 51,250 58,176
Prepaid VAT and i:nher mxcs 2,753 1,963
Income tax receivable and ulllr.r t:um:nrl aﬁm .......... LN R 3517
Total current asscts .. N Y S W | FRNSSS 0 o SRt b 1Y S S B 101,505 105,591
Pmp-crly and nquupml:nl nﬂ 10,685 & 1440
Operating leases nght-ol-use .a.ﬁs:cls 10,969 5472
Deferred tax n.w:tw 3,007 2764
Other asscts.......... 1o [ (¥}
Goodwill....oe 13,669 5,473
Intangible asscts, net... 6,830 6,042
Equity investments ... 4,719 5,354
Convertible debt investments ... 2.161 -
ol amm e S i el TSRS 8 TAR 96

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable .. i b e e B s e 7378 % 6,558
Accrued l:umpt.'nntlnn :md I:H:m:t'ls S B s A A SR a9 Jarz 2522
Other accrucd :xpmsc.s 2487 4,068
Income tax payable ... 1.454 i
Shaort-term hmwwings ....... Jag 405
Accrued camout agreement......... AR 043 3182
Current portion nfupcmllng h:a:sc |lihl|l1.‘)’ ....... 2164 1,253
Total current liabilitics... 18,346 18,597
Deferred income taxcs 2087 TH%
Lnanspuyahle—longterm 5 731 -
Long-term portion of npemtlr-g !mn |I!hl|ll}' 9.121 3,580
Total liabilitics... 30.294 22946
Commitments and mnlmgtn::u:s
Stockholders” equity
Preferred stock, S0.00 par; authorized 1.500,000 shares (none issued) .. i — -
Commaon stock, S0.01 par; authorized 20,000,000 shares, lssued ¥,722 MS I]'I'Il.'l 8» t:SS 69‘9
outstanding 7,364,757 and 7,325,005 at January 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively... ]7 37
Treasury stock, at cost; 1,358,208 and 1,330,694 shares at .lmuary 31,2024 and 2‘023
respectively o e AR RS P {19.979) (19.646)
Additional p.-ud in tapll:u.l ........................................................................................................... 79420 T8ATS
Retained carnings. .. B # 69,182 4, T3
Accumulated other mmprrhcns:vc Ioe'.s (5, 360) (3.6%91)
Total stockholders’ equity .. 123,450 119990
Total Labilities and mn:khn]dnrs cqulhr $ 153745 5 142934

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Lakeland Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
For the Years Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023

Accumulaied
Addrtronal Cber
Comenon Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in Retgined  Comprehensive
Shares  _Amsount Shares Aursnant _ Capital Earmings Lirss Total

(S000"5) (S000°s)  (S000°sF (SO0 50005} (30003}

Balance, January 31,2022 . ... .. -~ BS5556T72 % Ei (2397055 § (la.206) § TTRDG § 62802 5§ {1 49%8) § 125100

Mt Income — — — - — 1.57% — 1473

Oeher comprehensive loss - — — — — — (2.193) {2195
Stock-based compensation:

Restricted stock issed ....oovcriaciimiisninns 100,027 I —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ |

Restricted stock plan ..o — — — — 1491 — - 1491

Return of shares m Liew nfm'pnilm

withhodding - B2y (R4

1390.95%) 1540 158400

1 BT (LIIOG94) 5 (1964610 5 TEATS 5 G765 5 13,6910 § 119990

- — — - 5425 — 5425

— — — — (90E) - {908}

— — — — — {1,669) {166

— - - 1,365 —_ - 1,365

— = = (4204 — — (4200

= 127.5048 133%) = - 1535

Ralance, January 31,2024 . BTI2065 § KT (LASK2OH) § (19579 & To420 5 692K § 153600 § 123450




Lakeland Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023

{ SO0 "5}
o4 Pk}
Cash Mows from upemting activitics:
Netincome... ERRES. - 5425 % 1,873
Adjmunmts to mmnv:llr: net income lo net cnsh {um:l m'i prmr:ded hy upcnlmg activitics
Provision for {recovery of) doubtful acoounts .. R e T L 1) 134
Deferred income taxes .. (818} 13
Depreciation and amurllza.tlm ................................ 2111 1,505
Stock based and restricted stock compensation ... 1,365 1,491
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment... (3.764) (6}
Equity i (camings) loss of oquity investment.......... 629 411
Revaluation of camoul CONSIIETRION. ... .o cvrmecs imessser imasssrresmsmsrmssssesimnsssesssaess reasasrrasmsssressmsnssss (2.538) -
(Increase) decrease in operaling assels:
Accounts receivable ... (B53) (2278)
Inventorics.... i 7,738 (9,714
Prepaid VAT am.l utiu*r lam (789 {2640
Other current assels... g (15) 1478
Increase (decrease) in uper.mng Inahllllms
Accounts payable ... e R 417 i6
Accrued expenscs an:l L'llhl:l‘ Ilah O s e e e o R s e s s e ps T 982 69
Opcrating lease habilities.. . 955 {269
Met cash provided by {um.-d m] uperulmg nctmtu:s 10,912 (5.451)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of propeny and equipment ... (2.009) {1.985)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets ... 4,559 -
Acquisition, net of cash acquired . (5452} {9.722)
Met cash us.r:d in m\'mlng a:tmtm. (5.116) (14.768)
Cash flows from financing activitics
Short term borrowings .. .l ot oty s i 50664 403
Short term borrowings - mpa},ﬂnnnls (7.455) -
Dividends paid ... (b (G0%) -
Purchase of Tmasury Stnn:k undu:r slnr:l: rcpmv:hm pmgmn ................ (333) (5.43%)
Shares retumed to pay employee taxes under restricted stock prngﬂm (4200) (542)
Met cash used in financing activities.. {3,452} {5.876)
Effect of exchange rate changes on usT'l am.‘l cash nquwalcms (1,761 (1.9%5)
Met increase (decrease) i cash and cash equivalents 583 {28, (10
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.......... 3 24,639 52719
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year... aF M. 252232 % 24,639
Cash paid for interest _, PSR- 63 3 7
BT P TRME DAIEE v i am s bt inas sh b i b Ha 4 b RO 44 B bt S VRS P b 44 5 2169 % 3,151
Moncash investing and financing activities ..
Leased assets obtaned in exchange I"orngxmlmg lcas¢ I:nl:u!ﬂn.-g ] 6110 % 1148

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I. RUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business

Lakeland Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries (“Lakeland,” the “Company,” “we."” “our” or "“us”), a Delaware
corporation organized in April 1986, manufacture and sell a comprehensive line of industrial protective clothing and
accessorics for the industrial and public protective clothing market. Qur products are sold globally by our in-house
sales teams, our customer service group, and authonzed independent sales representatives o a network of over 2,000
global safety and mdustnal supply distnbutors, Our authonzed distnbutors supply end users, such as integrated oil,
chemical/petrochemical, automobile, steel, glass, construction, smelting, cleanroom, janitorial, pharmaceutical, and
high technology electronics manufacturers, as well as scientific, medical laboratorics and the wtilitics industry. In
addition, we supply federal, state and local governmental agencies and departments, such asx fire and law
enforcement, airport crash rescue units, the Department of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security and the
Centers for Discase Control, Internationally, we sell to a mixture of end users directly and to industrial distributors
depending on the particular country and market. Sales are made 1o more than 50 countries. the majority of which
were inte China, countries within the European Economic Community (“EEC), Canada. Chile. Argentina, Russia,
Kazakhstan, Colombia, Mexico, Ecuador, India, Middle East and countrics within Southeast Asia. For purposes of
this Form 10-K, FY refers 1o a fiscal year ended January 31 for example, FY24 refers 1o the fiscal vear ended
January 31, 2024.

Basis of Preseniation
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“US GAAP”). We have reclassified certain prior vear amounts to conform to current vear
presentation. The following is a description of the Company’s significant accounting policies,

Summarylof I'Sigui.fi»f:‘ﬂnt hq:uunting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiarics, All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been climinated.

Use of Estimates and Assumplions
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management o make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and disclosures of contingent
asscts and liabilitics at the balance shect date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates. It is reasonably possible that events could occur
during the upcoming vear that could change such estimates,

a h Equay: ]
The Company considers highly liquid temporary cash investments with onginal mamntes of three months or less to
be cash equivalents, Cash equivalents consist of money market funds.

Accounts Reccivable, Net Trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect, The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its
cusiomers to make required payments. The Company estimates credit losses by considening historical credit losses,
the current cconomic environment, customer credit ratings or bankrupicics,

Inventories

Inventories include freighi-in, materials, labor and overhead cosis and are siated at ithe lower of cost (on a first-in,
first-out or moving average basis) or net realizable value. Adjustments are recorded for slow-moving, obsolete or
unusable inventory. We assess our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory and write down
the difference berween the cost of mventory and the estimated net realizable value based upon assumphions about
future sales and supply on hand, if necessary. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by
management, additional inventory adjustments may be required.



Property and cquipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations over their
estimated service lives on a straight-line basis. Leasehold improvements and leasehold costs are amonized over the
term of the lease or service lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter. The costs of additions and
improvements that substantially extend the useful life of a particular asset are capitalized. Repair and maintenance
costs are charged 1o expense. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from the account, and the gain or loss on disposition 15 reflected in

operating income.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to sell. Gains or losses are
recognized for any subsequent changes to fair value bess cost to sell. However, gains are limited to cumulative losses
previously recognized, Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated.

Investments in which the Company can exercise significant influence, but do not control, are accounted for using the
equity method and are presented on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company's share of the net camings or
losses of the investee is presented within the consolidated statements of operations as other income (expense). The
Company evaluates its equity method investments whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the
carrying amounts of such investments may be impaired. The primary factors the Company considers in its
determination are the length of time that the fair value of the investment is below the Company’'s carrying value; the
seventy of the decline; and the financial condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee, 7
the decline in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary, the secunity is written down to fair value. In situabions
where the fair value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of a public market price or other factors, the
Company estimates fair value based on a discounted cash flow model and & market-based approach using inputs
which include expected cash flows and a discount rate representative of the risks within the underlying business and
forecasts o arrive at the estimated fair valoe of such investment,

In accordance with the accounting guidance for business combinations, the Company uses the acquisition method of
accounting to allocate costs of acquired businesses to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the daies of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of
assets and liabilitics is recorded as goodwill. Assigning fair market values to the assets sequired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition requires knowledge of current market values and the values of assels in use and
often requires the application of judgment regarding estimates and assumptions. While the ultimate responsibality
resides with management for matenal acquisitions, we retain the services of certified valuation specialists o assist
with assigning estimated values 1o certain acguired assets and assumed liobilities, including mtangible assets,
tangible long-lived assets, and contingent consideration. Acquired intangible asscts, excluding goodwill, are valued
using certain discounted cash flow methodologies based on future cash flows specific to the tvpe of intangible asset
purchased. Several significant assumptions and estimates were invelved i the application of these valuation
methods, including forecasted sales volumes and prices, rovalty rates, costs to produce. tax rates, discount rates,
attrition rates and working capital changes,

If the contingent consideration 153 deemed significamt or absent an agreed-upon payout amount, the initial
measurement of contingent consideration and the corresponding lability is evalvated using the Monic Carlo Method.
For this valuation method, management develops projections during the contingent consideration period utilizing
various potential pay-out scenarios. Probabilities are applied to each potential scenario, and the resulting values are
discounted using a rate that considers the weighted average cost of capital as well as a specific risk premium
associated with the riskiness of the contingent consideration itself, the related projections, and the overall business.

a | ible
Intangible assets with a fimite useful life are amortized on a stroight-line basis over ther useful lives, Indefimite lived

imtangible assets are assessed for possible impairment annually on November 15t or whenever circumstances change
such that the recorded value of the asset may not be recoverable,
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All goodwill is assigned to and evaluated for impairmeni at the reporting unit level, which is defined as an operating
segment or one level below an operating scgment. Goodwill is not amortized, but evaluated for impairment at least
anmually or whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than s carrying amount. The Company may perform either a qualitative assessment of
potential impairment or proceed directly to a quantitative assessment of potential impairment. 1 the Company
chooses not 1o perform a qualitative assesament, or iF it chooses o perform a qualitative assessment but i unable to
conclude that no impairment has occurred qualitatively, then the Company will perform a quantitative assessment. A
quantitative test for goodwill impairment s performed by determining the fair value of the related reporting units.
The Company cstimates the fair value of the reporting unit with which the goodwill 15 associated and compares it to
the carrving value, 1 the estimated fair value of a reporting unit 15 less than its carmying value, an impairment charge
is recognized for the excess of the reporting unit’s carrying value over its fair value, Fair value is measured using on
the discounted cash flow method and relative market-based approaches.

There has been no impairment of our goodwill during the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023,

R R -
Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from product sales, which consist of sales of the Company's
personal protective wear products to distributors. The Company considers purchase orders 1o be a contract with a
customer. Contracts with customers are considered 1o be shon-term when the time between order confirmation and
satisfaction of the performance obligations s equal to or less than one year, and virtually all of the Company's
contracts are short-term. The Company recognizes revenuc for the transfer of promised goods to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Company expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods. The
Company typically satisfies its performance obligations in contracts with customers upon shipment of the goods.
Generally, payment is due from customers within 30 to 90 days of the invoice date, and the contracts do not have
significant financing components, The Company elected to account for shipping and handling activities as a
fulfillment cost rather than a separate performance obligation. Shipping and handling costs associated with outbound
freight are included in operating expenses, and for FY 24 and FY23 aggregated approximately $3.4 million and $3.2
million. respectively. Taxes collected from customers relating to product sales and remitted 1o governmental
authorities are excluded from revenue.

The transaction price includes estimates of variable consideration related to rebates, allowances, and discounts that
are reductions in revenue. All estimates are based on the Company’s historical experience, anticipated performance,
and the Company’s best judgment at the time the estimate is made. Estimates for variahle consideration are
reassessed cach reporting period and are included in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant
reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur upon reselution of uncertainty associated with the vanable
consideration. All the Company’s contracts have a single performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, and the
transaction price is stated in the contract, usually as quantity times price per unit,

The Company receives advances under certain of its contracts for products sold by Eagle. Those advances are
considercd contract labilities with revenues recorded upon delivery of promised goods to customers, These
advances are included in Other Accrued Expenses on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The following is a
roll-forward of the advances from the date of the Eagle acquisition, December 2, 2022 through Janeary 31, 2024 (in

SO00sY:
Contract linbility = Dtomber 2, BB i misiminnis samini s i i s e s bm s o 1.560
D e O I T o e o i s i i i i s o e b o i ko 158
Decreascs to contract liability.......... (20
Contract liability - January 31, 2023......ccmmmmmmmimm s s . 1,627
Increases 10 CONMPACE HABITILY ..o riamsriis s siismsrsstasnes esms ssbtsnebs s sambiasms sesamsbing 445
Decremses 1o OBl Ay i i e i e i s i s s B (1.968)
‘Contract liability = Jamuary 31, 202 ..o s s s s e it s am s AR b e sam b s st | (4
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The Company has seven revenue generating reporfable geographic segments under ASC Topic 280 “Segment
Reporting” and derives its sales primarily from s limited use/disposable protective clothing and secondanly from its
sales of reflective clothing, high-end chemical protective suits, fircfighting and heat protective apparel, reusable
woven garments and gloves and arm guards. The Company believes disaggregation of revenue by geographic region
and product line best depicts the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of its revenue and cash flows (see table
below). Net sales by geographic region and by product line are included below:

Year Ended
January 31,
{in millions of dollars)
2024 2023
Extemnal Sales h;.-' Product Lines:
Dmp-usahlci b i S R S B RN RS WA A B e b T R S 496 3 55.2
Chemical... 203 2.3
Fire............ e e e e e e 26.5 14.7
L] L 22 2.3
High Visibility ... = 6.6 58
High Performance Wear . 6.9 50
Wovens.. 12.6 1.6
[ nnsnlldaled c:mmal s:u.h:s .5 1247 % 1128
Year Ended
January 31,
{in millions of dollars)
024 2023
External Sales by Regron:
LIS cociinsiiinmins TR, 553 8 49.0
Other fumign R T e e A e T e e S e e e 9.9 72
Europe {UK} ..... 16.3 B3
IR O i it dbsat i s DA s na R i 15 O R v BTN 4 BT B S W TR A B Y 4.0 37
O i s o S B s 13.8 M7
R e e b s i ot 93 9.1
Latin Amem:a .................... 6.1 10,8
Consolidated extermal Smles. ... e st st anesrasnnes B 1247 § 112.8

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses on the consolidated statement of
operations. Advertising and co-op costs amounted to 50,6 million and $0.5 million in FY 24 and FY 23,

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records the cost of stock-based compensation plans based on the fair value of the award on the grant
daie. For awards thal contain a vesling provision, the cost is recognized over the requisile service period (generally
the vesting period of the equity award), which approximates the performance period. For awards based on services
already remdered, the cost is recognized immediately.

Ineome Tanes

The Company is required to cstimate its income taxcs in cach of the jurisdictions in which it operates as part of
prepanng the consolidated financial statements, This involves cstimating the actual current tax m addition to
assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatments for tax and financial sccounting purposes. These
differences, together with net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits, are recorded as deferred tax assels or
liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, A judgment must then be made of the likelihood that any
deferred tax assets will be recovered from fature taxable imcome. A valuaiion allowance may be required to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. In the event the Company determines
that it may not be able to realize all or pant of its deferred fax asset in the future or that new estimates indicate that o
previously recorded valuation allowance 15 no longer required. an adjustment to the deferred tax asset is charged or
eredited to income in the period of such determination.
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The Company recognizes fax positions that meel a “more likely than nof” minimum recognition threshold, IF
necessary, the Company recognizes interest and penalties associated with tax matters as pant of the income fax
provision and would include accrued interest and penaltics with the related tax liability in the consolidated balance
sheets.

i 101 Forer Tramslati

The Company maintains manufacturing operations in Mexico, India, Argentina, New Zealand, Vietnam and the
People's Republic of China and can access independent contractors in China, Victnam, Argentina and Mexico. It
also maintains sales and distnbution cntitics in India, Canada, the UK., Chile, China, Argentina, Russia,
Kazakhstan, Uruguay, Australia and Mexico, The Company 15 vulnerable to currency nisks m these countries. The
functional currency for the United Kingdom subsidiaries is the Pound; the trading company in China, the RMB; the
Russian operation, the Russian Ruble; the New Zealand Dollor in New Zealand, and the Kazakhstan operation, the
Kazakhstan Tenge, All other operations have the U.S. dollar as their functional currency,

Pursuant to US GAAP, assets and liabilitics of the Company’s forcign operations with functional currencics other
than the U.S. dollar are translated at the exchange rate in effect ot the balance sheet date. while revenues and
expenses arce translated at average rates prevailing during the periods. Translation adjustments are reported in
accumulated other comprehensive loss, a separate component of stockholders” equity, Cash flows are also ranslated
al average translalon rates for the periods; therefore, amounts reported on the consolidated statement of cash flows
will not necessanly agree with changes in the corresponding balances on the consolidated balance sheet. Transaction
gains and losses that arise from exchange rate Mluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency are included in the results of operations as mcurred.

US GAAP defines fair value, provides guidance for measuring fair value and requires certain disclozures utilizing a
fair value hicrarchy which is categorized into three levels based on the inputs to the valuation techniques used to
measure fair value,

The following is a brief description of those three levels:
Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are obscrvable for the assct or liability, either directly or indircctly,
These include quoted prices for similar assets or labilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active. Level 3: Unobservable imputs that reflect management’s own
ASSUMPLONS.

There were no foreign currency forward or hedge contracts at January 31, 2024 or January 31, 2023,

The financial instruments of the Company classified as current assets or liabilities, including cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, shor-term borrowings, borrowings under revelving credit facility, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, are recorded at carryving value, which approximates fair value based on the short-term
nature of these instruments.

Net Income Per Share

Met income per share 15 based on the weighted average number of commaon shares outstanding without consideration
of common stock equivalems, Diluted net income per share is based on the weighted average number of common
shares and common stock equivalemts, The diluted net income per share calculation takes into account unvested
restricted shares and the shares that may be issued upon the exercise of stock options, reduced by shares that may be
repurchased with the funds received from the exercise, based on the average price during the fiscal year,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company considers the applicability and impact of all accounting standards updates (“ASUs”). Management
periodically reviews now accounting standards that are issued.
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fncome Taves

In December 2023, the FASE issued ASU 202309, “Income Taxcs (Topic 7400 Improvements to Income Tax
Disclosures.” This guidance requires a public entity to disclose in their rate reconciliation table additional categornies
of information about federal, state and foreign income taxes and 1o provide more details about the reconciling items
in some categorics if the items mect a quantitative threshold. The guidance also requires all entitics o disclose
annikally income taxes paid (net of refunds reccivied) disaggregated by federal (national), state and foreign taxes and
to dizaggregate the information by junisdiction based on a quantitative threshold. This guidance s effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, Early adoption is permitted and this guidance should be applicd
prospectively but there is the option to apply it retrospectively, The Company plans to adopt the provisions of this
gudance in conjunction with our Form 10-K for our fiscal vear ending January 31, 2026,

Segnrent Reporting

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting ( Topic 280): Improvements 1o Reponable
Segment Disclosures.” This guidance requires a public entity to disclose for each reponable segment, on an interim
and annual basis, the significan ¢xpense categorics and amounts that are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”) and included in cach reported measure of a segment’s profit or loss, Additionally, o
requires a public entity 10 disclose the title and position of the individual or the name of the group or commillee
identified as the CODM. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2023, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, Early adoption is permitted and the guidance should
be applied retrospectively to all periods presented in the financial statements. unless it is impracticable. The
Company plans to adopt the provisions of this guidance in conjunction with our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending
January 31, 2025,

1 INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following (in $000s);

January 31,
2024 2023
Raw rnw:n'als . T i . I U S 1 11 L
Finished gwds 29.719 32855
Excess and nhsnlcli: adjuslmcnls 6,554) {4,668)

§ 51250 § 58176

L PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Properiy and cquipment consist of the following (in $000s):

Useful Lile January 31,
in Years 024 2023

Machincry and cqu'tpmmnl 3-10 % 10,773 % 5436
Furniture and fixtures ... : 3-10 9RR 492
Leaschold improv cmnls wee  Lease term 2388 2,094
[umpumrhmdmrcandml’tv.am 3 5430 5015
Lardl mivd BORIAING .. e, nasasismsmrsssnmiusansnsiusmasssiasnsssesmassnsassastusmans siassssesmss o asasmsns pessas 20-30 7.625 2,508

27,203 22546
Less accumulated depreciation and amomtizniion ... (17,600} {14.406)
CONSNUCTION == PROBTEES 1. c.oouiimcorimssmininas obs st isam s s s e R bR b s R sam 1081 1.001

5 10,685 5 9,140

Drepreciation and amontization expense for FY24 and FY23 amounted to 31.9 million and 51.4 million, respectively.
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4. INVESTMENTS

On October 18, 2021, the Company entered into an Investment Agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with Inova
Design Solutiens Ltd, a prnvate hmited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales and
headquartered in the United Kingdom, doing business as Bodytrak" (“Bodytrak™), and the other parties thereto,
pursuaint 1o which Bodytrak agreed 1o issue and sell to the Company 508,905 cumulative convertible senes A shares
of Bodytrak (“Series A Shares™) in exchange for a payment by the Company of £2.000.000 (328 million}). The
closing of this minonty investment transaction occurred on October I8, 2021, The Scries A Shares issued to the
Company at the closing represented approximately 11.43% of Bodytrak s total share capial.

On Aprl 28, 2022, the Company, under the terms of the Investment Agreement, acquired an additional 381,679
Scrics Al Shares of Bodvtrak for £1,500,000 (51.9 million), On October 26, 2022, the Company acquired an
additional 254,452 Senes A Shares of Bodyirak for £1,000,000 (51.2 million). After completion of these additional
investments, the Company owned 22.5% of Bodytrak's total share capital. The investment in Bodytrak is accounted
for under the cquity method, given our board representation and the resulting ability to exercizse significant influence.
A substantial portion of our investment represents differences in our investment and our share of the underlying
recognized net assets of Bodyirak. These differences are predominately attributable 1o non-amonizing intangible
assets of Bodyrak, inchuding intemally developed imellectual propeny.

On May 19, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with Bodytrak to provide an additional investment of up
to an aggregate of £1.500.000 (51.9 miflion on the date of initial investment) in the form of a secured convertible
loan with an option for an addittonal £1,000,000 investment at the Company's discretion. An imtal investment
funding of £500.000 ($0.6 million on the date of mvestment) was made on May 19, 2023, Additional investment
fundings of £700,000 (30.9 million on the date of investment) and £500,000 ($0.6 million on the date of investment)
were made on September 8, 2023 and December 15, 2023, respectively, The loaned amounts are due twenty-four
months from the issue date, which can be extended upon mutual agreement, The convertible note bears interest at
cither an anmual rate of 12% for cash interest or 15% for payment in kind interest on the outstanding amount under
the note, such rate being selected by Bodvirak.

The notes can be converted into equity shares of Bodytrak under a number of conditions, including a qualificd equity
financing as defined in the agreement, a change of control, an 1PO, default or conversion at the discretion of the
Company and upon the occurrence of the specified event. The convertible note is secured by Bodyirak's intellectual

property.

Bodytrak provides wearable monitoring solutions for customers in industrial health, safety, defense and first
responder markets wanting to achieve better emplovee health and performance. Bodyirak's solution is provided as a
platform as a service (Paa8), delivering real-time data, cloud-based analytics, and hardware that includes a patented
carpicce for physiological monitoring and audio communications.

For FY24 and FY23, the Company recognized losses of $0.6 and $0.4 million, respectively. The loss is reflected in
other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.

5 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Changes in goodwill during the fiscal vears ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (in S000s);

2024 2023

PEAamre ik FEORUAEY N ... uvvsssanssvmsismrerisnasiasinisismbinsisiis snsisniomnsis s nimasb i s weass it miain’ - 5473 3 |

Measurement period adjustment ... 1,447 i
ACQUARITIONS ....c.conennissncisrasmsnnias 3.749 7602

YRR I UMV I . o et i i i s s i i s . 13,669 % 8,473

During FY24. a measurement period adjustment was recorded to recognize deferred tax liabilitics of 1.4 million
associated with the finite-lived intangibles acquired in the Eagle acquisition, with a corresponding increase to
goodwill.



Changes in intangible assets during the fiscal years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (in $000s):

2024 2023

Piadamion Wb FEORTY 1 ..o i i i s i i e s s e b knanisss 642 % -
ACUISIHONS eciiinniin “ 1,211 G, 109
Amorntization. (423) (67)
Balsnire: Bt TR FU o cibindbpde nildndbiiami bl i b s bt bl e i s e b b 6,830 S 6,042

Weighted January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023

Average Ciross Met (iross Met

Life in Carrving  Accumulated Carrying  Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying

Intangible Assels (in S000s) Years Amount  Amortization _Amount  Amount  AmortiEation Amount
Customer relationships ........o.... i3 § 3538 % (268 3391 § 338} % (3T & 326
Trade names and trademarks ... 15 1,773 {1049y 1,664 1,333 {15} 1,318
Technological know-how ......... 15 1,989 (114) 1875 1,493 (15) 1,478
B . § T3 8 (490) & 6830 5 6,109 5 (671 5 6042

Intangible assct amortization expense over the next five vears is expected to be approximatehy $0.5 million per vear,
6. ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of Pacific

On November 30, 2023 the Company acquired New Zealand-based Pacific Helmetz NZ Limited (“Pacific™) in an all-cash
transaction valued at approximately NZS 14,000,000 (38,3 million at the closing date exchange rate) including assumption of
debt, subject o post-closing adjusiments and customary holdback provisions, The acquisition enhances Lakeland’s product
portfolio, particularly within fire service protective helmets. Headquartered in Whanganm, New Zealand, Pacific 15 a leading
designer and provider of structural frefighting, wildland firefighting, and technical rescue helmets. The transaction was
funded through the revolving eredit facility and cash balances,

Pacific’s operating results are included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date, The acquisition
qualified as a business combination and was accounted for using the acquisition method of secounting,

As part of the acquisition agreement, Pacific will pay from the holdback an amount equal to the amount by which Pacific's
revenue falls below NZS11.1 million for Pacific's fiscal year ending March 31, 2024 subject to certain conditions, The
catimated amount of the reduction 1o the holdback 1o be paid by the Company is less than 50.1 million. The cstimate was
developed using a Monte Carlo simulation. 1f Pacific exceeds the revenue target of NZ511.1 million, Pacific will not receive
any additional consideration.

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of the Pacific assets scquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of the scquisition:

Met working capital u:qum:d Imcludmg cash of $0.1 n‘l.llllunJ ............................................................................. b 165
Property, plant and cqulpmcnl RS ——————— - 2,265
Customer relationships .. 275
Trade names and l:radcnmrks 440
Technological know-how ... 4935
Goodwill... 3749
Total assets a::qul-n:d 2918
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Assels acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the acquisition were recorded at estimated fair values, Estimaied
fair values were determined by management, based in part on an independent valuation performed by a third-party valuation
specialist. The valuation methods used to determing the estimated fair value of intangible assets included the excess camings
approach for customer relationships using customer inputs and contnibutory charges; the relief from royvalty method for trade
names and trademarks and technological know-how; and the cost method for the assembled workforce was included in
goadwill, Several significant assumptions and cstimates were involved in the application of these valuation methods,
including forecasted sales volumes and prices, rovalty rates, costs 1o produce, tax rates, capital spending, discount rates,
attrition rates and working capital changes. Cash flow forecasts were generally based on Pacific’s pre-acquisition forecasts,
Identifiable intangible assets wath finite lives are subject to amonization over their estimated wseful hives. The customer
relationships, trade names and trademarks and technological know-how acquired in the Pacific transaction are being
amortized over periods of 14 years, 15 years and 10 years, respectively.

Goodwill is caleulated as the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net assets acquired and represents
the future economic benefits ansing from other assets scquired that could not be individually identified and separately
recognized. Among the factors that contributed to a purchase price in excess of the estimated fair value of the net tangible
and mtangible assets acquired were the acquisition of an assembled workforce, the expected synergies and other benefits that
we believe will result from combining the operations of Pacific with our operations.

Due to the timing of the completion of the acquisition, the purchase price and related allocation are preliminary and could be
revised as a result ol adjustments made to the purchase price. additional information oblained regarding asseis acquired and
liabilities assumed, and revisions of provisional estimates of fair values, including, but not limited to, the completion of
independent appraisals and valuations related to contingent constderation, inventory, contractual relationships, tangible assets
and intangible assels. These changes to the purchase price allocation could be significant. The purchase price allocation wall
be finalized within the measurement period of up o one year from ihe acquisition date.

Acquisition of Eagle
On December 2, 2022, we acquired 100% of Eagle’s common stock in an all-cash transaction valued ai $10.5 million, net of
net working capital acquired.

Headquartered in Manchester, UK, Eagle 15 a lcading designer and provider of protective apparel to the fire and industrial
sectors. Eagle provides differentiated product offerings through its innovative and technical solutions,

Eagle’s operating results are included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date. The acquisition
qualified as a business combination and was sccounted for using the acquisition method of sccounting.

As part of the Eagle scquisition agreement, the Company agreed to pay an eamout payment equal to the amount by which
Eagle’s revenue exceeds 6 million GBP for the perind May 1, 2022 through April 30, 2023, The Company also agreed to pay
an carnout pavment equal to the amount by which Eagle's revenue exceeds 6.3 million GBP for the period May 1, 2023
through April 30, 2024, The estimated amount of the camout payment developed using a Monte Carle simulation included in
the preliminary valuation was $3.2 million.

Eagle did not reach the revenue threshold for the period May 1, 2022 through Apnl 30, 2023 and received no payment for
that period. Based on the revised forecast for the penod May 1, 2023 through April 30, 2024, the estimated amount of the
carnout payment developed using a Monte Carlo simulation is $0.6 million. The adjustment to the acersed earnout payment
of 82,5 million was recorded in FY 24, and reflected as a reduction in operating expenses,

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of the Eagle assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
the acquisition:

Current assets acquired (including cash of 322 millEon]).........courrssiiamsreissseisssrisssssreimss s siassesresass 9 3729
Property, plant and equipment. ... 41
Customer relationships .......oooeeeenn 3,283
Trade names and trademarks | G R e B 1,333
Technological know-how .. 1.493
GoodWill........coecemiiasniinn 7.602
Total assets acquired....... 17,481
Lt et T R ] o s b i S b s WA b M M o e e e e A e W B AR {2,334)
et BT AT R T e Rl s S L e T G (e e e RS AL 15,147
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Assets acquired and lLabilities assumed in connection with the acquisition were recorded at estimated fair values, Estimated
fair values were determined by management. based in part on an independent valuation performed by a third-party valuation
specialist. The valuation methods used to determine the estimated fair value of intangible assets included the excess carnings
approach for customer relationships using customer inputs and contributory charges; the reliel from royalty method for trade
names and trademarks and technological know-how: and the cost method for the assembled workforce was included in
goodwill. Several significant assumptions and cstimates were involved in the application of these valuation methods,
including forecasted sales volumes and prices, rovalty rates, costs to produce, tax rates, capital spending, discount rates,
attrition rates and working capital changes. Cash fow forecasts were generally based on Eagle's pre-acquisition forecasts,
Identifiable mtangible assets wath fnite lives are subject 10 amortzation over thew estimated wseful hves. The customer
relationships, trade names and trademarks and technological know-how acquired in the Eagle transaction are being amontized
over periods of 15 years, 15 years and 17 years, respectively. Liabilities assumed pnmanly relate to customer deposits
included within Other Accrued Expenses.

Goodwill i= caleulated as the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net assets acquired and represents
the future economic benefits ansing from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately
recognized. Among the factors that contributed to a purchase price in excess of the estimated fair value of the net tangible
and mtangible assets acquired were the acquisition of an assembled workforee, the expected synergies and other benefits that
we believe will result from combining the operations of Eagle with our operations.

During FY 24, a measwrement period adjustment was recorded 10 recognize defiorred tax labilities of §1.4 million associated
with the finite-lived intangibles acquired, with a corresponding increase to goodwill.

The following unzudited pro forma information presents our combined resulls as if the Pacific and Eagle scquisitions had
occurred at the beginning of FY23, The unaudited pro forma financial information was prepared to give effect to events that
are (1} directly attributable to the acquisition; (2} factually supportable; and (3) expected to have a continuing impact on the
combined company’s results, There were no material transactions between the Company and the acquired entities during the
periods presented that are required to be climinated. The unaudited pro forma combined financial information docs not reflect
cosl savings, operaiing svoergies or revenue enhancements that the combined companies may achieve or the costs to
integrate the operations or the costs necessary to achicve cost savings, operaling synergics or revenuc enhancements,

Pro forma combined financial information {Unaudited)

fin millions, excep per share amaown) Year Ended January 31,

2024 2023
1 OSSPSR 1298 3% 122.3
R O - e B T e 58 % 1.6
BRI CRITXMEE TN BIETE v i mii i msinssism g ion snnnsio sinisi s s isispimsf it s R moniinimmianpu i nmpia’: o 079 % 0.22
Driluted camings Per ShAIE ....coviiicaiiiasinaisinsisaismiiss s e ins masbssr asss et srt reaissmasnersissinsnrans | 9 0,77 % 0.21

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information is presented for information purposes only and is not intended 10
represent or be indicative of the combined results of operations or financial poasition that we would have reported had the
acguisition been completed as of the date and for the periods presented, and should not be taken as representative of our
consolidated results of operations or financial condition following the acquisition. In addinon, the unawdited pro forma
combined linancial information is not intended to project the future results of the combined company.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information was prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under
existing ULS, GAAP, The Company has been treated as the acguirer.

Total sequisiion-related costs were 80,5 mllion and 30,6 million for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, Transactional costs and acquisition-related amortization is included in operating expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations,

7. LONG-TERM DEBT Revolving Credit Facility

On June 25, 2020, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement™) with Bank of America (“Lender”™),
The Loan Agreement provides the Company with & securcd (i) $12.5 million revalving credit facility, which includes a $5.0
million letter of credit sub-facility. The Company may request from time to time an increase in the revolving credit loan
commitment of up to $5.0 million (for a wial commitment of up 1o $17.5 million). Borrowing pursuant to the revolving credin
facility is subject to a barrowing base amount calculated as (a) 20% of eligible accounts receivable, as defined, plus (h) 50%
of the value of acceptable inventory, as defined, minus (¢) cernain reserves as the Lender may establish for the amount of
estimated exposure, as reasonably determined by the Lender from time to ime, under certain mierest rate swap conlracts,
The borrowing base limitation only applies during periods when the Company’s guarterly funded debt to EBITDA ratio, as
defined. exceeds 2.00 to 1.00. The credit facility was to mature on June 25, 2025,



Borrowings under the revolving eredit facility bear interest al a rate pet annum equal to the sum of the LIBOR Daily Floating
Rate (“LIBOR™). plus 125 basis points. LIBOR is subject to a floor of 100 basis points. All outstanding principal and unpaid
accrued interest under the revolving credit facility is due and payable on the matunty date. On a one-time basis, and subject
to there not existing an event of default, the Company may elect to convert up to 35 million of the then outstanding principal
of the revolving credit facility 1o a term loan facility with an assumed amortization of 15 yvears and the same interest rate and
meaturity date as the revolving credit facility. The Loan Agreement provides for an annual unused line of credit commitment
fee, pavable guarterly, of 0.25%, based on the difference between the wial credit line commitment and the average daily
amount of credit outstanding under the facility during the preceding quarter.

On June 18, 2021, the Company entered into Amendment No. | to the Loan Agreement (the “Amendment™) with the Lender,
which modified certain terms of the Company's existing Loan Agreement with the Lender. The Amendment increased the
credit limit under the Loan Agreement’s semior secured revolving eredit facihity from 5125 million to 5250 million. The
Amendment also amended the covenant in the Loan Agreement that restricts acquisitions by the Company or its subsidiaries
in order to allew, without the prior consent of the Lender, acquisiions of a business or its assets if there 15 no default under
the Loan Agreement and the aggregate consideration does not exceed 57.5 million for any individual acquisition or $15.0
million on a cumulative basis for all such acquisitions.

The Loan Agreement requires the Company to maintain a Funded Debt to EBITDA (as each such term is defined in the Loan
Agreement) ratio of 3.0 to 1.0 or less and a Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in the Loan Agreement) of al
least 1.15 to 1.0, The Loan Agreement also conkains customary covenanis, including covenanis that, among other things,
limit or restrict the Company ‘s and/or the Company s subsidiaries” ability, subject to certain exceplions and qualifications, o
incur liens or indebtedness, pay dividends or merge, consolidate or sell or otherwise transfer assets, The Company was in
compliance with all of its debt covenants as of January 31, 2024,

The Company made cerfain representations and warranties to the Lender in the Loan Agreement that are customary for credit
arrangements of this type. The Company also agreed to maintain, as of the end of each fiscal quarter. a minimum “basic fixed
charge coverage ratio” (as defined in the Loan Agreement) of at least 1,15 to 1.00 and a “funded debt to EBITDA ratio™ (as
defined in the Loan Agreement) not to exceed 3.00 to 1.00, in each case for the trailing 12-month peried ending with the
applicable quarterly reporting period. The Company also agreed to certain negative covenants that are customary for credit
arrangements of this type, including restrictions on the Company’s ability 10 enter into mergers, acquisitions or other
husiness combination transactions, conduct its business, grant liens, make certain investments, make substantial change in the
present execulive or management personnel and incur additional indebedness, which negative covenants are subject o
ceriain exceplions.

The Loan Agreement contains customary events of default that include. among other things (subject to any applicable cure
periods and matenality qualifier), non-payment of principal, interesi or fees, defaulis under related agreemenis with the
Lender, cross-defaults under agreements for other indebtedness, violation of covenants, inaccuracy of representations and
warranties, bankruptcy and insolvency events, material judgments and material adverse change. Upon the occurrence of an
event of default, the Lender may terminate all loan commitments, declare all outstanding indebtedness owing under the Loan
Agreement and related documents (o be immediately due and payable, and may exercize its other nghts and remedies
provided for under the Loan Agreement.

In connection with the Loan Agreement. the Company entered into with the Lender (i) a security agreement dated June 25,
2020, pursuant to which the Company granted to the Lender a first prionty perfected secunty interest in substantially all of
the personal property and the intangibles of the Company, and (ii) a pledge agreement, dated June 25, 2020, pursuant to
which the Company granted to the Lender a first prionity perfected security interest in the stock of its subsidiarics (limited to
65% of those subsidiaries that are considered “controlled foreign subsidiaries” as set forth in the Internal Revenue Code and
regulations). The Company’s obligations to the Lender under the Loan Agreement are also secured by o negative pledge
evidenced by a Non-encumbrance Agreement covering the real property owned by the Company in Decator, Alabama

On Movember 30, 2023, the Company entered into Amendment Mo, 3 1o the Loan Agreement by and between Bank of
America, M.A. (the “Lender™) and the Company (the “Third Amendment™). Pursuant 1o the Third Amendment, the Lender
consented to the Company’s acquisition of one hundred percent (100%:) of the equity interests of Pacific. The Third
Amendment further provided for cerain amendments to the Loan Agreement to permit additional indebtedness to be made
available to Pacific, o exempi Pacific from ceriain requirements of the Loan Agreement periaining io subsidiary guaraniy
and asset pledges that would otherwise be required under the Loan Agreement and to waive the Company’s bormowing hase
limitations through January 31, 2024, The Third Amendment alse provided for the reaffirmation of representations,
warranties and covenants under the Loan Agreement as are customary in connection with similar amendments of credit
documenis.

As of January 31, 2024, the Company had no borrowings outstanding on the letter of eredit sub-facility and no borrowings
cutstanding under the revolving credit facility.



On March 28, 2024, the Company entered into Amendment No. 4 to the Loan Agreement by and between Bank of America,
N.A. (the “Lender™) and the Company (the “Fourth Amendment”). Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment, the Lender and the
Company agreed to, among other things, (1) extend the expiration date of the credit facibity to March 28, 2029, (i) increase
the availability under the revolving credit facility to 5400 million with an accordion feature providing for the potential
funding of an additional $10.0 million, (i) remove the borrowing base component of the credit Ig:;ili.lz;'. and (iv) modify the
interest rate based on Daily SOFR plus the Applicable Rate. The Applicable Rate is based upon a Funded Debt 10 EBITDA
Ratio and includes four (4) different levels constituting a SOFR margin range from 1.25% to 2.00%. In addition, the Fourth
Amendment (i) modified the Funded Debt 1o EBITDA Ratio covenant so as not 1o exeeed 3.5x (with step-downs to 3.25 and
3.0 in 2025 and 2026),

(i) modified the Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant to a minimum of 1.20x%, (iii) incledes a springing Asset
Coverage Ratio covenant of al leasi 1.10x, bui only to the extent that the maximum Toial Leverage Rafio exceeds 3.00x ai
any reporting period, (iv) increases the sublimit for letters of credit to $10.0 millien, and (v) imposcs a floor to Daily SOFR
of one percent (1.00%). The Fourth Amendment provides for additional indebtedness or the assumption of existing
indebiedness for acquisitions of foreign subsidiaries (ot to exceed S10.0 million in USD) and increased the size of Permitted
Acquisitions, without prior approval from the Lender, to $17.5 million per occurrenee and $35.0 million in the aggregate,

Borrowings in UK

On December 31, 2014, the Company and Lakeland Indusinies Europe, Lid. (*Lakeland UK™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, amended the 1enms of us existing line of credit facility with HSBC Bank 10 provide for
(i) a one-vear extension of the maturity date of the existing financing Facility to December 19, 2016, (i) an incresse
in the facility limit from £1,250,000 (approximately USD 51,9 million, based on exchange rates at time of closing) to
£1,500,000 {approximately USD 82.3 million, based on exchange rates at time ol closing), and (iii) a decrease in the
annual interest rate margin from 3.46% to 3.0%. In addition, pursuant to a letter agreement dated December 5, 2014,
the Company agreed that £400,000 (approximately USD 306 million, based on exchange rates at the time of
closing) of the note payable by the UK subsidiary to the Company shall be subordinated in priority of payment to the
subsidiary’s obligations to HSBC under the financing facility. This agreement has been subsequently amended with
the most recent amendment on March 8, 2022, The cumiilative result of the amendments through March 8, 2022
reflect o reduction of the service charge o 0.765%. The agreement can be terminated with three months” notice.
There were no borrowings owstanding under this facility at January 31, 2024,

Pacific Borrowings

Pacific has two facilities with the Bank of Mew Zealand. Pacific has a trade finance facility where the lender finances
vendor purchases. The trade finance facility has a linut of 504,000 New Zealand dollars and canes an interest rate at
the prevailing base rate for the relevant currency of the vendor plus a margin of 3.00% per annum. The facility
includes two term loans. The first term loan of 1,500,000 New Zealand dollars matures on December 17, 2025,
carrics an interest rate of 2.3% per annum and requires monthly payments of $19.350.27 New Zealand dollars. The
second term loan of 350,000 New Zealand dollars matures on November 18, 2024, camies an interest rate of 3.5%
per annum and requires monthly payments of 10,005 New Zealand dollars. The facilities expire in August 2026 and
are secured by a security interest in Pacific’s real propeny. Borrowings under the rade finance facility and amounts
dug in FY25 under the term loans are reported as short-term borrowings and were 30,3 million at January 31, 2024,
Bomowings under the term loans due after FY 25 are reported as long-term bormrowings and were $0.7 million at
January 31, 2024,

8 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Credn Raisk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company 1o concentration of credit risk, consist principally of
cash and cash equivalenis, and trade receivables. Conceniration of credit nsk with respect io irade receivables is
gencrally diversified due to the large number of entities comprising the Company’s customer base and their
dispersion across geographic arcas prnncipally within the United States. The Company routinely addresses the
financial strength of its customers and, as a consequence, believes that its receivable credit risk exposure is limited,
The Company docs not require custoniers 1o post collateral,

The Company’s forcign financial depostitories are Bank of America; China Construction Bank; Bank of China;
China Industrial and Commercial Bank: HSBC (UK); Roval Bank of Scotland, Rural Credit Cooperative of
Shandong, Postal Savings Bank of China; Punjab Natonal Bank: H5SBC in India, Argentina and UK; Raymond
James in hrgenlmm TD Canada Trust; Baneo Itai S.A.. Banco Credito Inversione in Chile; Banco Mercamil Del
Norte SA in Mexico; £ZA0 KB Citibank Moscow in Russia, JSC Bank Centereredit in Kazakhstan and Bank of New
Zealand i New Zealand. The Company monitors its financial depositories by their credit rating, which varies by
country. In addition, cash balances in banks in the United States of America are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation subject to contain limitations. There was approximarely $3.3 million rotal included in LLS,
bank accounts and approximately $22.0 million total in foreign bank accounts as of January 31, 2024, of which
£24.4 million was uninsured.
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Major Customer
No customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales during FY 24 and FY23.

Major Supplicr
No vendor accounted for more than 10% of purchases during FY24 and FY23.

2. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Omn June 21, 2017, the stockholders of the Company spproved the Lukeland Industries, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive
Plan (the 2017 Plan™). The executive officers and all other employees and directors of the Company, including its
subsidiarics, are eligible to participate in the 2017 Plan. The 2007 Plan s administered by the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Commuittee™), except that with respect to all non-employee directors, the
Committee shall be deemed to include the full Board. The 2007 Plan provides for the grant of equity-based
compensation in the form of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance
units, or stock appreciation rights (“SARs").

Om June 16, 2021, the stockholders of the Company approved Amendment No. 1 {the “Amendment™) 1o the 2017
Plan, The Amendment increases the number of shares of common stock, par value 30,01 per share (the “Common
Stock™), of the Company reserved for issuance under the Plan by 480,000 shares.

An aggregate of 840,000 shares of the Company’s commaon stock are authorized for issuance under the 2017 Plan,
subject to adjustment as provided in the 2007 Plan for stock splits, dividends, distributions, recapitalizations and
other similar transactions or events. If any shares subject to an award arc forfeited, expire, lapse or otherwise
termingte without issuance of such shares, such shares shall, to the extent of such forfeiture, expiration, lapse or
termination, again be available for isswance under the 2017 Plan.

The Company recognized total stock-based compensation costs, which are reflected in operating expenses (in 000°s):

Year Ended
January 31,
2024 2023
2017 Plan:
Total restricted stock and stock option programs .. PRty 1.365 3 1,491
Total income tax expense recognized for sluck-based cumpcﬂs-ﬂ.tmﬂ arrangcments- . | 287 8§ 313
Restricted Stock

Under the 2017 Plan, az described above, the Company awarded performance-based and service-based shares of
restricied stock and restricted stock units to eligible employees and directors, The following table summanizes the
activity under the 2017 Plan for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, This table reflects the amount of awards
granied at the number of shares that would be vested if the Company were to achieve the maximum performance
level under the June 2021, June 2022 and March 2023 grants,

Weighted
Average
Grrant
Performance- Service- Date Fair
Based Based Total Value
Du:sl.mdmg al .Tanuary' 31,2022 ., 232,838 14,970 47808 S8 20.89
Awarded .. L 36475 56,065 92540 5 18.19
"u"r:stcd....... (141,833) (30,370) (172,203} & 10,33
|0y - R ey R A YR S AP e S O R e iy - —— -
Ouistanding at January 31, 2023 127 480 40,665 168,145 & 2295
A v s G R e 64 953 130,350 195343 % 14.19
Wested ... (71.202) (26,336) (97.538) § 14.90
Forfeited ... R R (38,900) (31,829 {70,730)
{hllm.mlmg at ]anu:r}r T R A 22,330 112,890 195220 % 16.61
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The actual number of shares of common stock of the Company, if anv, to be camed by the award recipients is
determined over a three year performance measurement period based on measures that include Eamings Before
Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amertization (“EBITDA™) margin. revenue growth, and free cash flow for the June
2021 grams. Performance measures for the April 2022 grants are revenue growth and EBITDA margin. Performance
measures for the March 2023 grants are revenue growth, EBITDA margin and retumn on invested capital. The
performance targets have been set for each of the Minimum, Target, and Maximum levels. The actual performance
amouni achieved is determined by the Commitice and may be adjusied for items determined to be unusual in nature
or infrequent in occurrence, at the discretion of the Committee.

The compensation cosi is based on the fair value at the grani daie, = recogmized over ihe requisiie
performance/service period using the straight-line method, and is periodically adjusted for the probable number of
shares to be awarded, As of Januwary 31, 2024, unrecognized stock-based compensation expense totaled 51,0 million
pursuant to the 2017 Plan based on cuistanding awards under the Plan. This expense is expected fo be recognized
over approximately two years,

Stock Repurchase Program

On February 17, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program under which the
Company may repurchase up 1o 55 million of its outstanding commen stock. On July 6, 2021, the Board of Directors
authorized an increase in the Company’s stock repurchase program of up o an additional 55 million of iis
outstanding common stock. On April 7, 2022, the Board of Directors authorized a new stock repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up to 55 million of its outstanding common steck, which became
effective upon the completion of the prior share repurchase program. On December 1, 2022, the Board of Direciors
suthorized an increase in the Company’s stock repurchase program, under which the Company may repurchase up to
an additional $5 million of its outstanding commaon stock.

Shares repurchazed in FY 24 wotaled 27,514 shares at a cost of 50.3 million. leaving 35.0 million remaining under the
share repurchase program at January 31, 2024, The share repurchase program has no expiration date but may be
terminated by the Board of Directors at any time.

10, INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is based on the following pretax income {loss):

Years Ended

Jamuary 31,
Domestic and Foreign Pretax Income (Loss) 2024 2023
Domestic... . 5 5648 5 15322
Foreign... 708 (9.851)

The domestic and foreign pretax income in the schedule above reflects intercompany dividends paid 1o the ULS, from
international subsidiaries of 114 million and %19.0 million for fiscal years ended Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Years Ended
January 31,
2024 2023
Income Tax Expense { Benefit)
Current:
SR 17 % 2
State and other laxes 58 68
| 1111, RS Sp— 4.674 3450
T B TRV T IO TU I s i e s 484 4 0 et 4 b B 44K AR S4B R4 4,749 3 3520
Deferred:
Pt oo e e (S186) ($756)
EXEAEIN . cioncinicissan s s b 1633) £34
Total Deferred Tax Expense . {819) % TH

Toal Incnmc'ﬁut: 5 3930 3 3,508
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The following is a reconciliation of the effective income tax rate to the Federal siatuiory rate:

Years Ended
January 31.
2024 2023

Stattory raic ... 21.00% 21.00%
State Income Tu:s:. het ui‘ Fedr.-r&l Tax E«.-n-.-l’l. 0.49% 0.05%
Adjustment to Deferred . (23.261% 13.54%
GILTI... 9.07% 24.84%
Foreign Tl‘l'. Cr:dul - GIlTI (242)% (14.86)%
Section 250 Deduction.... (4925  (15.74)%
Permanent Differences .. 0.20%% 0.07%
Valuation Allowance- D:f-:m:d Ta.'; As.wt 33.29% 6.4 1%
R TR CDORIL i s b s e e (15.24)% (9.74)%
Section 78 Gross-up.........ee i 0.77% B, 64%%
Argentina Flow Thruugh l.u-'-s 7.20% 1.09%
Withholding Taxes .. 1% 5.72% 36.55%
Forcign Rate leﬁ:rmlm!
Change in State Apportion:nml Rate
Foreign employee benefits...
Foreign Dividends Paid 1o U S
Foreign Dividends Received Docm-:l.mn (25.69)% (73.01%
Earnout .&:ljuslmcm (3.70)% s
Eﬂ’cmvc Rulc 42.01% 65.74%

18.25% 2.11%
(148)% (1.38)%
(1.58)% (3.58)%
25.69% 73.01%

The tax effects of temporary cumulative differences which give rise to deferred tax assets are summarized as
follows:

Years Ended
January i1,
2024 2023

Deferred 1ax assels:
D T B e Ll 1,545 3§ 1,147

US tax loss carryforwards, including work opportunity eredit ... 167 |86
Accounts receivable and accrued rebates... i 295 278
Accrued compensaton and other ... 441 123
India reserves - US deduction ... 24 22
Foreign tax credil Camy-TOrWRNT .. .oicrmissmsimsiims s s sisasssiass sers ssasssisssnss thasssbissasss eimsersias 4,548 3,123
State and local camry-forwards ....... 1,256 18
Depreciation and amortization ... (1.840) (155)
Prepaid eXpenses.......c.oovnincins {253) (175}
Right-of-use asset............... i 1,590) 1697)
Operating lease liability ..... 1.672 732
Foreign cm-l’nrwards ...... 1102 438
Withholding taxes .. {383) (769
Other ... O Y 351 107
Deferred Iu assct 7.675 5,556
Less valuation ullumnr:c (6.675) {3.561)

January 31,
Balance sheet classification 024 2023
LOn-DErin DT LI BRI .. i e o s s s i s s s i, Y 37T 8 2,764
Long-term defermed tax Hability... o o iseisimsnisimssinss s ssrsassmeraan ssssiassssms asbns peadasnissnsms iossasnions 9 2097 § THY
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The benelit relating to capital loss, operating loss, and credit carrylorwards included in the above table at January 31,
2024, consisted of:

Giross Benefit Valuation Expiration

Carrviorward Amount Allowance  Beginning In
Stare operating loss carryforwands. ... 200132 8 1,256 § (1,025) 2028
Foreigi tax credit cammyforwards i 4.54% {4.548) 2025
Federal credit carryforwards. .. i 167 . 2035
Mexico operating loss -:an'}-l*mwrdﬁ e 1,199 360 1360) 2033
Chale operating loss carryforwands . skl i 2414 652 {652) Indefnme
UK npmumg loss can'yl‘nrwar:ls e 361 M (90) Indefimite
Total... 5 7073 § (6,675)

A significant portion of our net eperating loss carrvforwards were gencrated in the state of Alabama prior to the
change i apportioniment factor rules for that state i 2021 which moved the state to a single sales factor
apportionment method, The impact of the state law change significantly reduced our apportionment factor in that
state, making it unlikely that we will generate sufficient income allocated 1o that state i order to uthze the full
amount of our net loss carrylforwards prior te their expiration,

ni iny i Ass
The Company generally considers all camings generated outside of the ULS. to be permanently reinvested offshore,
with the exception to countries where cash can be repatriated without withholding taxes, and in China in which the
Company previously determined excess cash over what was required to fund operations and growth exasted.

Dunng FY24, the Company repatriated 54.5 million and 7.0 million from Canada and China, respectively, The
Company also identified an additional $3.8 million in excess cash in itz Chinese operations for which it plans 10
repatriate in the future. A withholding tax lability has been cstablished for the expected withholding taxes in the
amount of 50.4 million as of the period ended January 31, 2024, The distribution from Canada received dunng FY 24
was a result of the sale of real estate during the year, The sale resulted in after tax cxcess cash that the Company
determined was not needed 1o Tund local operations and repatriated back (o the US in a one-time action, The
Company still currenily maintains a permanently reinvesiment assertion on its fuiure Canada operations,

Income Tax Audits

The Company is subject to US federal income tax, as well as income tax in multiple US state and local jurisdictions
and a number of forcign jurisdictions. Retumns for the years since FY 20 are sill open based on statutes of limitation
only.

Chinese tax authoritics have performed limited reviews on all Chinese subsidiarics as of tax years 2008 through
2021 with no significant issues noted and we believe our tax pesitions are reasonably stated as of January 31, 2024,
The 2023 1ax review will be performed before May 31, 2024 in China,

“hange i Valuation Allowance
We record met deferred tax assets to the extent we believe these assets will more hikely than not be realized. The
valuation allowance for the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 was $6.7 million and $3.6 million,

respectively.

ECD Pillar T

In 2021 the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) announced an Inclusive Framework
on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting inclueding Pillar Two Model Rules defining the global minimum tax, which calls
for the taxation of large multinational corporations al a minimum rate of 15%. Subsequently multiple sets of
administrative guidance have been issued. Many non-U. S, tax junisdictions have cither recently enacted legistation (o
adopl certain components of the Pillar Two Model Rules beginning o 2024 with the adoption of additional
components in Later years or announced their plans 1o enact legislation in future years. Although we expeel inereased
tax compliance cfforts as a result of new legislation, we do not expect Pillar Two to have a significant impact on our
effective tax rate or our conselidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows.
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1L NET INCOME PER SHARE

The following table scts forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share as follows:

Yeurs Ended January 31,

(0005 except share
information)

2024 2023
PITIETRUON — IO TRDRIITI ... .. oo i i i it e i e 5425 3 1873
Denominator for basic net income per share {wclght:d-av:ragc sh.u.ﬂ:ﬁ which reflect 1,358 ,2!15
and 1,330,694 ireasury shares ai.. "
January 31, 2024 and 2023, respecm'ui_ﬂ 7.352.356 7.562,187
Eifect of dilutive securities from restricted stock plan and from dilutive effect of stock options , 187,349 175,776
Denominator for diluted net income per share (adjusted weighted average shares)...........oceeee.. 7539705 7737963
T A LTINS U BN v xco s BB AR B AR R AR RS S R b a1 072 .24

12, DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Company is exposed to foreign currency nsk, Management has commenced a derivative instrument program to
partially offzet this risk by purchasing forward contracts to sell the Canadian Dollar and the Euro other than the cash
flow hedge discussed below, Such contracts are largely timed 1o expire on the last day of the fiscal quarter, with a
new contract purchased on the first day of the next quarter to match the Company’s operating cycle. We designated
the forward contracts as derivatives but not as hedging instruments, with loss and gain recognized in current

CATMINES.

The Company accounts for its forcign exchange derivative instruments by recognizing all derivatives as cither asscts
or habilities at fair value, which may result in additional volatility in current peniod earmings or other comprehensive
mcome, depending on whether the instrument was designated as a cash flow hedge, as a result of recording
recognized and unnecognized gains and losses from changes in the fair valee of derivative instruments,

We have onc type of derivatives to manage the risk of foreign curreney fluctuations. We enter into forward contracts
with fimancial institulions 10 manage our currency exposure related o nel assets and labilifies denominated in
foreign currencies. Those forward contract derivatives, not designated as hedging instrumenis, were generally settled
quarterly. Gain and loss on these forward contracts are included in current eamings. There were no outstanding
forward contracts ot January 31, 2024 or 2023,

13, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Centan condinons may exist as of the date the consolidated financial statements are issued, which may result in a
loss w the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future events oceur or fail o occur. The
Company’s management and legal counscl assess such contingent liabilitics, which inherently involve an exercise of
judgment. In assessing loss conlingencies refated 1o legal proceedings that are pending against the Company or
unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Company's legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits
of any legal proceedings or unassented claims, as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or
expected to be sought therein.

If the assessment of a conlingency mdicates that it is probable that a material loss has been or s probable of being
imcurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the estimated hability would be accrued in the
Company's consolidated financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency
is nt probable, but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent
liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed.

Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve guaraniees, in which case the
nature of the guaraniee would be disclosed.

During the third quarter of FY 24, the Company sent a letter to the landlord outlining certain structural defects on the
newly constructed facility in Monterrey, Mexico that would inlibit the Company from effectively utilizing the
facility for its intended purpose. The Company has initiated discussions with the landlord as 1o potential remedics
which may inform our decision-making process with respect to this property, Changes in our long-term intended use
for the building may impact the carryving value of the currently recorded right of use asset.
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Gengral litigation contingencics

The Company is invelved in various litigation proceedings ansing during the normal course of business which, in the
opinion of the management of the Company, will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position,
resulls of operations or cash Mows; however, there can be no assurance as 1o the ullimate outeome of these matters,
Az of January 31, 2024, 1o the best of the Company’s knowledge, there were no significant outstanding claims or
litigation.

Leases

We lease real property, cquipment and automobiles. The Company made the accounting policy clection to account
for short-term leases as described berein. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the
balance sheet; we recognize lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company determines if a contract contains a lease at inception, US GAAP requires that the Company's leases
be evaluated and classified as operating or finance leases for financial reporting purposes. The classification
evaluation beging at the commencement date and the lease term used in the evaluation inclodes the non-cancellable
period for which the Company has the right to use the underlving asset, together with renewal option periods when
the exercise of the renewal option i3 reasonably certain and failure to exercise such option would result in an
economic penalty. All of the Company’s real estate leases are classified as operating leases.

Muost of our real estate leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that generally can extend the
leaze term for an additional four to five vears, The exercise of lease renewal options is at the Company”s discretion,
The Company evaluates renewal options at lease inception and on an ongoing basis and includes renewal options
that it 15 reasonably certain to cxercise in its expected lease terms when classifving leases and measuring lease
liabilities. Lease agreements generally do not require material variable lease payments, residual value guarantees or
resiriclive covenants.

The components of lease expense are included on the consolidated statement of operations as follows (in 000s):

Year Ended Year Ended
January 31, January 31,

Classification 2024 2023
DIperating [ease COBL.....ccverricamrimsmrrisasmrasss s sssersimmseieneens o080 Of goods sold  § 1092 % 272
Operating expenzes 3 1402 8§ 1.035

Weghted-ave lease i ISCOuNL Fales as follows:

January 31, January 31,

2024 2023
Weighted-average n-m;an:ng lease term t}rc:u.ni}
Operating leases.... 80 £.2
nghl:dm: discount rate
Operating leases.,.. s e s e v e T T 10.4% 5.25%

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases were as follows (in (005 ):

Year Ended Year Ended
January 31, January 31,

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilites: 2024 2023
Operating cash flows from operating leases... AR PR A A PP o Pkl 1,932 & 1,436
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new opcra.tmg iua.sn Ilahllnms .................................... 5 5591 § 1,148
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Maturity of Lease Liabilities
Maturity of lease liabilities as of January 31, 2024 was as follows (in $000°s):

Year ending Junuary 31. Leascs
2026..... 2,092
2027..... . 1.876
028, i 1,805
029........ , 1,490
TRrener i inatin st ne i i 5,547
Total lease payments |, 14574
Less: Interest... o 3.689
Present value ﬂfl:asc ]mbﬂ.ny 5 11,245
14. SEGMENT REPORTING
Domestic and international sales from continuing operations are as follows in millions of dollars:
2024 2023
3z 553 % 390

. 044 638
. 3 1247 3 112.8

We manage our operations by evaluating cach of our geographic locations. Our US operations include a facility in Alabama
(pnmanly the distnbution to customers of the bulk of our products and the hght manufaciunng of our chemical, wovens,
reflective, and fire products). The Company also maintains one manufacturing company in China (primarily disposable and
chemical suit production), a manufacturing facility in Mexico (primarily disposable, reflective, fire and chemical suit
production), & manufacturing facility in Vietnam (pnimarily disposahle production), 2 manufacturing facility in New Zealand
(helmets) and a small manufacturing faclity in India, Our China facilities produce the majonty of the Company’s products,
and China generates a significant portion of the Company’s intemational revenues. We evaluate the performance of these
enfities based on operating profit, which i defined as income before mcome taxes, interest expense and other income and
expenses, We have sales forces in the USA, Canada, Mexico, Europe, Latin America, India, Russia, Karakhstan, Ausiralia,
New fealand and China, which scll and distnibute products shipped from the United States, Mexico, India or China. The
table below represents information about reported segments for the years noted therein:

Year Ended January 31,
2024 2023
{in millions of dollars)
Met Sales

USA Operations (incliding Corporaied. e 5 [ZIRT 538
R N ML . .. ittt o i i s 1 A1 14.0 9.3
ETTL R ) o O RS A S P e S R S L e B P A 16.4 £.3
Mexico .......... 6.7 52
Asia...... 46.2 63.7
R T L O S 9.3 9.0
Latin AMerica ......ooccviinee 16.3 109

CONSOIEAIET BAIES ..o vvoveessosessessssaesenssrs asssssemo et semes oesses e aessase e sssmsse s esmsssssenssssnsensesscssies B 1247 § 112.8
External Sales

UsSA Dpemmm {ln-tludmg Curpomte} ] 553 5 49.0
Other foreign...... i 9.9 7.2
Europe {UK} ............ 16.3 %3
BB L 4.0 3.7
Asia. 13.8 4.8
T o i o o e A4S s b e 9.3 9.0
Consolidated uluml salcs T L AT T e P AL (AR S el | 124.3' 5 1128
Intersegment Sales

Usa Up{'rnlmnﬁ 'l:ln-tl.l.l.i,llnﬁ (_urlmmte] ] 56 8 4.8
Other foreign... e 4.1 24
Europe (UK ). 0.1 anme
B e e L e G R g e 17 1.5
Asid . 324 89
e i L

Latin Amnﬂ . 0.2 -
Consolidated 1 mlcm:gmcnt RO o et b : 451 3 47.6




Year Ended January 31,

2024

2023

(i milliens ofdofErsl

Operating Prolit { Loss):
USA Operations {(including COrpormbe).......ccoumerriisrimmsimmmmrsmssismisssssissssssmisssssasssrsimsssins | 9
O FORCHETL oo oo N s
BEXICO oo
Asia...
Latin America .

Less intersegment (profit) loss ..

(6.4)
0.4
(.5
(1.4)

Consohdated operating pm!il .............................. 5

Depreciation and Amortization Expense;
USA Operalions (Including Corporita)......cuummsii s sisisssssssissansissaissnsinss sesassssisssismasasssiss o
I FOBRIRIN ...c.cionivicoicuai i iimns i sms s i b e S ia bR e L AT R
Europe (UK}...... o b s b

Consolidated dcpm:

i1 3

- === ==
linls & =tmba o =2

Year Ended January 31,

Total Assets:
USA Operations (including Corporate).... e e e e et

Latin AMCHCa .ooovrvooerr.
Less intersegment. ...

2024
i mllions o

922§
20.3
30,0
12.1
51.6
8.5
15.0
(76.0)

2023
rs

(52.0)

T U R

1337 3

1429

Total Assets Less Intersepment:
USA ﬂpuralmm {lmludmg Cnrpnrnte} ..................................................................................... 5
'Dlh:r foreign............

P-e [U‘K.} .............. e 4 R b s A e e S bt A R B

471 &
19.6

bed o= 3R

Consolidated assets ..

o R N Y

e

Property and Equipment:
USA ﬂpcmlmm {lmtudmg Corpomtc] AR e S R R RN s
Other foreign ...
Europe (UK}......

Canada.......
Latmn .-tme-nﬂ ............. R
Less intersegment...

Conselidated tongaiwed a;sels

slessnpssn [Sleudunibed

= b B0 e = e

Capital Expenditures:
LISA Operations (including Corporate)....

—

e o B -
=lpsly oy o0 0 H




15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has reviewed and evaluated whether any matenial subsequent events have occurred from January 31, 2024
through the filing date of the Company’s Anmual Report on Form 10-K. All appropriate subsequent event disclosures have
been made in the consolidated linancial statements. On February 5, 2024, the Company acquired Naly and Romania-based
Jolly Scarpe S.p.A. and Jolly Scarpe Romania 5.1, L. (collectively, “Jolly™) in an all-cash transaction valued at approximanely
$9.3 million subject to post=closing adjustments and customary holdback provisions, Jolly is a leading designer and
manufaciurer of professional footwear for ihe firefighting, mililary, police, and rescue markeis. The company is
headgquartered in Montebelluna, [taly, with manufacturing operations in Bucharest, Romania, and has 150 emplovees, Jolly
provides a differentiated product portfolio through its continued investment in research and development and use of modern
materials and culting-edge 1echnologies in the production of its foolwear.

On March 2%, 2024, the Company entered mto Amendment No. 4 to Loan Agreement by and between Bank of Amenca,
MN.A. (the “Lender™) and the Company (the “Fourth Amendment™). See Mote 7, “Long-Term Debt™ for additional
information.

On Apnl 2, 2024, Lakeland Global Safety, Lid. (*Lakeland Global™), a whollv-owned subsidiary the Company, entered imto
a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement™), by and between Kantaras Investments Pre, Lid,, Lakeland
Global, and the Company, pursuant to which Lakeland Global acquired all of the shares of the fire and rescue busingss of
LID Group Dewtschland Gmbil, LHD Group Australia Pty Lid and LHD Group Hong Kong Lid.. wholly-owned entities of
Kantaras Investments Pie. Lid. {collectively, the “LHD Group™) for a purchase price of EUR 154 million (approximatcly
USID S16.7 million), subject to post-closing adjustments and customary holdback provisions, The LHD Group is a leader in
firefighter turnout gear, accessories. and Total Care services, including laundry, repair. and maintenance. The transaction will
be funded throwgh the Company’s credit facility. The acquisition i expected to close in May subject to the satisfaction of
customary closing conditions, including receipt of regulatory approvals.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Mone,
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurcs

Based on thewr evaluation as of the end of the penod covered by this Form 10-K., the Company’s principal executive
officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15i(c) under the Sccuritics Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”™)) arc
effective to ensure that information required 1o be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under
the Exchange Actis (i) recorded. processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Secunities
and Exchange Commission rules and forms and (i) accumulated and communicated to our management. inchuding
the principal executive officer and principal financial officer. as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Remediation of Material Weakness

In connection with our audit of the fiscal year 2023 consolidated financial statements, we and our independent
registered public accounting firm determined that we had matenial weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting. These material weaknesses pnmanly pertained to process-level controls over foreign subsidiary currency
translation or remeasurement to ensure the foreign subsidiary’s account balances were sccurately stated in the
consolidated financial statements.

Druring the year ended January 31, 2024, we implemented enhanced procedures to remediate the deficiencies in our
internal control over financial reporting that resulied in the material weakness. Specific remedial actions undertaken
by management included, without limitation;

. Enhancing the existing monthly financial statement management review by including a reconciliation of key
account balances on the general ledger back to the onginally reported balances from the foreign subsidiary
sub-ledgers (translated to USD);

. Reconfiguring the trial balance import process for its Argentina subsidiary to import and remeasure aceount
balances in a manner consistent with other foreign subsidiaries; and

. Developing enhancements to the foreign subsidiary financial reporting packages by specifically quantifying
and reviewing the currency fluctuation impact to the overall financial statements,

We have completed the process of implementing the aforementioned enhancements and believe that we have
remediated the material weaknesses in our intemal control over financial reporting with respect to the foreign
subsidiary currency translation.

Managemeni's Repont on Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting

The Company s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting (ICOFR), as defined in Rule 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(1) of the Exchange Act. Our intermal control over
financial reporting 15 a process, under the supervision of the CEQ and CFO, designed 1o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with GAAP and includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly refleet our transactions and the disposition of
our assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of
financial statements n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that our receipts and
expendinures are being made only in accordance with appropriate authorizations; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporiing may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any cvaluation of effectivencss to future periads are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedunes may
detenorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contral over financial reporting as of January 31,
2024, In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsonng
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013). Based on our
assessment and those critena, management has concluded that the Company maintained cffective internal control
over financial reporting as of January 31, 2024,

The Company acquired Pacific Helmets NZ Limited on November 30, 2023, which represented approximately 7%
and 6% of the Company’s net assets and 1otal assets as of January 31, 2024 and 1% of total sales, for the vear ended
January 31, 2024, As the Pacific Helmets NZ Limited acquisition was completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2024, the scope of the Company’s fiscal 2024 assessment of the effectivencss of its intemal control over financial
reporting does not include the acquired Pacific Helmets NZ Limited business. This exclusion is pursuant o the
SEC’s general guidance that an assessment of a recently acquired business” internal control over financial reporting
may be omitted from the scope of the Company’s assessment of its internal control over financial reporting for
twelve months following the date of acquisition.

Li} rnal | over Fi sial Re in

Other than the remediation efforts described above, which were ongoing during the last fiscal quarter ended January
31, 2024, there were no changes in the Company’s intermal control over financial reporting identified in
management s evaluation pursuant o Rules 13a-15(0 and 15d-15(0) of the Exchange Act during the quarter ended
January 31, 2024 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting,

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION
None,
ITEM 9C, DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS
None.
PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Part UL Ilem 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance; Item 11,
Executive Compensation: ltem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence; and
Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services 5 included in and incorporated by reference to Lakeland's
definitive proxy statement in connection with its Annual Mecting of Stockholders scheduled to be held in June 2024,
to be filed with the Sccuntics and Exchange Commission within 120 davs following the end of Lakeland’s fiscal
vear ended January 31, 2024, Information relating to the executive officers of the Registrant appears under ltem 1 of
this repon.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Part 11 Trem 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govermance: Ttem 11,
Executive Compensation; Tem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence; and
Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services 1s included in and incorporated by reference to Lakeland's
definitive proxy statement in connection with its Annual Mecting of Stockholders scheduled 1o be held in June 2024,
to be filed with the Secunitics and Exchange Commission within 120 days following the end of Lakeland's fiscal
year ended January 31, 2024, Information relating to the executive officers of the Registrant appears under Item | of
this report.
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

The information regarding secunty ownership of certin beneficial owners and management that s required (o be
inclieded purssant to this Item 12 is included in and incorporated by reference to Lakeland's definitive proxy
statement in connection with its Annual Mecting of Stockholders scheduled o be held in June 2024,

Equity Compensation Plans

The following sets forth information relating to Lakeland's equity compensation plans as of January 31, 2024;

Number of
securitics
remaining
Number of available for
securitics 1o be Weighted- fisture issuance
iszued upon AVETALET EXCTCISE under equity
exercise of price per share compensation
ottstanding of oulstanding plans (excluding
options, options, securitics
warrants and warrants and reflected in
mights (1) rights column (ajil)
{a) ibi ich
Equity Compensation plans approved by security holders ... 193,151 % 15.92 190,366
Equity compensation plans not approved by secunity holders ... — - —
OB rvisiiinn Fosis s sl s A AR it oAb B R T 193,151 % 15.92 190,466

(1)  The wotal reflected in column {¢) incledes shares available for grant as any type of equity award under our 2017 Equity
Incentive Plan, as amended.

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Part 1II: Item 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance; Ttem 11,
Executive Compensation; Ttem 13, Cerain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence; and
Item 14, Prncipal Accountant Fees and Services 15 mcluded m and incorporated by reference o Lakeland's
definitive proxy statement in connection with its Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held in June 2024,
o be filed with the Securitics and Exchange Commission within 120 days following the end of Lakeland’s fiscal
year ended Jamuary 31, 2024,

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Pant [11: Trem 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance; Ttem 11,
Executive Compensation; ltem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence; and
Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services is ancluded in and incorporated by refercnce to Lakeland's
delinitive proxy statement in connection with its Annual Mesting of Stockholders scheduled 1o be held in Jume 2023,
1o be filed with the Secunnies and Exchange Commission within 120 dayvs following the end of Lakeland's fiscal
year ended January 31, 2024,
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PART IV

ITEM 15, EXHIBIT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a. (1) Financial Statements - Covered by Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

{A)  Consohidated Statements of Operations for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023

(B)  Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended Janvary 31, 2024 and 2023
{C)  Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 31, 2024 and 2023

(D Conselidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023
(E)  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended January 31, 2024

(F}  Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements

{4) Exhibits - See (b} below

b. Exhibits

Exhibit No.

Diescription

21

22

23

LN

12

4.1

10.1

0.2

10.3

104

105

Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of the Issued Shares of Eagle Technical Products Limited, by and
between Lakeland Global Safery, Lid as Buyer and Longworth Limited as Seller, dated as of December 2,
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Lakeland Industrics, Inc.'s Form 10-K filed Apnil 18,
2023),

Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, by and between Pacific Helmets NZ Limited and Lakeland NZ Limited,
dated as of November 30, 2023 (filed herewith).

Share Purchase Agreement, by and between Minerva Manufacture de chaussures S.A. and Lakeland Global
Safety, Lad., dated az of Febmary 5, 2024 (filed herewith),

Restated Centificate of Incorporation of Lakeland Industries, Inc., as amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of Lakcland Industries, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 8-% filed on September 3, 2021).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Lakeland Industries Inc., (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
Lakeland Industrics, Inc.'s Form 8-K filed April 28, 20017},

Deseription of Securities of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibin 4.1 of Lakeland Industries,
Inc.'s Form 10-K filed Apnil 18, 2023),

Employment Agreement dated February 11, 2021, between Allen E. Dillard and the Company (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industrics, Inc, Form 8-K filed February 16, 2021).*

Employment Agreement dated lanuary 27, 2020, between Charles . Roberson and the Company
{incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc. Form 5-K filed January 29, 2020).*

Form of Stock Option Certificate and Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland
Industrics, Inc. Form 10-0) filed September 9, 20019).*

Lakeland Industrics, Inc. Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o
Lakeland Industries, Inc. Form 8-K filed June 29, 2012).

Leaze Agreement dated April 4, 200 1, between Wallingfen Park Limited, as lessor, and Lakeland Industries
Europe Limited, as lessee (incorporated by reference o Exhibit 1001 of Lakeland Industries, Inc. Form 10-0)
for fiscal quarter ended Apnl 30, 201 5).



10

0.7

108

10.9

10,10

1011

10.12

1013

1014

1015

1016

10.17

10,18

10,19

10.20

Agreement for the Purchase of Debts dated January 29, 2003 between HSBC Invoice Finance (UK) Linited
and Lakeland Industrics Europe Limited (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 1001 to Lakeland Industrics,
Inc. Form 8-K filed February 25, 2013).

Fixed Charge on Non-vesting Debts and Floating Charge dated January 29, 2003 between HSBC Invoice
Finance (UK) Limited and Lakeland Industnies Europe Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibin 10,2 10
Lakeland Industries, Inc. Formy 8-K filed February 25, 2013).

Standard Terms & Conditions dated May 15, 20185, for the debt provided by between HSBC Invoice Finance
(UK) Limited and Lakeland Industries Europe Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of
Lakeland Industries, Inc."s Form 10-K filed April 16, 2019).

Amendment to Agreement for Purchase of Debts, dated effectively as of December 3, 2014 between HSBC
Invoice Finance (UK) Limited and Lakeland Industries Europe Limited (incorporated by reference o Exhibit
10.1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.'s Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014},

Letter Agreement dated December 5, 20014, between Lakcland Industrics, Inc. and HSBC Inveice Finance
{UK) Ltd. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.s Form &-K filed December
&, 2014}

Warehouse Service for Fee Agreement dated February 10, 2016, between Safety Pro, LLC and Lakeland
Industries, Ine. (incorporated by relerence 1o Exhibit 10.55 of Lakeland Industries, Inc. Form 10-K filed
April 21, 2016),

Shares Transfer Agreement, dated as of June |8, 2015, by and among Lakeland Industries, Inc., Brasil
Industria E Comercio de Roupas E Equipamentos de Protecao Individual Lida, Zap Comércio de Brindes
Corporatives Lida and Jack Nemer {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc,
Form B-K filed June 25, 2015).

Lease Agreement dated December 1, 2018, between Tamash 5.A., as lessor and Lakeland Argentina 5.R.1.
as lessee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Lakeland Industries, Ine."s Form 10-K filed April 16,
2009).

Loan Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2020, by and between Lakeland Industries, Inc. and Bank of America,
N.A. (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed June 30, 2020).

Seccurity Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2020, by and berween Lakeland Industrics, Inc. and Bank of
America, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.'s Form 8-K filed June
30, 2020,

Pledge Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2020, by and between Lakeland Industrics, Inc. and Bank of
America, N A, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,3 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.s Form 8-K filed June
30, 2020},

Non-encumbrance Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2020, by Lakeland Industries, Ing. for the benefit of Bank
of America. N.A. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Lakeland Indusiries, Inc.”s Form 8-K filed June 30, 2020).

Emplovment Agreement, dated December 30, 2020, between Lakeland Industries, Ine. and Steven L. Harvey
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed January 5, 2021).*

Amendment No. 1 1o Loan Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2021, by and between Lakeland Industries, Ine,
and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.'s Form 8-
K filed June 24, 2021}).

Lakeland Industrics, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan, inclusive of all amendments through June 16, 2021
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
filed on September 3, 2021).*

Lakeland Industries, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland
Industries, Inc."s Form B-K filed June 21, 2021).*
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10.22

10.23

10,24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10,28

10.2%

10,30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10,34

10.35

10,36

10.37

14.1

Form of Restricted Stock Unt Award Agreement (icorporated by reference to Exhibit 1004 of Lakeland
Industrics, Inc. Form 10-0) for fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2021).*

Amendment to Employment Letter Agreement of Charles D. Roberson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc."s Form 8-K filed January 6, 2022).*

Amendment to Agreement for Purchase of Debis, dated effectively as of March 3, 2022, berween HSBC
Invoice Finance (UK) Limited and Lakeland Industries Europe Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10,2 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.’s Form 10-C) filed June 7, 2023).

Investment Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2021, by and among Lakeland Industrics, Inc., Inova Design
Solutions LTD and the other partics thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland
Industries, Inc."s Form 8-K filed on October 20, 2021)

Lease Agreement, by and between Morena de la Garza Gonzalez and Alcjandre Mario Gonzalez Quezada
and Lakeland Industries, Inc.{incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industrics, Inc.’s Form
=K filed August 17, 2022)

Continuimg Guaranty, dated as of July 6, 2022, by Lakeland Industnes, Inc. in favor of Morena de la Garra
Gonzalez and Alejandro Mario Gonzalez Quezada (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Lakeland
Industries, Inc."s Form 8-K filed August 17, 2022)

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 of Lakeland Industrics, Inc.’s Form 10-0) filed September 8, 2022) *

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,4 of
Lakeland Industries, Inc.'s Form 100} filed September 8, 2022) *

Emplovment Agreement, dated January 30, 2023, by and hetween Lakeland Industries, Inc. and Roger [,
Shannon (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Lakeland [ndustries, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed February 2,
2023 *

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2022, by and between Lakeland Industries, Inc. and Hui An
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,30 of Lakeland Industnes, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed Apnl 18, 2023)*

Debt Purchase Facility Agreement, dated as of Apnil 6. 2021, between HSBC Invoice Finance (UK) Limited
and Lakeland Industnes Europe Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Lakeland Industries,
Inc.'s Form 10-0) filed June 7, 2023)*

General Release and Severance Agreement, by and between Lakeland Industries, Ine. and Allen E. Dillard
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industries, Inc.’s Form 10-0) filed June 7, 2023) *

Transition to Retirement Agreement and General Release, dated May 11, 2023, by and berween Lakeland
Industries, Inc. and Steven L. Harvey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1001 of Lakeland Industries,
Inc.'s Form 10-0) filed September 6, 2023) *

Gieneral Release and Separation Agreement, dated October 19, 2023, by and between Lakeland Industries,
Inc. and Charles [, Roberson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 of Lakeland Industrics, Ine.’s Form
10-0 filed December 7, 2023) *

Amendment No. 2 o Loan Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2023, by and between Lakeland Indusiries, Inc.
and Bank of America, NoA. (filed herewith)

Amendment No. 3 to Loan Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2023, by and between Lakeland Industries,
Inc. and Bank of America, N.A. (filed herewith)

Lakeland Industries, Inc. Code of Ethics, as amended on September 29, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 14.] of Lakeland Indusiries, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed April 16, 2019},
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101

Subsidiaries of Lakeland Industries, Ine. (wholly owned) and junisdictions of incorporation:
Lakeland Protective Wear, Inc. (Ontario, Canada)

Weifang Meiyvang Protective Products Co., Ltd, (China)

Weifang Lakeland Safety Products Co., Ltd. {China)

Lakeland (Beijing) Safety Products Co., Ltd, (Beijing & Shanghai China)
Lakeland Industries Europe Lid, (Cardiff, United Kingdom)

Industrias Lakeland S.A. de C.V. (Zacaiecas, Mexico)

Lakeland Industrics Chile Limitado ( Santiago, Chile)

Indian Pan-Pacific Sales Lid. (Hong Kong, Chinia)

Lakeland (Hong Kong) Trading Co.. Lid. {Hong Kong, China)

Lakeland Argentina, SRL (Bucnos Aires, Argentina) Migliara S.A. (Uruguay)
Lakeland Glove and Safcty Apparel Private, Lid. (Noida, India)
Lakeland India Private Limited, New Delhi, India)

RussindProtection, Lid. (Moscow, Russia)

Art Prom, LLC (Kazakhstan, Russia)

SpecProtect LLC (56 Peiershurg, Russia)

Lakeland (Vietnam) Industnies Co., Ltd. (Nam Dinh, Vietnam)

Lakeland Industries Australia Pry Lid. {Momington, Australia)

Eagle Technical Products Limited (Manchesier, United Kingdom)
SALH1.Inc. (Delaware, United States)

SALH2, Inc. (Delaware, United States)

Lakeland Safety MX Monterrey, S.A. de C.V, {Monterrey, Mexico)
Lakeland NZ Limited (Wangani, New Zealand)

Pacific Helmets NZ Limited (Wanganui, New Zealand)

Tolly Scarpe 5.p.A. (Haly)

Jolly Scarpe Romania S.R.L. (Romania)

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm {filed herewath)

Certafication of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant 1o Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14{a) and
15d-14{a}, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewath)

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant 1o Secunitics Exchange Act Rules 13a-14a) and 15d-
14{a), az adopted pursuam o Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

Cenification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 13 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopred pursuant 10
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 {furnished herewiih)

Certification of the Chief’ Financial Officer pursuant 1o 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant 10
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 { furnished herewiih)

Compensation Recoupment Policy (filed herewith)

Interactive Data Files for the Registrant’s Form [0-K for the period ended January 31, 2023, formatted in
Inline XBRL.

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL and confained in Exhibit 101},

Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

ITEM 16, FORM 10-K SUMMARY

Nong,

23



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behall by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LAKELAND INDUSTRIES, INC.
Dated: Apnl 10, 2024
By: s/ James M. Senking
James M. Jenkins
Acting President and Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Chairman

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secoritics Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behall of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

A& Sames M. Senkins Acting President and Chief Executive Ofticer and April 10, 2024
James M. Jenking Exccutive Chairman

/x! Rager ). Shannon Chief Financial Officer and Secretary April 10, 2024
Roger D. Shannon (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

& Thomas S Medteer Director April 10, 2024

Thomas 1. McAteer

/& Wikl I Hamblin Director April 10, 2024
Mikki L. Hambfin

fad Jefirey T Scllarbaum Dircctor April 10, 2024
Jeffrey T, Schlarbaum

5/ Ronald Herring Director April 10, 2024
Ronald Herring

f/ Melissa Kidd Dircctor April 10, 2024
Melizsa Kidd

[/ Martin Glavin Director April 10, 2024
Martin Glavin
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